ICDEA2012 18th International Conference on Difference Equations and Applications

Casa de Convalescència Barcelona

July 23 to 27, 2012

Abstracts Book



Contents

Plenary Lectures	1
Mandelpinski Necklaces for Singularly Perturbed Rational Maps, Robert L. Devaney	3
Application of singularity theory to the global dynamics of population models, Saber Elaydi	4
Different approaches to the global periodicity problem, Armengol Gasull .	6
Homoclinic trajectories of non-autonomous maps, Thorsten Hüls	9
L.A.S. and negative Schwarzian derivative do not imply G.A.S. in Clark's equation, V. Jiménez López	10
Periodic point free continuous self–maps on graphs and surfaces, Jaume	11
Hyperbolicity in dissipative polygonal billiards, João Lopes Dias	12
Random homeomorphisms of an interval, Michał Misiurewicz	13
Translation arcs and Lyapunov stability in two dimensions, Rafael Ortega .	14
Discrete Dynamics and Spectral Theory, Christian Pötzsche	15
The Evolutionary Robustness of Forgiveness and Cooperation, Enrique Pujals	16
Double Standard Maps, Ana Rodrigues	17
Functional envelopes of dynamical systems – old and new results, Ľubomír Snoha	18
Monotone and slowly oscillating wavefronts of the KPP-Fisher differential-difference equation , Sergei Trofimchuk	19
Communications	21
Global Dynamics for Symmetric Planar Maps, Begoña Alarcón	23
On the Second Order Rational Difference Equation $x_{n+1} = \beta + \frac{1}{x_n x_{n-1}}$, Aija Anisimova	24

Initial Condition Problems for Second Order Rational Difference Equa-	
tions, Maruta Avotina	25



Nonlinear Volterra difference equations with time delays and their applications, Essam Awwad	26
On the structure of Lozi maps kneading curves, Diogo Baptista	27
P-recursive moment sequences of piecewise D-finite functions and Prony-type algebraic systems, Dmitry Batenkov	28
Discrete Dynamics on Grids with Choice, Katy E. Beeler	30
On the Second Order Quadratic Rational Difference Equation $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha}{(1+x_n)x_{n-1}}$, Inese Bula	31
Global bifurcation analysis and applications of a Liénard polynomial system, Valery A. Gaiko	32
On the existence of a weighted asymptotically constant solutions of Volterra difference equations of nonconvolution type, Karol Gajda	33
Continuous Limit in Dynamics with Choice, Sanja Gonzalez Živanovic	34
W-maps and harmonic averages, Paweł Góra	35
On some stochastic competition models, Göran Högnäs	36
Global Dynamics of Anti-Competitive Systems in the Plane, S. Kalabušić .	38
Study of Velocity Control Algorithm of Vehicle Platoon, E. Kita	39
Asymptotic behaviour of random tridiagonal Markov chains in biologi- cal applications, Peter E. Kloeden	41
Emden-Fowler type difference equations of the fourth-order, Jana Krejčová	42
On Rational Difference Equations with Periodic Coefficients, Zachary Kudlak	43
Efficient synchronization of one-dimensional chaotic quadratic maps coupled without symmetry, Rosário Laureano	44
On the generating function of the solution of a multidimensional differ- ence equation, Alexander Lyapin	46
Attractivity in Nonautonomous Periodic and Random Difference Equa- tions on Compact Spaces, G. Manjunath	48
On periodic solutions of 2–periodic Lyness difference equations, Víctor Mañosa	49
Properties of non-commuting cycles in matrix algebras iteration, A. Nascimento Baptista	50
Existence, uniqueness and attractivity of prime period two solution for a difference equation of exponential form, G. Papaschinopoulos	52



Asymptotics for second-order linear <i>q</i> -difference equations, Pavel Řehák .	53
Decoupling and simplifying of difference equations in the neighbour- hood of invariant manifold, Andrejs Reinfelds	54
Chaotic models stabilized by stochastic perturbations with nonzero expectation, Alexandra Rodkina	55
Chaos in discrete structured population models, A. Ruiz-Herrera	56
On the dynamics of two exponential type systems of difference equa- tions, C. J. Schinas	57
Existence of a bounded solution of Volterra difference equations via Darbo's fixed point theorem, Ewa Schmeidel	58
Oscillation theory of discrete symplectic systems with nonlinear depen- dence on the spectral parameter, Roman Šimon Hilscher	59
An answer to some problems on self-similar sets and the open set con- dition, Jakub Šotola	60
Transport Equation on Semidiscrete Domains, Petr Stehlík	61
Dynamical Classification of a family of Birational Maps via Dynamical Degree, Sundus Zafar	62

Special Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Difference Equations Organizers: I. Győri and M. Pituk

r	ganizers: I. Győri and M. Pituk	65
	New stability conditions for linear delay difference equations, Leonid Berezansky	67
	On Poincaré–Perron theorems for systems of linear difference equations, Sigrun Bodine	68
	Stability of difference equations with an infinite delay, Elena Braverman	69
	Admissibility of linear stochastic discrete Volterra operators applied to an affine stochastic convolution equation, John Daniels	70
	Positive and oscillating solutions of discrete linear equations with delay, J. Diblík	71
	Asymptotic behavior and oscillation of fourth-order difference equa- tions, Zuzana Došlá	73
	Periodic symplectic difference systems, Ondřej Došlý	74



Moving average network examples for asymptotically stable periodic orbits of strongly monotone maps, Barnabas M. Garay	75
Utilization of the circulant matrix theory in periodic higher order au- tonomous difference equations, István Győri	76
Asymptotic behavior of nonlinear difference equations, Ferenc Hartung	77
Sharp algebraic periodicity conditions for linear higher order difference equations, László Horváth	78
Asymptotic formula for solutions of Volterra difference equations with infinite delay, Hideaki Matsunaga	79
A continuous separation of tipe II. Applications to nonautonomous de- lay differential equations., Rafael Obaya	80
A variant of the Krein-Rutman theorem for Poincaré difference equa- tions, Mihály Pituk	82
Boundedness Character of solutions, Monotonic Character of solutions and Existence of Periodic Solutions of a Non-Autonomous Ratio- nal Difference Equation, Michael A. Radin	83
A QRT-system of two order one homographic difference equations: con- jugation to rotations, periods of periodic solutions, sensitiveness to initial conditions, Marc Rogalski	86
Averaging theorems for dynamic equations on time scales, Antonín Slavík	88
Oscillation theorems for second-order nonlinear difference equations of Euler type, Naoto Yamaoka	89
Turan-type inequalities and Taylor domination for solutions of linear ODE's, Yosef Yomdin	90

Special Session: Applications of Difference Equations to Biology Organizers: J. Cushing, S. Elaydi and J. Li

Drganizers: J. Cushing, S. Elaydi and J. Li	93
The dynamics of some contest-competition population models with the effect of harvesting and stocking, Ziyad AlSharawi	95
Geometric methods for global stability in the Ricker competition model, E. Cabral Balreira	96
Difference equations arising in evolutionary population dynamics, Jim M. Cushing	98



Allee effect in two interacting species, Saber Elaydi	100
Global asymptotically stable of a generalized discrete Lotka-Volterra competition system, Yoshihiro Hamaya	101
Local stability implies global stability in the Ricker competition model, Rafael Luís	102
Phase as determined by Correlation is irrelevant for Resonance versus Attenuation in the Beverton-Holt model, Robert J. Sacker	104

Special Session: Complex Dynamics Organizers: B. Devaney, N. Fagella and X. Jarque

rganizers: B. Devaney, N. Fagella and X. Jarque 10	05
Rigidity for non-recurrent exponential maps, Anna M. Benini	07
On the Tongues of a Degree 4 Blashcke Product, Jordi Canela	08
Conformal dimension and combinatorial modulus: applications to ra- tional maps, Matías Carrasco	.09
Perturbed Polynomial Maps with Small Perturbation, Daniel Cuzzocreo 11	10
Convergence of Rational Rays in Hyperbolic Components, Asli Deniz 11	11
Dynamics of different classes of meromorphic functions with a finite set of singular values, Patricia Domínguez-Soto	12
Quadratic Mating Discontinuity, Adam Epstein	13
On the existence of absorbing domains in Baker domains, N. Fagella 11	14
Homeomorphisms Between Julia Sets for Rational Maps, Elizabeth L. Fitzgibbon	15
Sierpiński curve Julia sets for quadratic rational maps, Antonio Garijo 11	16
A family of rational maps with buried Julia components, Sébastien Godillon 11	17
Dynamic Rays for Transcendental Holomorphic Self-maps of C*, David Martí Pete	18
A combinatorial invariant for escape time Sierpinski rational maps, Mónica Moreno Rocha	19
Some results on the size of escaping sets, Jörn Peter	20
Regularity and fast escaping points of entire functions, Phil Rippon 12	21
About rigidity, Pascale Rœsch	22



Singular perturbations in the quadratic family, Elizabeth D. Russell 12	23
Spiders web escaping sets, Gwyneth Stallard	24
Regluing and topological models for quadratic rational functions, Vladlen Timorin	25
Connectivity of Julia sets of meromorphic maps with Baker domains, Xavier Jarque	27
Some applications of approximation theory to complex dynamics, Anand P. Singh	28

Special Session: Chaotic Linear Dynamics Organizers: J. P. Bès, P. Oprocha and A. Peris

r	ganizers: J. P. Bès, P. Oprocha and A. Peris	129
	Graph theoretic structure of maps of the Cantor space, Nilson C. Bernardes Ju	r.131
	Li-Yorke and distributional chaos for linear operators, A. Bonilla	133
	Distributional chaos for the solutions of certain partial differential equa- tions, J.Alberto Conejero	134
	Chaotic solution for the Black-Scholes equation, Hassan Emamirad	135
	Hypercyclic and topologically mixing properties of certain classes of ab- stract time-fractional equations, Marko Kostić	136
	Distributional chaos for operators with full scrambled sets, Félix Martínez- Giménez	137
	Extension problem and fractional powers of generators, Pedro J. Miana	138
	Chaoticity and invariant measures for two population models, Ryszard Rudnicki	139

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics Organizers: S. Kolyada and Ľ. Snoha

Prganizers: S. Kolyada and Ľ. Snoha	141
Zeta functions and periodic entropy of nonautonomous tems, João Ferreira Alves	<mark>s dynamical sys-</mark> 143
Perturbations of autonomous systems and Lyapunov exact autonomous systems, Francisco Balibrea	xponents in non-
Iterated function systems on the circle, Pablo G. Barrientos	145



On the dynamics of Cournot–Puu oligopoly, J. S. Cánovas
Snap-back repellers in rational difference equations, Antonio Cascales 147
On cascades of elliptic periodic points in area-preserving maps with ho- moclinic tangencies, Marina Gonchenko
Dense orbits of flows and maps — misunderstandings and new results, Roman Hric
On some properties of discrete dynamical systems on dendrites, Zdeněk Kočan
Modified Lotka-Volterra maps and their interior periodic points, Peter Maličký
Average shadowing properties: a few sufficient conditions, P. Oprocha 153
Combination of scaling exponents and geometry of the action of renor- malization operators, Nikola P. Petrov
Asymptotic recurrence quantification analysis, Vladimír Špitalský 156
Minimal sets and free intervals, Zuzana Uličná
On sensitivity and some classes of induced maps, Sergii Kolyada 158

Special Session: Economic Dynamics and Control Organizers: A. A. Pinto and A. Yannacopoulos

)rg	Drganizers: A. A. Pinto and A. Yannacopoulos	
	Anosov diffeomorphisms on surfaces, João P. Almeida	161
	On the convergence to Walrasian prices in random matching Edgewor- thian economies, M. Ferreira	163
	Stability of the Cournot equilibrium for a Cournot oligopoly model with <i>n</i> competitors, Marek Lampart	164
	An economical model for dumping in a duopoly market, José Martins	166
	Cournot duopoly games with heterogeneous players, Diana A. Mendes	167
	Rational Bubbles and Economic Policy, Vivaldo M. Mendes	168
	Strategic optimization in R&D Investment, B. Oliveira	169
	Resort Pricing and Bankruptcy, Alberto A. Pinto	170
	Dynamics of Human decisions, R. Soeiro	171
	Timing structures in economics and games, Petr Stehlík	172



Neimark-Sacker bifurcation in a discrete-time Goodwin model, Malgo- rzata Guzowska	. 173
Index of Speakers	175
Index of Authors	177

Plenary Lectures



Mandelpinski Necklaces for Singularly Perturbed Rational Maps

ROBERT L. DEVANEY

Department of Mathematics, Boston University, Boston, MA USA

E-mail address: bob@bu.edu *URL*: http://math.bu.edu/people/bob

In this lecture we consider rational maps of the form $z^n + C/z^n$ where n > 2. When *C* is small, the Julia sets for these maps are Cantor sets of circles and the corresponding region in the *C*-plane (the parameter plane) is the McMullen domain. We shall show that the McMullen domain is surrounded by infinitely many simple closed curves called Mandelpinski necklaces. The k^{th} necklace contains exactly $(n-2)n^k + 1$ parameters that are the centers of baby Mandelbrot sets and the same number of parameters that are centers of Sierpinski holes, i.e., disks in the parameter plane where the corresponding Julia sets are Sierpinski curves (sets that are homeomorphic to the Sierpinski carpet fractal). We shall also briefly describe other interesting structures in the parameter plane.



Application of singularity theory to the global dynamics of population models

SABER ELAYDI¹, EDUARDO BALREIRA², RAFAEL LUÍS³

¹ Department of Mathematics, Trinity University, USA. E-mail address: selaydi@trinity.edu URL: http://ramanujan.math.trinity.edu/selaydi/

² Department of Mathematics, Trinity University, USA.

³ Center of Mathematical Analysis, Geometry, and Dynamical Systems, Instituto Superior Tecnico, Technical University of Lisbon, Lisboa, Portugal.

The notion of critical curves of two dimensional maps has been around since its introduction by Mira in 1964. The main objective there was to find an absorbing region of the map. Using singularity theory of Hassler Whitney as well as some topological and geometrical results, we will establish the mathematical foundation of Mira's results. The new established theory will be applied to competition models to show that local stability implies global stability. Then we will put forward a new conjecture which says that for proper excellent noninvertible maps (Whitney) with invariant boundary, local stability implies global stability.

- [1] Open problems in some competition models, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, Volume 17, No. 12 (2011), pp. 1873-1877 (with Luis).
- [2] Stability of a Ricker-type competition model and the competitive exclusion principle, Journal of Biological Dynamics, Vol. 5, No. 6 (2011), pp. 636-660 (with Luis and Oliveira).
- [3] Bifurcation and Invariant Manifolds of the Logistic Competition Model, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, Vol. 17, No. 12 (2011), pp. 1851-1872 (with Guzowska and Luis).
- [4] C. Mira, Chaotic Dynamics, World Scientific, Singapore, 1987.



[5] H. Whitney, On singularities of mappings of Euclidean spaces, mapping of the plane into itself, Annals of Math. 62(3), 1955, 374-410.



Different approaches to the global periodicity problem

ARMENGOL GASULL

Departament de Matemàtiques, Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona, 08193–Bellaterra, Barcelona SPAIN E-mail address: gasull@mat.uab.cat

URL: http://www.gsd.uab.cat/personal/agasull

Let *F* be a real or complex *n*-dimensional map. It is said that *F* is globally periodic if there exists some $p \in \mathbb{N}^+$ such that $F^p(x) = x$ for all *x* for which F^p is well defined, where $F^k = F \circ F^{k-1}, k \ge 2$. The minimal *p* satisfying this property is called the *period* of *F*. One problem of current interest is the following: Given a *m*-dimensional parametric family of maps, say F_{λ} , determine all the values of λ such that F_{λ} is globally periodic, together with their corresponding periods, see for instance [1, 7, 10]. Perhaps the paradigmatic example is the 1-parameter family of maps corresponding to the Lyness recurrences

$$F_{\lambda}(x,y) = \left(y, \frac{\lambda+y}{x}\right),$$

for which the solution is well known. The globally periodic cases are F_1 and F_0 and the corresponding periods 5 and 6.

Some people of our research group approaches to the above problem from different points of view. The aim of this talk is to show the techniques that we are using and some of the results that we have obtained. More specifically we approach to it using the following tools:

- Proving its equivalence with the complete integrability of the dynamical system induced by the map *F*, see [3].
- Using the local linearization given by the Montgomery-Bochner Theorem for characterizing the periodic cases in same families of maps, see [5, 6, 11].
- Using the theory of normal forms, see [4].



• Using properties of the so called *vanishing sums* that are polynomial identities with integer coefficients involving only roots of the unity, see [2, 9].

We will pay special attention to the case where F_{λ} is a family of rational maps, depending also rationally of the multiparameter λ . Other cases on which we will concentrate are the maps of the form

$$F(x_1, \ldots, x_k) = (x_2, x_3, \ldots, x_k, f(x_1, x_2, \ldots, x_k)),$$

that correspond to autonomous k-th order difference equations, and the maps coming from non-autonomous periodic difference equations.

As an example of this last situation consider the 2-periodic Lyness recurrence

$$x_{n+2} = \frac{a_n + x_{n+1}}{x_n}$$
, where $a_n = \begin{cases} a & \text{for } n = 2\ell + 1, \\ b & \text{for } n = 2\ell, \end{cases}$

with $\lambda = (a, b) \in \mathbb{C}^2$. Studying the family of maps

$$F_{a,b}(x,y) = \left(\frac{a+y}{x}, \frac{a+bx+y}{xy}\right),$$

which describes its behavior, we prove that the only globally periodic recurrences with $a \neq b$ are given by $a = a^* := (-1 \pm i \sqrt{3})/2$ and $b = b^* := \overline{a^*} = 1/a^*$ and are 10-periodic. In fact $F_{a^*,b^*}^5 = \text{Id}$. This result can also be obtained following the approach developed in [12] that gives all the globally periodic QRT-maps, see also [8].

- F. Balibrea and A. Linero. Some new results and open problems on periodicity of difference equations, Iteration theory (ECIT '04), 15–38, Grazer Math. Ber., 350, Karl-Franzens-Univ. Graz, Graz, 2006.
- [2] J. H. Conway and A. J. Jones. *Trigonometric Diophantine equations (On vanishing sums of roots of unity)*, Acta Arith. **30** (1976), 229–240.
- [3] A. Cima, A. Gasull and V. Mañosa. *Global periodicity and complete integrability of discrete dynamical systems*, J. Difference Equ. Appl. **12** (2006), 697–716.



- [4] A. Cima, A. Gasull and V. Mañosa. *Global periodicity conditions for maps and recurrences via normal forms*. Preprint May 2012.
- [5] A. Cima, A. Gasull and F. Mañosas. *Global linearization of periodic difference equations*, Discrete Contin. Dyn. Syst. **32** (2012), 1575–1595.
- [6] A. Cima, A. Gasull and F. Mañosas. *Simple examples of planar involutions with non-global montgomery-Bochner linearizations*. To appear in Appl. Math. Lett.
- [7] M. Csörnyei and M. Laczkovich. *Some periodic and non–periodic recursions*, Monatshefte für Mathematik **132** (2001), 215–236.
- [8] J. J. Duistermaat. *Discrete Integrable Systems: QRT Maps and Elliptic Surfacesr*. Springer Monographs in Mathematics. Springer, New York, 2010.
- [9] A. Gasull, V. Mañosa and X. Xarles. *Vanishing sums and globally periodic recurrences*. In preparation.
- [10] E. A. Grove and G. Ladas. *Periodicities in Nonlinear Difference Equations Equations*. Advances in discrete Math. and Appl, vol. 4. Chapman & Hall/CRC Press, Boca Raton FL, 2005.
- [11] D. Montgomery and L. Zippin. *Topological Transformation Groups*, Interscience, New-York (1955).
- [12] T. Tsuda. *Integrable mappings via rational elliptic surfaces*. J. Phys. A: Math. Gen. **37** (2004), 2721–2730.



Homoclinic trajectories of non-autonomous maps

THORSTEN HÜLS

Department of Mathematics, Bielefeld University, POB 100131, D-33501 Bielefeld, Germany

> *E-mail address*: huels@math.uni-bielefeld.de *URL*: http://www.math.uni-bielefeld.de/~huels

For time-dependent dynamical systems of the form

$$x_{n+1} = f_n(x_n), \quad n \in \mathbb{Z},\tag{1}$$

homoclinic trajectories are the non-autonomous analog of homoclinic orbits from the autonomous world, cf. [1]. More precisely, two trajectories $(x_n)_{n \in \mathbb{Z}}$, $(y_n)_{n \in \mathbb{Z}}$ of (1) are called homoclinic to each other, if

$$\lim_{n \to \pm \infty} \|x_n - y_n\| = 0.$$

Two boundary value problems are introduced, the solution of which yield finite approximations of these trajectories. Under certain hyperbolicity assumptions, we prove existence, uniqueness and error estimates.

Extending these ideas, we also propose adequate notions for heteroclinic orbits in non-autonomous systems, see [2].

The resulting algorithms and error estimates are illustrated by an example.

- [1] Thorsten Hüls; *Homoclinic trajectories of non-autonomous maps*, J. Difference Equ. Appl., 17(1):9–31, 2011.
- [2] Thorsten Hüls and Yongkui Zou; On computing heteroclinic trajectories of nonautonomous maps, Discrete Contin. Dyn. Syst. Ser. B 17(1):79–99, 2012.



L.A.S. and negative Schwarzian derivative do not imply G.A.S. in Clark's equation

V. JIMÉNEZ LÓPEZ¹, E. PARREÑO SÁNCHEZ²

¹ Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad de Murcia, Campus de Espinardo, 30100 Murcia, SPAIN. E-mail address: vjimenez@um.es URL: http://www.um.es/docencia/vjimenez/

² Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad de Murcia, Campus de Espinardo, 30100 Murcia, SPAIN. E-mail address: e.parrenosanchez@um.es

It has been conjectured for Clark's equation $x_{n+1} = \alpha x_n + (1 - \alpha)h(x_{n-k})$ that a locally attracting fixed point is also globally attracting whenever h is a unimodal or decreasing map with negative Schwarzian derivative [1, 2, 3, 4]. In this talk we present some counterexamples to the conjecture when $k \ge 3$. One such counterexample is remarkably provided by Sheperd's function

$$h(x) = \frac{px}{1+x^q}$$

when the positive parameters p, q are appropriately chosen.

- [1] H. A. El-Morshedy and E. Liz, *Convergence to equilibria in discrete population models*, J. Difference Equ. Appl. **11** (2005), 117–131.
- [2] I. Győri and S. Trofimchuk, *Global attractivity and persistence in discrete population model, J. Differ. Equations Appl.* **6** (2000), 647–665.
- [3] E. Liz, Global stability and bifurcations in a delayed discrete population model, Int. J. Qual. Theory Differ. Equ. Appl. **3** (2009), 66–80.
- [4] C. Wang y J. Wei, Bifurcation analysis on a discrete model of Nicholson's blowflies, J. Difference Equ. Appl. 14 (2008), 737–746.



Periodic point free continuous self–maps on graphs and surfaces

JAUME LLIBRE

Departament de Matemàtiques, Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona, Bellaterra, 08193–Barcelona, Catalonia, Spain

E-mail address: jllibre@mat.uab.cat

Let \mathbb{M} be either a connected compact graph, or a connected compact surface with or without boundary, orientable or not.

Using the action on the homology of a continuous map, we characterize the continuous maps $f : \mathbb{M} \to \mathbb{M}$ without periodic points, i.e. the so called *periodic point free* continuous self-maps of \mathbb{M} .

This talk will be based on the article [1].

References

[1] J. Llibre, *Periodic point free continuous self–maps on graphs and surfaces*, to appear in Topology and its Applications.



Hyperbolicity in dissipative polygonal billiards

JOÃO LOPES DIAS

Departamento de Matemática and CEMAPRE, ISEG Universidade Técnica de Lisboa Rua do Quelhas 6 1200-781 Lisboa Portugal

E-mail address: jldias@iseg.utl.pt *URL:* http://www.iseg.utl.pt/~jldias

A billiard is a mechanical system consisting of a point-particle moving freely inside a planar region and being reflected off the perimeter of the region according to some reflection law. The specular reflection law is the familiar rule that prescribes the equality of the angles of incidence and reflection. Billiards with this reflection law are conservative systems, and as such are models for physical systems with elastic collisions. For this reason and their intrinsic mathematical interest, conservative billiards have been extensively studied. Much less studied are dissipative billiards, which originate from reflection laws requiring that the angle of reflection is a contraction of the angle of incidence. These billiards do not preserve the Liouville measure, and therefore can model physical systems with non-elastic collisions. We will present the case of polygonal billiard tables, whose dynamics differs strikingly from the one of its conservative counterparts. Joint work with G. del Magno, P. Duarte, J. P. Gaivão and D. Pinheiro.



Random homeomorphisms of an interval

LLUÍS ALSEDÀ¹, MICHAŁ MISIUREWICZ²

¹ Departament de Matemàtiques, Edifici Cc, Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona, 08913 Cerdanyola del Vallès, Barcelona, Spain. E-mail address: alseda@mat.uab.cat URL: http://mat.uab.cat/~alseda/ ² Department of Mathematical Sciences, IUPUI, 402 N. Blackford Street, Indianapolis, IN 46202, USA. E-mail address: mmisiure@math.iupui.edu URL: http://www.math.iupui.edu/~mmisiure/

We investigate homeomorphisms of a compact interval, applied randomly. We consider this system as a skew product with the two-sided Bernoulli shift in the base. If on the open interval there is a metric in which almost all maps are contractions, then (with mild additional assumptions) there exists a global pullback attractor, which is a graph of a function from the base to the fiber. It is also a forward attractor. However, the value of this function depends only on the past, so when we take the one-sided shift in the base, it disappears. We illustrate those phenomena on an example, where there are two piecewise linear homeomorphisms, one moving points to the right and the other one to the left.



Translation arcs and Lyapunov stability in two dimensions

RAFAEL ORTEGA

Departamento de Matemática Aplicada, Universidad de Granada, 18071 Granada Spain

E-mail address: rortega@ugr.es *URL:* http://www.ugr.es/~ecuadif/fuentenueva.htm

Given a closed orbit γ of a system of differential equations in the plane

 $\dot{x} = X(x), \ x \in \mathbb{R}^2,$

the index of the vector field X around γ is one. This classical result has a counterpart in the theory of discrete systems in the plane. Consider the equation

$$x_{n+1} = h(x_n), \ x_n \in \mathbb{R}^2,$$

where *h* is an orientation-preserving homeomorphism and assume that there is a recurrent orbit that is not a fixed point. Then there exists a Jordan curve γ such that the fixed point index of *h* around this curve is one. The proof is based on the theory of translation arcs, initiated by Brouwer. This talk is dedicated to discuss some consequences of the above result, specially in stability theory. We will compute the indexes associated to a stable invariant object and show that Lyapunov stability implies persistence (in two dimensions). The invariant sets under consideration will be fixed points, periodic orbits and Cantor sets. The more recent results on Cantor sets are joint work with Alfonso Ruiz-Herrera.



Discrete Dynamics and Spectral Theory

CHRISTIAN PÖTZSCHE

Alpen-Adria Universität Klagenfurt Universitätsstraße 65–67 9020 Klagenfurt Austria

URL: http://www.uni-klu.ac.at/~cpoetzsc

When dealing with nonautonomous difference equations, it is well-known that eigenvalues yield no information on the stability or hyperbolicity of linear systems. We therefore review several more appropriate spectral notions first.

Our particular focus is on the *dichotomy spectrum* (also called *dynamical* or *Sacker-Sell spectrum*). It is a crucial notion in the theory of dynamical systems, since it contains information on stability, as well as appropriate robustness properties. However, recent applications in nonautonomous bifurcation theory showed that a detailed insight into the fine structure of this spectral notion is necessary. On this basis, we explore a helpful connection between the dichotomy spectrum and operator theory. It relates the asymptotic behavior of linear nonautonomous difference equations to the point, surjectivity and Fredholm spectra of weighted shifts. This link yields several dynamically meaningful subsets of the dichotomy spectrum, which not only allows to classify and detect bifurcations, but also simplifies proofs for results on the long term behavior of difference equations with explicitly time-dependent right-hand side.

- [1] B. Aulbach and N. Van Minh, *The concept of spectral dichotomy for linear difference equations II*, J. Difference Equ. Appl. **2** (1996), 251–262.
- [2] C. Pötzsche, *Fine structure of the dichotomy spectrum*, Integral Equations and Operator Theory **73** (2012), no. 1, 107–151.
- [3] R.J. Sacker and G.R. Sell, *A spectral theory for linear differential systems*, J. Differ. Equations **27** (1978), 320–358.



The Evolutionary Robustness of Forgiveness and Cooperation

ENRIQUE PUJALS

IMPA, Rio de Janeiro, Brasil

E-mail address: enrique@impa.br

A fundamental problem in evolutionary game theory is to explain how cooperation can emerge in a population of self-interested individuals as typically occurs in the prisoner dilemma. Axelrod attributes the reason of emergence of cooperation to the shadow of the future: the likelihood and importance of future interaction.

Since Axelrod, one approach to test the efficiency or robustness of a strategy and further to derive optimal strategies is the evolutionary dynamics (a processes where individuals with low scores die and those with high scores flourish).

A natural question is which strategies or type of strategies are selected by the dynamics equations; in other words, which are the natural attractors and which type of strategies are uniformly selected independently of the strategy set.

We will show that in the context of the evolutionary dynamics associated to the prisoner dilemma, it is possible to identify strategies with uniform local basin of attraction independent of any initial population (provided that "the shadow of the future' is relevant and "mistakes are allowed'). It also proved, as was conjectured by Axelrod, that those strategies are "nice, retaliating, and forgiving".



Double Standard Maps

ANA RODRIGUES

(in collaboration with M. Benedicks and M. Misiurewicz)

Matematiska Institutionen KTH SE-100 44 Stockholm Sweden

E-mail address: amdsar@kth.se

We will investigate a two-parameter family of maps of the circle into itself, which we call Double Standard Maps. They are non-invertible analogues of the famous Arnold Standard Maps. I will present some features of this family and analyze the behaviour of their iterates.



Functional envelopes of dynamical systems – old and new results

L'UBOMÍR SNOHA

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Matej Bel University, Tajovského 40, 974 01 Banská Bystrica, Slovakia

E-mail address: Lubomir.Snoha@umb.sk

The notion of the functional envelope of a dynamical system was introduced by J. Auslander, S. Kolyada and the speaker in 2007. They were inspired mainly by the previous works of A. N. Sharkovsky and his collaborators, and by the notion of the density index of a topological semigroup.

If (X, f) is a dynamical system given by a compact metric space X and a continuous map $f : X \to X$, then the functional envelope of (X, f) is the dynamical system $(S(X), F_f)$ whose phase space S(X) is the space of all continuous selfmaps of X and the map $F_f : S(X) \to S(X)$ is defined by $F_f(\varphi) = f \circ \varphi$ for any $\varphi \in S(X)$.

In the first part of the talk we will recall the most interesting facts known on the dynamics of functional envelopes. Then we will speak on recent results due to T. Das, E. Shah and the speaker.



Monotone and slowly oscillating wavefronts of the KPP-Fisher differential-difference equation

SERGEI TROFIMCHUK

(in collaboration with Adrian Gomez and Karel Hasik)

Instituto de Matemática y Física, Universidad de Talca, Casilla 747– Talca, Chile and Mathematical Institute, Silesian University, 746 01– Opava, Czech Republic E-mail address: trofimch@inst-mat.utalca.cl

We present recent results on traveling fronts (i.e. positive heteroclinic solutions) for the Kolmogorov-Petrovskii-Piskunov-Fisher differential-difference equation. We discuss such aspects as the existence, uniqueness, approximation, monotonicity and oscillatory properties of the traveling fronts. In the 'non-monotone' part of the work, our approach is based on the construction and subsequent analysis of some auxiliary one-dimensional maps possessing the negative Schwarz derivative. This connects the problem of the existence of traveling fronts to the famous Wright's 3/2-stability theorem and Wright's global stability conjecture.

- E. Liz, M. Pinto, G. Robledo, V. Tkachenko and S. Trofimchuk, Wright type delay differential equations with negative Schwarzian, Discrete Contin. Dyn. Syst. A 9 (2003) 309–321.
- [2] T. Faria and S. Trofimchuk, *Positive travelling fronts for reaction-diffusion systems* with distributed delay, Nonlinearity, **23** (2010) 2457–2481.
- [3] A. Gomez and S. Trofimchuk, *Monotone traveling wavefronts of the KPP-Fisher delayed equation*, J. Differential Equations, **250** (2011) 1767–1787.
- [4] K. Hasik and S. Trofimchuk, *Slowly oscillating wavefronts of the KPP-Fisher delayed equation*, submitted (2012).

Communications



Global Dynamics for Symmetric Planar Maps

Begoña Alarcón

(in collaboration with Sofia B. S. D. Castro and Isabel S. Labouriau)

Department of Mathematics, University of Oviedo C. Calvo Sotelo s/n CP: 33007, Oviedo SPAIN E-mail address: alarconbegona@uniovi.es URL: http://www.unioviedo.es/alarconb

We consider sufficient conditions to determine the global dynamics for equivariant maps of the plane with a unique fixed point which is also hyperbolic. When the map is equivariant under the action of a compact Lie group, it is possible to describe the local dynamics and – from this – also the global dynamics. In particular, if the group contains a reflection, there is a line invariant by the map. This allows us to use results based on the theory of free homeomorphisms to describe the global dynamical behaviour. In the absence of reflections, we use equivariant examples to show that global dynamics may not follow from local dynamics near the unique fixed point. This talk is based on the papers [1] and [2].

- B. Alarcón, S.B.S.D. Castro and I.S. Labouriau, *Global Dynamics for Symmetric Planar Maps*, Preprint CMUP 2012–12. (http://cmup.fc.up.pt/cmup/v2/frames/publications.htm)
- [2] B. Alarcón, S.B.S.D Castro and I. Labouriau, A Z_n-symmetric local but not global attractor, Preprint CMUP 2011–34. (http://cmup.fc.up.pt/cmup/v2/frames/publications.htm)



On the Second Order Rational Difference Equation $x_{n+1} = \beta + \frac{1}{x_n x_{n-1}}$

AIJA ANISIMOVA

Department of Mathematics, University of Latvia, Rīga, Latvia E-mail address: aija-anisimova@inbox.lv

The author investigates the local and global stability character, the periodic nature, and the boundedness of solutions of one of the second-order rational difference equation in form

$$x_{n+1} = \beta + \frac{1}{x_n x_{n-1}}, \quad n = 0, 1, ...,$$
(1)

with parameter β and with arbitrary initial conditions such that the denominator is always positive. In the paper [1] are given several open problems and conjectures about these equations:

Conjecture 8.1. Every positive solution of (1) has a finite limit.

Open Problem 8.2. Assume that β is a real number. Determine the set *G* of real initial values x_{-1} , x_0 for which the equation (1) is well defined for all $n \ge 0$, and investigate the character of solutions of (1) with x_{-1} , $x_0 \in G$.

In this talk the author would like to pose some ideas how to solve these problems.

References

[1] A.M.Amleh, E.Camouzis, G.Ladas, *On the Dynamics of a Rational Difference Equations. Part 1*, Int.J.Difference equation **3** (1), 1–35, 2008.

^{*}This work is partially supported by the project of European Social Fund "Support for doctoral studies at the Latvian University" No. 2009/0138/1DP/1.1.2.1.2/09/IPIA/VIAA/004.



Initial Condition Problems for Second Order Rational Difference Equations

MARUTA AVOTINA

Department of Mathematics, University of Latvia, Riga, Latvia E-mail address: marutaavotina@inbox.lv

Often initial conditions of difference equations have a great influence on existence and behavior of solution. We investigate the initial value effect on the behavior of solutions of second order rational difference equations, for example, in [1, Open Problem 2.9.4]. is as follows: It is known that all solutions of difference equations

$$x_{n+1} = \frac{1+x_{n-1}}{1+x_n}$$
 and $x_{n+1} = 1 + \frac{x_{n-1}}{x_n}$, $n = 0, 1, 2, \dots$ (1)

converges to a solution with period two: ..., ϕ , ψ , ϕ , ψ , Determine ϕ and ψ in terms of the initial conditions x_{-1} and x_0 . Although the given equations seem very simple, however it is very complicated even to calculate numerically some terms of the solution sequence (for example, if we take first equation and initial values $x_{-1} = x_0 = 2$ we get a solution sequence: 2; 2; 1; $\frac{3}{2}$; $\frac{4}{5}$; $\frac{25}{18}$; $\frac{162}{215}$; $\frac{9245}{6786}$; ...).

Other problems connected with initial values are problems where the set of all initial points $(x_{-1}, x_0) \in R \times R$ through which the given equation is well defined for all $n \ge 0$ has to be gained.

On the basis of obtained results and computational experiments some ideas about initial value problems will be discussed.

References

 M.R.S. Kulenovic, G. Ladas, Dynamics of Second Order Rational Difference Equations. With Open Problems and Conjectures., Chapman and Hall/CRC., USA, 2002.

^{*}This research was supported by the University of Latvia under ESF Project No. 2009/0223/1DP/1.1.1.2.0/09/APIA/VIAA/008.



Nonlinear Volterra difference equations with time delays and their applications

ESSAM AWWAD

Department of Mathematics, University of Pannonia, 8200–Veszprém, Hungary

E-mail address: esam_mh@yahoo.com

This article studies the boundedness property of the solutions of nonlinear Volterra difference equations with time delays.

The most important result of this paper is a simple new criterion, which unifies and extends several earlier results (see [1, 2, 3]). We show some results on the critical case for the solutions of Volterra difference equations with time delay to be bounded. Examples are also given to illustrate our main theorems.

It is a joint work with Prof. István Győri and Prof. Ferenc Hartung, Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Information Technology, University of Pannonia, Veszprém, Hungary.

- J.A.D. Appleby, I. Győri, D. Reynolds, On exact convergence rates for solutions of linear systems of Volterra difference equations, J. Diff. Equ. Appl. 12(12) (2006) 1257–1275.
- [2] I. Győri, E. Awwad, On the boundedness of the solutions in nonlinear discrete *Volterra difference equations*, Adv. Difference Equ., 2012, 2012:2.
- [3] I. Győri, D. Reynolds, *Sharp conditions for boundedness in linear discrete Volterra equations*, J. Diff. Equ. Appl. **15** (2009) 1151–1164


On the structure of Lozi maps kneading curves

<u>DIOGO BAPTISTA¹</u>, RICARDO SEVERINO²

¹ School of Technology and Management, Polytechnic Institute of Leiria, Leiria, Portugal CIMA, University of Évora, Évora, Portugal. E-mail address: diogo.baptista@ipleiria.pt

² CIMA, University of Évora, Évora, Portugal. E-mail address: ricardo@math.uminho.pt

It is well known that the family of Lozi maps plays a key role in our understanding of plane dynamics. Being a two-parameter piecewise linear plane family of maps, therefore a very simple framework to study and understand dynamics on the plane, they are also close to the one-parameter family of tent maps of the interval. Thus, in principle, it seems that we have the chance to study why certain results known for one-dimension dynamics are not true when the dimension of the phase space is larger than one. With this work, we study the relationship between kneading sequences of tent maps, the topological symbolic invariants introduced by Milnor and Thurston, [2], for modal maps of the interval, with Lozi maps kneading sequences, introduced by Yutaka Ishii [3]. Building on the notion of kneading curves on the parameter space, introduced in [1], we characterize the structure of these curves for finite, periodic and aperiodic unimodal kneading sequences. Our results show that there is some strong connection between Lozi dynamics and the dynamics of tent maps.

- [1] D. Baptista, R. Severino, S. Vinagre, *Kneading curves for Lozi maps*, In: Iteration Theory (ECIT '08), Grazer Math. Ber., 2009, 6-14.
- [2] J. Milnor and W. Thurston, *Iterated maps of the interval*, Dynamical. Systems (Maryland 1986-87), edit. J.C.Alexander, Lect. Notes Math, 1988, 465-563.
- [3] Y. Ishii, *Towards a kneading theory for Lozi mappings I: A solution of pruning front conjecture and the first tagency problem*, Nonlinearity **10** (1997), 731-747.



P-recursive moment sequences of piecewise D-finite functions and Prony-type algebraic systems

<u>DMITRY BATENKOV¹</u>, GAL BINYAMINI², YOSEF YOMDIN³

¹ Department of Matematics, Weizmann Institute of Science, Rehovot 76100, Israel. E-mail address: dima.batenkov@weizmann.ac.il URL: http://www.wisdom.weizmann.ac.il/~dmitryb

² Department of Matematics, Weizmann Institute of Science, Rehovot 76100, Israel. E-mail address: gal.binyamini@weizmann.ac.il

³ Department of Matematics, Weizmann Institute of Science, Rehovot 76100, Israel. E-mail address: yosef.yomdin@weizmann.ac.il URL: http://www.wisdom.weizmann.ac.il/~yomdin

Algebraic Signal Sampling, an active area of research in Signal Processing, aims at reconstructing an unknown finite-parametric model from a finite number of measurements such as power moments or Fourier coefficients ([2, 3, 4, 6, 7] and references therein). In many cases under consideration, the measurement sequence is P-recursive ([11]), so that the reconstruction process essentially amounts to recovery of the unknown coefficients of the corresponding recurrence relation. Important practical questions such as conditions for unique reconstruction and accuracy (stability) of solutions are directly expressible in the language of these recurrences, their perturbations and the corresponding algebraic systems [1] (so-called "Prony-type" - [8, 9]).

Continuing our previous work [2] on moment inversion for piecewise D-finite ([10]) functions, we have recently obtained a non-trivial upper bound on the number of measurements needed for unique reconstruction in terms of the ODE itself in some "singular" cases. The particular structure of the corresponding finite difference operator played a major role in the proof.

In addition to the above result and related questions, we will also discuss reconstruction of certain 2D domains and the corresponding recurrences [5].



- [1] D.Batenkov, Y.Yomdin, On the accuracy of solving confluent Prony systems, *submitted*, *arXiv*:1106.1137.
- [2] D.Batenkov, Moment inversion problem for piecewise *D*-finite functions, *In-verse Problems*, 25(10):105001, October 2009.
- [3] Batenkov, D., Yomdin, Y., Algebraic Fourier reconstruction of piecewise smooth functions, *Mathematics of Computation*, **81**(2012), 277–318.
- [4] D.Batenkov, N.Sarig, Y.Yomdin, An "algebraic" reconstruction of piecewisesmooth functions from integral measurements, Journal of Functional Differential Equations, Vol. 19, No.1-2, pp.9–26, 2012.
- [5] D.Batenkov, V.Golubyatnikov, Y.Yomdin, Reconstruction of Planar Domains from Partial Integral Measurements, Proc. Complex Analysis & Dynamical Systems V, 2011.
- [6] P.L. Dragotti, M. Vetterli and T. Blu, Sampling Moments and Reconstructing Signals of Finite Rate of Innovation: Shannon Meets Strang-Fix, *IEEE Transactions on Signal Processing*, Vol. 55, Nr. 5, Part 1, pp. 1741-1757, 2007.
- [7] B. Gustafsson, Ch. He, P. Milanfar, M. Putinar, Reconstructing planar domains from their moments. *Inverse Problems* **16** (2000), no. 4, 1053–1070.
- [8] Y.I. Lyubich. The Sylvester-Ramanujan System of Equations and The Complex Power Moment Problem. *The Ramanujan Journal*, **8**(1):23–45, 2004.
- [9] R. Prony, Essai experimental et analytique. J. Ec. Polytech.(Paris), 2:24–76, 1795.
- [10] R.P. Stanley. Differentiably finite power series. *European J. Combin*, 1(2):175–188, 1980.
- [11] D. Zeilberger. A holonomic systems approach to special functions identities. *J. Comput. Appl. Math.*, 32(3):321–368, 1990.



Discrete Dynamics on Grids with Choice

<u>Katy E. Beeler¹</u>, Kenneth S. Berenhaut², Peter S. Barr³

¹ Department of Mathematics, Wake Forest University, 27109–North Carolina, USA. E-mail address: beelk11@wfu.edu

² Department of Mathematics, Wake Forest University, 27109–North Carolina, USA. E-mail address: berenhks@wfu.edu

URL: http://www.math.wfu.edu/Faculty/berenhaut.html

³ Department of Mathematics, Wake Forest University, 27109–North Carolina, USA. *E-mail address:* barrps12@wfu.edu

In this talk we consider deterministic movement on graphs, integrating local information, memory and choice at nodes. The research is motivated by recent work on deterministic random walks and applications in multi-agent systems. Several results regarding passing messages through toroidal grids are discussed, as well as some open questions.



On the Second Order Quadratic Rational Difference Equation $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha}{(1+x_n)x_{n-1}}$

INESE BULA

Department of Mathematics of University of Latvia and Institute of Mathematics and Computer Science of University of Latvia Rīga, Latvia

E-mail address: ibula@lanet.lv

We investigate the periodic nature of solutions of a rational difference equation

$$x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha}{(1+x_n)x_{n-1}}.$$
 (1)

Classically rational difference equations are explored with nonnegative parameters and nonnegative initial conditions. We show that the rational difference equation (1) with negative initial conditions or/and with negative parameter α have different behaviour from equations with nonnegative parameters and with nonnegative initial conditions.

We explore [1, Open Problem 3.3] that requires to determine all periodic solutions of equation (1). We can assert that, for example, for difference equation (1) with parameter $\alpha > 0$ does not exist initial conditions $x_{-1} > 0$ and $x_0 > 0$ such that solution of equation (1) is periodic with prime period 5 but if $\alpha < 0$, then exist initial conditions $x_{-1} = x_0 > 0$ such that solution of equation (1) is periodic with prime period 5 (for example, $\alpha = -\frac{4}{3}$ and $x_{-1} = x_0 = 1$). Period 7 is first period for which exists nonnegative parameter α and nonnegative initial conditions (for example, $\alpha \approx 1,053218$ and $x_{-1} = 5, x_0 = 2$).

References

[1] A.M. Amleh, E. Camouzis, G. Ladas, *On the Dynamics of a Rational Difference Equations, Part 1*, International Journal of Difference Equations **3** (2008), 1-35.

^{*}This work was partially supported by the Latvian Council of Science research project 09.1220.



Global bifurcation analysis and applications of a Liénard polynomial system

VALERY A. GAIKO

United Institute of Informatics Problems, National Academy of Sciences of Belarus, Leonid Beda Str. 6-4, Minsk 220040, Belarus

E-mail address: valery.gaiko@gmail.com

We consider Liénard polynomial systems. There are many examples in the natural sciences and technology in which Liénard systems are applied. They are often used to model either mechanical or electrical, or biomedical systems, and in the literature, many systems are transformed into Liénard type to aid in the investigations. They can be used, e.g., in certain mechanical systems, when modeling wind rock phenomena and surge in jet engines. Such systems can be also used to model resistor-inductor-capacitor circuits with non-linear circuit elements. Recently a Liénard system has been shown to describe the operation of an optoelectronics circuit that uses a resonant tunnelling diode to drive a laser diode to make an optoelectronic voltage controlled oscillator. There are also some examples of using Liénard type systems in ecology and epidemiology.

In this talk, we discuss the general Liénard polynomial system with an arbitrary (but finite) number of singular points in the form

$$\dot{x} = y, \quad \dot{y} = -x \left(1 + \beta_1 x + \ldots + \beta_{2l} x^{2l}\right) + y \left(\alpha_0 + \alpha_1 x + \ldots + \alpha_{2k} x^{2k}\right). \tag{1}$$

Applying a canonical system with field rotation parameters,

$$x = y,$$

$$\dot{y} = -x \left(1 + \beta_1 x \pm x^2 + \ldots + \beta_{2l-1} x^{2l-1} \pm x^{2l}\right)$$
(2)

$$+ y \left(\alpha_0 + x + \alpha_2 x^2 + \ldots + x^{2k-1} + \alpha_{2k} x^{2k}\right),$$

where $\beta_1, \beta_3, \ldots, \beta_{2l-1}$ are fixed and $\alpha_0, \alpha_2, \ldots, \alpha_{2k}$ are field rotation parameters, and using geometric properties of the spirals filling the interior and exterior domains of limit cycles, we carry out the global bifurcation analysis of (2) and prove the following theorem.

Theorem. The general Liénard polynomial system (1) can have at most k+l limit cycles, k surrounding the origin and l surrounding one by one the other its singularities.



On the existence of a weighted asymptotically constant solutions of Volterra difference equations of nonconvolution type

KAROL GAJDA¹, TOMASZ GRONEK², EWA SCHMEIDEL³

¹ Institute of Mathematics, Poznań University of Technology, 60965 Poznań, POLAND. E-mail address: karol.gajda@put.poznan.pl

² Department of Mathematics, University of Žilina, 01026 Žilina, SLOVAK REPUBLIC.
 ³ Institute of Mathematics, University of Białystok, 15097 Białystok, POLAND.

E-mail address: eschmeidel@math.uwb.edu.pl

We study a Volterra difference equation of the form $x(n+1) = a(n) + b(n)x(n) + c(n)x(n-1) + \sum_{i=0}^{n} K(n,i)x(i)$ where $n \in \mathbb{Z}$, $a, b, c, x \colon \mathbb{Z} \to \mathbb{R}$ and $K \colon \mathbb{Z} \times \mathbb{Z} \to \mathbb{R}$. For every admissible constant $c^* \in \mathbb{R}$, sufficient conditions for the existence of a solution x = x(n) of the above equation such that $x(n) \sim c^*n\beta(n)$, where $\beta(n) = \frac{1}{2^n} \prod_{j=0}^{n-1} b(j)$ are presented. Next, sufficient conditions for the existence of an eventually positive, oscillatory, and quickly oscillatory solution of this equation are obtained, as a corollary of the main result. Finally, a conditions under which considered equation possesses an asymptotically periodic solution are given.

- [1] J. Diblík, M. Růžičková, E. Schmeidel, *Asymptotically periodic solutions of Volterra difference equations*, Tatra Mt. Math. Publ., **43** (2009), 43–61.
- [2] J. Diblík, M. Růžičková, E. Schmeidel, M. Zbąszyniak, Weighted asymptotically periodic solutions of linear Volterra difference equations, Abstr. Appl. Anal., (2011), Art. ID 370982, 14 pp.
- [3] J. Diblík, E. Schmeidel, *On the existence of solutions of linear Volterra difference equations asymptotically equivalent to a given sequence*, Appl. Math. Comput., **218** (2012), 9310–9320.



Continuous Limit in Dynamics with Choice

LEV KAPITANSKI¹, SANJA GONZALEZ ŽIVANOVIC²

¹ Department of Mathematics, University of Miami, 33124 Coral Gables, USA. E-mail address: l.kapitanski@math.miami.edu

² Department of Mathematics, Barry University, 33161 Miami Shores, USA. E-mail address: szivanovic@mail.barry.edu

We are interested in time evolution of systems that can and do switch their modes (regimes) of operation at discrete moments of time. The intervals between switching may, in general, vary. The number of modes (regimes) may be finite or infinite. Such systems are very common in life. Every living organism is like that. In papers [1], [2], [3] we have developed a theory that models such systems and call it dynamics with choice (DWC). We have studied the long term behavior and, in particular, the existence and properties of global compact attractors in DWC. In this paper, we define and study a continuous time dynamics whose trajectories are limits of trajectories of discrete DWC as time step goes to zero. Under certain conditions we are able to prove the semi-group property for the continuous limit, and we study such semi-dynamical systems. In a special case of a switched system, i.e., when the DWC is generated by switching between solutions of a finite number of systems of ODEs, we show that the reachable set in the continuous limit DWC coincides with the reachable set of a certain differential inclusion.

- [1] Kapitanski, L.; Živanovic, S.: Dynamics with choice. Nonlinearity 22 (2009) 163-186.
- [2] Kapitanski, L.; Živanovic, S.: Dynamics with a range of choice. Reliable Computing 15, (2011) 290-299.
- [3] Kapitanski, L.; Gonzalez Živanovic, S.: Variable time step dynamics with choice. Proceedings of the International Conference on Information and Communication Technologies and Applications (2011) 50-55.



W-maps and harmonic averages

Paweł Góra

(in collaboration with Zhenyang Li, Abraham Boyarsky, Harald Proppe and Peyman Eslami)

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Concordia University, 1455 de Maisonneuve Blvd. West, Montreal, Quebec H3G 1M8, Canada E-mail address: pgora@mathstat.concordia.ca URL: http://www.mathstat.concordia.ca/faculty/pgora

The W-map [1] is a transformation $\tau : [0, 1] \rightarrow [0, 1]$ with a graph in the shape of letter W. We assume that it is continuous, piecewise linear with four branches: τ_1 , τ_2 , τ_3 and τ_4 . The τ_1 and τ_3 are decreasing, the τ_2 and τ_4 increasing. The first and the last branches are onto, while the middle branches meet at point (1/2, 1/2), i.e., 1/2 is a turning fixed point of τ . The modulus of the slope of τ_i is $s_i > 1$, i = 1, 2, 3, 4, so τ is piecewise expanding and as such admits an absolutely continuous invariant measure (acim) μ . Let us consider a family of small perturbations τ_n of map τ , such that $\tau_n \rightarrow \tau$ as $n \rightarrow \infty$. Let τ_n have acim μ_n . If $\mu_n \rightarrow \mu$, we call τ "acimstable". It was shown in [1] that W-map with $s_2 = s_3 = 2$ is not acim-stable. It turns out that acim-stability of τ depends on $1/s_2 + 1/s_3 < 1$, then τ is acimstable. We prove this slightly improving the classical Lasota-Yorke inequality [2]. If $1/s_2 + 1/s_3 > 1$, then we can produce a family of τ_n 's exact on [0, 1] such that $\mu_n's$ converge weakly to a combination of μ and $\delta_{\{1/2\}}$.

- [1] Keller, G., Stochastic stability in some chaotic dynamical systems, Monatshefte für Mathematik **94** (4) (1982) 313–333.
- [2] Eslami, P. and Góra, P., Stronger Lasota-Yorke inequality for piecewise monotonic transformations, preprint, available at http://www.peymaneslami.com/EslamiGora_Stronger_LY_Ineq.pdf



On some stochastic competition models

Göran Högnäs

(in collaboration with Henrik Fagerholm, Mats Gyllenberg, and Brita Jung)

> Department of Matematics, Åbo Akademi University, 20500 Åbo, Finland

E-mail address: ghognas@abo.fi

In his recent review, Schreiber [1] describes the state of the art for stochastic competition models of the general form

$$X_{t+1}^i = f_i(X_t, \xi_t) X_t^i, \ i = 1, \dots, k, \ t = 0, 1, 2, \dots$$

where the state space **S** is a subset of \Re^k_+ and the union of the coordinate axes in \Re^k_+ forms the *extinction set* **S**₀; the ξ 's represent a randomly evolving environment.

I will look at some variants and special cases of this model. Specifically, we will limit ourselves to two populations, k = 2, and the functions f_i are chosen to be of the *Ricker* type:

$$\exp(r_t^i - K_t^i(X_t^i + \alpha^j X_t^j)), \ i, j = 1, 2, \ i \neq j.$$

Here the r_t^i 's model the average intrinsic per capita rate of growth of population i at time t. The growth is attenuated by the negative term where K_t^i describes the intra-specific competition at time t and α^j (assumed constant over time) the relative importance of the inter-specific competition.

Another variant of the model is concerned with *demographic* stochasticity. Here our aim is to study the evolution of two finite populations as size-dependent branching processes, which on average follow the above Ricker-type model, with non-random r_i , K_i . We want to describe the long-term behavior and compare it with that of the corresponding deterministic model. The size-dependent branching processes will necessarily have finite life-times. Can anything be said about these?



References

[1] Sebastian J. Schreiber, Persistence for stochastic difference equations: A minireview, , Journal of Difference Equations and Applications (2012) (to appear). Available via the author's web site www-eve.ucdavis.edu/sschreiber/pubs.shtml



Global Dynamics of Anti-Competitive Systems in the Plane

M.R.S KULENOVIĆ¹, <u>S. Kalabušić</u>², E. Pilav³

¹ Department of Mathematics, University of Rhode Island, Kingston, Rhode Island 02881-0816, USA.

² Department of Mathematics, University of Sarajevo, Sarajevo, Bosnia-Herzegovina. E-mail address: senadak@pmf.unsa.ba URL: http://www.pmf.unsa.ba

³ Department of Mathematics, University of Sarajevo, Sarajevo, Bosnia-Herzegovina.

We give some general results about global dynamics of an anti-competitive system of the form

$$\begin{cases} x_{n+1} = T_1(x_n, y_n) \\ y_{n+1} = T_2(x_n, y_n) \end{cases}, \quad n = 0, 1, 2, \dots$$

where

$$T_1: \mathcal{I} \times \mathcal{J} \to \mathcal{I}, \ T_2: \mathcal{I} \times \mathcal{J} \to \mathcal{J} \text{ and } (x_0, y_0) \in \mathcal{I} \times \mathcal{J},$$

and functions T_1 and T_2 are continuous and $T_1(x, y)$ is non-increasing in x and non-decreasing in y while $T_2(x, y)$ is non-decreasing in x and non-increasing in y. We illustrate our results by means of an example which shows wide variety of typical dynamical behavior for an anti-competitive system.



Study of Velocity Control Algorithm of Vehicle Platoon

Y. SUGIMOTO¹, T. TAMAKI², Y. WAKITA³, <u>E. KITA⁴</u>

¹ Nagoya University, 464-8601 Nagoya, JAPAN.

² Okinawa National College of Technology, 905-2171 Nago, JAPAN.

³ Nagoya University, 464-8601 Nagoya, JAPAN.

⁴ Nagoya University, 464-8601 Nagoya, JAPAN. E-mail address: kita@is.nagoya-u.ac.jp

I maa aaaroo Areacio magoya arac. jp

Grouping vehicles into platoons is a method of increasing the capacity of roads. Platoons decrease the distances between vehicles using electronic, and possibly mechanical, coupling. The automated highway system is a proposal for one such system, where cars organize themselves into platoons.

The key-point of the vehicle platoon is to adequately control the vehicle velocity. The velocity control model is defined as the ordinary differential equation of the information from the nearest leader vehicle (the distance or the velocity). In this study, the platoon of five vehicles is considered as the example. Each follower vehicle has one, two, three or four leader vehicles. The velocity control model of the follower vehicle is defined so that the velocity depends on the velocity of the all leader vehicles[1, 2]. It is considered as the steady state that all vehicles move at identical velocity. Model stability analysis around the steady state gives the stable condition of the sensitivities from a vehicle to its leader vehicles. In this study, maximization of the sensitivities revels that the velocity depends only on the nearest leader and the lead vehicles of the platoon. Finally, traffic simulations of the vehicles platoon are shown in order to discuss the validity of the model.

References

[1] R. E. Chandler, R. Herman, and E. W. Montroll. Traffic dynamics studies in car-following. *Operations Research*, Vol. 6, No. 2, pp. 165–184, 1958.



[2] S. Bexelius. An extended model for car-following. *Transportation Research*, Vol. 2, No. 1, pp. 13–21, 1968.



Asymptotic behaviour of random tridiagonal Markov chains in biological applications

Peter E. Kloeden

(in collaboration with Viktor S. Kozyakin)

Institute of Matematics, Goethe university Frankfurt am Main, Gerrmany

E-mail address: kloeden@math.uni-frankfurt.de *URL*: http://www.math.uni-frankfurt.de/~numerik/kloeden/

Discrete-time discrete-state random Markov chains with a tridiagonal generator are shown to have a random attractor consisting of singleton subsets, essentially a random path, in the simplex of probability vectors. The proof uses the Hilbert projection metric and the fact that the linear cocycle generated by the Markov chain is a uniformly contractive mapping of the positive cone into itself. The proof does not involve probabilistic properties of the sample path and is thus equally valid in the nonautonomous deterministic context of Markov chains with, say, periodically varying transitions probabilities, in which case the attractor is a periodic path.



Emden-Fowler type difference equations of the fourth-order

JANA KREJČOVÁ

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Masaryk University, Brno, Czech Republic

E-mail address: krejcovajana@mail.muni.cz

This is a joint work with Prof. Zuzana Došlá. We consider the nonlinear difference equation

$$\Delta \left(a_n \left(\Delta b_n \left(\Delta c_n \left(\Delta x_n \right)^{\gamma} \right)^{\beta} \right)^{\alpha} \right) + d_n x_{n+\tau}^{\lambda} = 0,$$

where α , β , γ , λ are the ratios of odd positive integers, $\tau \in \mathbb{Z}$ and $\{a_n\}, \{b_n\}, \{c_n\}, \{d_n\}$ are positive real sequences defined for all $n \in \mathbb{N}$.

We state new oscillation theorems and we complete the existing results in the literature. Our approach is based on considering our equation as a system of the four-dimensional difference system and on the cyclic permutation of the coefficients in the difference equations.



On Rational Difference Equations with Periodic Coefficients

EMMANOUIL DRYMONIS¹, YEVGENIY KOSTROV², ZACHARY KUDLAK³

¹ Department of Mathematics, University of Rhode Island, 02881–Rhode Island, USA.

² Department of Mathematics, Xavier University of Louisiana, 70125–Louisiana, USA.

³ Division of Mathematics and Information Technology, Mount Saint Mary College, 12550–New York, USA.

E-mail address: zachary.kudlak@msmc.edu

We investigate the global stability, periodic character, and the boundedness nature of the solutions of several special cases which are contained in the difference equation

$$x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha_n + \beta_n x_n x_{n-1} + \gamma_n x_{n-1}}{A_n + B_n x_n x_{n-1} + C_n x_{n-1}}, n = 0, 1, \dots$$

where the parameters α_n , β_n , γ_n , A_n , B_n , C_n are nonnegative periodic sequences, and the initial conditions x_{-1} , x_0 are nonnegative real numbers, such that the denominators are always positive.

- A.M. Amleh, E. Camouzis, and G. Ladas, On The Dynamics of Rational Difference Equations, Part 1, International Journal of Difference Equations, Volume 3 Number 1 (2008), 1–35.
- [2] A.M. Amleh, E. Camouzis, and G. Ladas, *On the Dynamics of Rational Difference Equations, Part 2*, International Journal of Difference Equations, Volume 3 Number 2 (2008), 195–225.



Efficient synchronization of one-dimensional chaotic quadratic maps coupled without symmetry

 $\frac{\text{ROSÁRIO LAUREANO}^{1}, \text{DIANA A. MENDES}^{2},}{\text{MANUEL A. MARTINS FERREIRA}^{3}}$

¹ Department of Quantitative Methods, IBS – ISCTE IUL Business School, Lisbon, Portugal.

² Department of Quantitative Methods, IBS – ISCTE IUL Business School, Lisbon, Portugal.

³ Department of Quantitative Methods, IBS – ISCTE IUL Business School, Lisbon, Portugal.

We consider synchronization phenomena of chaotic discrete dynamical systems with unidirectional and bidirectional coupling mechanisms. It is studied a nonlinear coupling scheme that appears in natural a family of analytic complex quadratic maps (Isaeva et al. [1]). It is an asymmetric coupling between two real quadratic maps in which we use different values of the control parameters chosen in the region of chaos. The map obtained by coupling two chaotic quadratic maps exhibits a richer dynamics that the single one, but it is still possible to study its behaviour. We are not aware about any studies of this type of coupling. When practical synchronization (in the Kapitaniak sense) is not achieved, but the difference between the dynamical variables of the systems is bounded, we still can apply to the coupled system a chaos control technique based on the well-know OGY-method [2] (Ott-Grebogy-Yorke), the pole-placement control technique, developed by Romeiras et al. [3], in order to decrease the difference between the dynamical variables. Moreover, we obtain stable identical and generalized synchronization with some versions of the original coupling, highlighting the absence of symmetry. Two of them are generalizations promoting the use of different parameters coupling. By analyzing the difference between the dynamical variables of the systems, we obtain some results leading to stable synchronization. In case of coupling with two different coupling parameters, the linear stability of the synchronous state is ensured when some relations are guaranteed between the coupling parameters and the initial conditions.



- [1] O.B. Isaeva, S.P. Kuznetsov and V.I. Ponomarenko (2001), Mandelbrot set in coupled logistic maps and in an electronic experiment, *Phys. Rev. E* 64, R055201-4.
- [2] E. Ott, C. Grebogy and J.A. Yorke (1990), Controlling chaos, *Phys. Rev. Lett.* **64** (11), 1196-1199.
- [3] F.J. Romeiras, C. Grebogi, O.E. Ott and W.P. Dayawansa (1992), Controlling chaotic dynamical systems, *Phys. D* 58, 165-192



On the generating function of the solution of a multidimensional difference equation

ALEXANDER LYAPIN

Institute of Matematics, Siberian Federal University, Krasnoyarsk, 660041, Russian Federation

E-mail address: LyapinAP@yandex.ru

De Moivre considered power series $F(z) = f(0) + f(1)z + ... + f(k)z^k + ...$ with recursive constant coefficients $\{f(n)\}_{n=0,1,2,...}$ satisfying a difference equation of the form

$$f(x+m) = c_1 f(x+m-1) + \ldots + c_i f(x+m-i) + \ldots + c_m f(x), 0 \le i \le m$$

with some constant coefficients $c_i \in \mathbb{C}$. In 1722 he proved that the power series F(z) are rational functions (see [1]).

Let *C* be a finite subset of the positive octant \mathbb{Z}_{+}^{n} of the integer lattice \mathbb{Z}^{n} such that, for some $m = (m_{1}, m_{2}, \ldots, m_{n}) \in C$, $\alpha_{1} \leq m_{1}, \ldots, \alpha_{n} \leq m_{n}$ holds for every $\alpha = (\alpha_{1}, \ldots, \alpha_{n}) \in C$. The Cauchy problem consists in finding the solution f(x) of the difference equation (we use a multidimensional notation)

$$\sum_{\alpha \in C} c_{\alpha} f(x + \alpha) = 0, \tag{1}$$

which coincides with the some given function $\varphi : X_m \to \mathbb{C}$ on the set $X_m = \mathbb{Z}^n_+ \setminus (m + \mathbb{Z}^n_+)$.

The aim of this talk is to find the generating function of the solution of the Cauchy problem for a multidimensional difference equation with constant coefficients of the above form. Namely, under certain restrictions on the difference equation we establish the dependence between the generating function of the initial data $\Phi(z)$ and the generation function F(z) of the solutions to the Cauchy problem of the difference equation under study, where

$$\Phi(z) = \sum_{x \in X_m} \frac{\varphi(x)}{z^{x+1}} \quad \text{and} \quad F(z) = \sum_{x \in \mathbb{Z}_+^n} \frac{f(x)}{z^{x+1}}.$$



As a consequence, we prove that the GF of the solution to the difference equation is rational if and only if the GF of the initial data is rational (see [2, 3]).

These results are used to solve certain problems in enumerative combinatorial analysis.

- [1] Richard Stanley, *Enumerative Combinatorics, Vol.* 1, Wadsworth & Brooks/Cole, California, 1986.
- [2] E. Leinartas, A. Lyapin, On the rationality of multidimentional recusive series, Journal of Siberian Federal University. Mathematics & Physics., (2009) 2(4), 449-445.
- [3] M. Bousquet-Mélou, M. Petkovšek, *Linear recurrences with constant coefficients: the multivariate case, DM,* 225, 51-75.



Attractivity in Nonautonomous Periodic and Random Difference Equations on Compact Spaces

G. Manjunath¹, H. Jaeger²

¹ School of Engineering and Science, Jacobs University Bremen, 28759 – Bremen, Germany.

E-mail address: mgandhi@jacobs-university.de

² School of Engineering and Science, Jacobs University of Bremen, 28759 – Bremen, Germany.

E-mail address: h.jaeger@jacobs-university.de

Discrete-time dynamical systems driven by periodic and random inputs arise as models in many areas such as population biology, epidemiology, neural networks etc.. We consider periodic difference equations and random difference equations which arise respectively when the driving sequence acting as an input is periodic and when as a stationary stochastic process. Among the fundamental entities in understanding the asymptotic behavior of such systems are nonautonomous attractors like pullback, forward and uniform attractors [1].

A difficulty some of the nonautonomous attractors pose is that their existence is unknown. We present some results on the existence of a notion of uniform attractivity for random difference equations on a compact space. In particular, with a typical path-wise consideration, we define certain autonomous attracting sets and show that each such set contains a local positively-invariant uniform attractor. In the case of periodic difference equations we relate the existence of a *globally asymptotically stable periodic solution* to nonautonomous attractors and also to what is known as the *echo state property* of a driven system [2].

- [1] Peter Kloeden and Martin Rasmussen, *Nonautonomous Dynamical Systems*, American Mathematical Society, Providence, 2011.
- [2] Herbert Jaeger, *The "echo state" approach to analysing and training recurrent neural networks*, GMD Report 148, GMD - German National Research Institute for Computer Science, 2001.



On periodic solutions of 2–periodic Lyness difference equations

GUY BASTIEN¹, <u>VÍCTOR MAÑOSA²</u>, MARC ROGALSKI³

¹ Institut Mathématique de Jussieu, Université Paris 6 and CNRS, France. *E-mail address:* bastien@math.jussieu.fr

² Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada III, Control, Dynamics and Applications Group, Universitat Politècnica de Catalunya, Colom 1, 08222 Terrassa, Spain. E-mail address: victor.manosa@upc.edu

³ Laboratoire Paul Painlevé, Université de Lille 1; Université Paris 6 and CNRS, 4 pl. Jussieu, 75005 Paris, France.

E-mail address: marc.rogalski@upmc.fr

We study the existence of periodic solutions of the *non–autonomous periodic Lyness' recurrence*

$$u_{n+2} = \frac{a_n + u_{n+1}}{u_n},\tag{1}$$

where $\{a_n\}_n$ is a cycle with positive values *a*,*b* and with positive initial conditions.

It is known that for a = b = 1 all the sequences generated by this recurrence are 5-periodic. Among other results concerning periodic solutions, we prove:

Proposition Consider the 2–periodic Lyness' recurrence (1) for a > 0, b > 0 and positive initial conditions u_1 and u_2 .

(i) If $(a,b) \neq (1,1)$, then there exists a computable value $p_0(a,b) \in \mathbb{N}$ such that for any $p > p_0(a,b)$ there exist continua of initial conditions giving rise to 2*p*-periodic sequences.

(ii) The set of prime periods arising when $(a, b) \in (0, \infty)^2$ and positive initial conditions are considered, contains all the even numbers except 4, 6, 8, 12 and 20. If $a \neq b$, then it does not appear any odd period, except 1.

References

[1] G. Bastien, V. Mañosa, M. Rogalski. *On periodic solutions of 2-periodic Lyness difference equations*. arXiv:1201.1027v1 [math.DS]



Properties of non-commuting cycles in matrix algebras iteration

C. CORREIA RAMOS¹, N. MARTINS², <u>A. NASCIMENTO BAPTISTA³</u>

¹ CIMA, University of Évora Department of Mathematics, University of Évora, Rua Romão Ramalho, 59, 7000-671, Évora, PORTUGAL. E-mail address: ccr@uevora.pt

² Centro de Análise Matemática, Geometria e Sistemas Dinâmicos, Department of Mathematics, Instituto Superior Técnico, Av. Rovisco Pais 1, 1049-001, Lisboa, PORTUGAL. E-mail address: nmartins@math.ist.utl.pt

³ CIMA, University of Évora Department of Mathematics, ESTG, Polytechnic Institute of Leiria, Leiria, Campus 2, Morro do Lena - Alto do Vieiro, 2411-901, PORTUGAL. E-mail address: alexandra.nascimento@ipleiria.pt

Combining the properties of the algebraic theory with the theory of the quadratic map in the real and complex cases, we explore the properties of the noncommuting cycles arising from the iteration in matrix algebras, under the action of quadratic maps with matrix parameter. The stability domains in the subalgebra where the dynamics occurs is also studied.

- [1] C. Correia Ramos, Nuno Martins, A. Nascimento Baptista, *Iteration of quadratic maps on matrix algebras*, International Journal of Bifurcation and Chaos, accepted for publication, to appear.
- [2] A. Baptista, C. Correia Ramos, N. Martins, *Difference equations on matrix algebras*, Discrete dynamics and difference equations Proceedings of the 12th International Conference on Difference Equations and Applications Lisbon, Portugal, 23 27 July 2007, pages 181–188. World Scientific, 2010.

Communications



[3] A. K. Serenevy, *Dynamics of polynomial maps of 2x2 real matrices*, Proceedings of the 16th Summer Conference on General Topology and its Applications, 26, 763-778, 2001/02.



Existence, uniqueness and attractivity of prime period two solution for a difference equation of exponential form

N. Fotiades¹, <u>G. Papaschinopoulos</u>²

¹ School of Engineering, Democritus University of Thrace, 67100 Xanthi, Greece. E-mail address: nfotiad@otenet.gr

² School of Engineering, Democritus University of Thrace, 67100 Xanthi, Greece. E-mail address: gpapas@env.duth.gr

In [1] the authors studied the existence of the equilibrium and the boundedness of solutions of the difference equation

$$x_{n+1} = a + bx_{n-1}e^{-x_n} \tag{1}$$

where a, b are positive constants and the initial values x_{-1}, x_0 are positive numbers. Moreover the authors gave a conjecture concerning the existence, the uniqueness and the attractivity of prime period two solution.

In this paper we give an answer concerning the existence and the uniqueness of a prime period two solution for the equation (1). Moreover we find solutions of (1) which converge to the unique periodic solution of period two.

Equation (1) may have applications in Biology if we consider a as the immigration rate and b as the population growth rate.

References

[1] E. El-Metwally, E.A. Grove, G. Ladas, R. Levins, M. Radin, On the difference equation, $x_{n+1} = \alpha + \beta x_{n-1} e^{-x_n}$, Nonlinear Analysis 47 (2001) 4623-4634.



Asymptotics for second-order linear *q*-difference equations

Pavel Řehák

Institute of Mathematics, Academy of Sciences of the Czech Republic, Žižkova 22, Brno CZ-60200, Czech Republic

E-mail address: rehak@math.cas.cz *URL*: http://www.math.cas.cz/~rehak

We will work on the *q*-uniform lattice $q^{\mathbb{N}_0} := \{q^k : k \in \mathbb{N}_0\}$ with q > 1 or, possibly, on $q^{\mathbb{Z}}$. We will introduce the class of functions satisfying the relation

 $y(qt)/y(t) \sim \omega(t)$ as $t \to \infty$,

where ω is a nonzero function. We will study its properties and show how this class is related e.g. to the class of *q*-regularly functions or to the class of *q*-hypergeometric functions. Then we will consider the second-order linear *q*-difference equation

$$y(q^{2}t) + a(t)y(qt) + b(t)y(t) = 0,$$

where $b(t) \neq 0$ and a(t) are real functions. Sufficient and necessary conditions will be presented for this equation to have solutions in the above mentioned class. Related results concerning estimates for solutions and (non)oscillation of all solutions will also be discussed.

References

[1] Pavel Řehák, On a certain asymptotic class of solutions to second-order linear qdifference equations, J. Phys. A: Math. Theor. **45** (2012) 055202 (19pp).



Decoupling and simplifying of difference equations in the neighbourhood of invariant manifold

ANDREJS REINFELDS

Institute of Mathematics and Computer Science, Raiņa bulv. 29, Rīga LV-1002 and University of Latvia, Zeļļu iela 8, Rīga LV-1459, Latvia E-mail address: reinf@latnet.lv

URL: http://home.lu.lv/~reinf

We consider systems of nonautonomous difference equations in Banach space. For these systems, sufficient conditions under which there is an local Lipschitzian invariant manifold are obtained. Using this result and nonexponential Green type maps we find sufficient conditions of partial decoupling and simplifying for systems of invertible and noninvertible difference equations.

^{*}This work was partially supported by the grant 09.1220 of the Latvian Council of Science and by ESF research project 2009/0223/1DP/1.1.1.2.0 /09/APIA/VIAA/008.



Chaotic models stabilized by stochastic perturbations with nonzero expectation

<u>Alexandra Rodkina</u>¹, Leonid Braverman²

¹ The University of the West Indies, Mona Campus, Kingston, Jamaica. E-mail address: alexandra.rodkina@uwimona.edu.jm

² St Mary's University College and Athabasca University, Calgary, Canada. E-mail address: leonid.braverman@stmu.ca;leonidb@athabascau.ca

A map which experiences a period doubling route to chaos, under a stochastic perturbation with a positive mean, can have a stable blurred 2-cycle for large enough values of the parameter. The limit dynamics of this cycle is described. It was shown that well-known population dynamics models, like Ricker, truncated logistic, Hassel and May, and Bellows maps, have this stable blurred 2-cycle and belong to one of the three described types. In addition, there may be a blurred stable area near the equilibrium.



Chaos in discrete structured population models

E. LIZ^1 , <u>A. RUIZ-HERRERA</u>²

¹ Departmento de Matemática Aplicada II, Universidad de Vigo, Spain. E-mail address: eliz@dma.uvigo.es

² Departamento de Matemática Aplicada, Universidad de Granada, SPAIN.

We prove analytically the existence of chaotic dynamics in some classical discretetime age-structured population models. Our approach allows us to estimate the sensitive dependence on the initial conditions, regions of initial data with chaotic behavior, and explicit ranges of parameters where the considered models display chaos. These properties have important implications to evaluate the influence of a chaotic regime in the predictions based on mathematical models. We illustrate through particular examples how to apply our results.



On the dynamics of two exponential type systems of difference equations

G. PAPASCHINOPOULOS¹, C. J. SCHINAS²

¹ School of Engineering, Democritus University of Thrace, Xanthi, 67100, Greece. E-mail address: gpapas@env.duth.gr

² School of Engineering, Democritus University of Thrace, Xanthi, 67100, Greece. E-mail address: cschinas@ee.duth.gr

In this paper we investigate the boundedness and the persistence of the positive solutions, the existence of a unique positive equilibrium and the global asymptotic stability of the equilibrium of the following systems of difference equations

$$x_{n+1} = a + by_{n-1}e^{-x_n}, \quad y_{n+1} = c + dx_{n-1}e^{-y_n}, \tag{1}$$

$$x_{n+1} = a + by_{n-1}e^{-y_n}, \quad y_{n+1} = c + dx_{n-1}e^{-x_n}, \tag{2}$$

where the constants a, b, c, d are positive real numbers and the initial values x_{-1}, x_0, y_{-1}, y_0 are also positive real numbers. We note that if $x_{-1} = y_{-1}, x_0 = y_0$ then $x_n = y_n$, for all n = -1, 0, ... and so both systems reduce to the difference equation $x_{n+1} = \alpha + \beta x_{n-1}e^{-x_n}$ which has been studied in [1]. System (2) represents the rule by which two discrete, competing populations reproduce from one generation to the next. Variables x_n , and y_y , denote population sizes during the n-th generation and the sequence or orbit (x_n, y_n) , n = 0, 1, 2, ... describes how the populations evolve over time.

References

[1] E. El-Metwally, E.A. Grove, G. Ladas, R. Levins, M. Radin, On the difference equation, $x_{n+1} = \alpha + \beta x_{n-1}e^{-x_n}$, Nonlinear Analysis 47 (2001), 4623-4634.



Existence of a bounded solution of Volterra difference equations via Darbo's fixed point theorem

Tomasz Gronek¹, <u>Ewa Schmeidel²</u>

¹ Department of Matematics, University of Žilina, 01026 Žilina, SLOVAK REPUBLIC. E-mail address: tomgronek@gmail.com

² Institute of Mathematics, Faculty of Mathematics and Computer Science, University of Białystok, 15097 Białystok, POLAND. E-mail address: eschmeidel@math.uwb.edu.pl

We study linear Volterra difference equation of nonconvolution type on the form

$$x(n+1) = a(n) + b(n)x(n) + \sum_{i=0}^{n} K(n,i)x(i),$$

where $x : \mathbb{N} \to \mathbb{R}$, $a : \mathbb{N} \to \mathbb{R}$, $K : \mathbb{N} \times \mathbb{N} \to \mathbb{R}$ and $b : \mathbb{N} \to \mathbb{R}$. Sufficient conditions for an existence of bounded solution of this equation are presented. Using this result, an asymptotic equivalence of a solution and of the given sequence, dependent on terms of sequence b, is obtained.

- [1] J. Diblík, M. Růžičková, E. Schmeidel, *Asymptotically periodic solutions of Volterra difference equations*, Tatra Mt. Math. Publ., **43** (2009), 43–61.
- [2] J. Diblík, M. Růžičková, E. Schmeidel, M. Zbąszyniak, Weighted asymptotically periodic solutions of linear Volterra difference equations, Abstr. Appl. Anal., (2011), Art. ID 370982, 14 pp.
- [3] J. Diblík, E. Schmeidel, *On the existence of solutions of linear Volterra difference equations asymptotically equivalent to a given sequence*, Appl. Math. Comput., **218** (2012), 9310–9320.
- [4] T. Gronek, E. Schmeidel, *Existence of a bounded solution of Volterra difference equations via Darbo's fixed point theorem* (submitted).



Oscillation theory of discrete symplectic systems with nonlinear dependence on the spectral parameter

Roman Šimon Hilscher

Department of Matematics and Statistics, Faculty of Science, Masaryk University Kotlářská 2, CZ-61137 Brno, Czech Republic E-mail address: hilscher@math.muni.cz

URL: http://www.math.muni.cz/~hilscher

Symplectic systems represent a discrete time analogue of the linear Hamiltonian systems. They contain as special cases many important difference equations and systems, namely the Sturm–Liouville difference equations, symmetric three-term recurrence equations, Jacobi difference equations, and linear Hamiltonian difference systems. Following our recent work in [3] and [2], we introduce a new theory of discrete symplectic systems, in which the dependence on the spectral parameter is nonlinear. This requires to develop new definitions of (finite) eigenvalues and (finite) eigenfunctions and their multiplicities for such systems. Our main results include the corresponding oscillation theorems, which relate the number of (finite) eigenvalues with the number of focal points of the principal solution in the given discrete interval. The present theory generalizes several known results for discrete symplectic systems which depend linearly on the spectral parameter, such as in [1]. We also show that our results are new even for the above mentioned special discrete symplectic systems.

- O. Došlý, W. Kratz, Oscillation theorems for symplectic difference systems, J. Difference Equ. Appl. 13 (2007), no. 7, 585–605.
- [2] W. Kratz, R. Šimon Hilscher, A generalized index theorem for monotone matrixvalued functions with applications to discrete oscillation theory, in preparation (2012).
- [3] R. Šimon Hilscher, Oscillation theorems for discrete symplectic systems with nonlinear dependence in spectral parameter, submitted (2012).



An answer to some problems on self-similar sets and the open set condition

Jakub Šotola

Mathematical Institute in Opava, Silesian University in Opava, Na Rybníčku 1, 746 01, Opava, Czech Republic

E-mail address: Jakub.Sotola@math.slu.cz

The subject of this talk are self-similar sets (a *self-similar* set *E* is a fixed point of map $\varphi(E) = \bigcup \varphi_i(E)$, where φ_i are contractive similitudes on \mathbb{R}^n , see [3]), especially those satisfying the so-called open set condition (OSC). These sets have many "nice" properties, but they are still raising many questions too.

The OSC requires existence of an open set G, such that

 $\varphi(G) \subset G$ and $\varphi_i(G) \cap \varphi_j(G) = \emptyset$.

Such a set *G* is called a feasible set.

In the talk I will consider some open problems formulated by L. Feng and Z. Zhou in their papers [1] and [2]. Namely I will present a counterexample to the existence of connected (or even convex) feasible sets and i will prove that, if the self-similar set satisfies OSC, the fixed points of maps φ_i must be distinct for different indeces.

- L. Feng, Z. Zhou, Twelve open problems on the exact value of the Hausdorff measure and on topological entropy: a brief survey of recent results, Nonlinearity 17 (2004), 493–502.
- [2] L. Feng, Z. Zhou, Some problems on fractal geometry and topological dynamical systems, Anal. Theor. Appl. 25 (2007), 5–15.
- [3] K. J. Falconer, *The geometry of fractal sets*, Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 1985



Transport Equation on Semidiscrete Domains

PETR STEHLÍK (in collaboration with Jonáš Volek)

> Department of Matematics, University of West Bohemia, 31200 Pilsen, Czech Republic

E-mail address: pstehlik@kma.zcu.cz *URL:* http://www.kma.zcu.cz/pstehlik

In this talk, we analyze the transport equation on semidiscrete domains. We consider discrete, discrete-continuous and discrete-time scale domains. We discuss its relationship with nonlinear hyperbolic problems and corresponding subjects from numerical analysis (semidiscrete methods, conservation laws, ...). Analysing integral and sign conservation, we disclose an interesting relationship of the transport equation with counting stochastic processes (Poisson and Bernoulli processes) and the corresponding probability distributions. Consequently, we mention possible application of the transport equation as a generator of mixed probability distributions.

- [1] Petr Stehlík, Jonáš Volek, *Transport equation on semidiscrete domains and Poisson–Bernoulli processes*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications. In print.
- [2] M. Bohner and G. Guseinov, *Partial differentiation on time scales*, Dyn. Syst. Appl. 13 (2004), 351–379.



Dynamical Classification of a family of Birational Maps via Dynamical Degree

ANNA CIMA¹, <u>Sundus Zafar</u>²

¹ Department of Mathematics, Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona, 08193 Barcelona, SPAIN.

E-mail address: cima@mat.uab.cat

² Department of Mathmatics, Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona, 08193 Barcelona, SPAIN.

E-mail address: sundus@mat.uab.cat

Given complex numbers α_i , γ_i and δ_i , i = 0, ..., 2, consider the family of birational maps $f : \mathbf{C}^2 \to \mathbf{C}^2$ of the following form

$$f(x,y) = \left(\alpha_0 + \alpha_1 x + \alpha_2 y, \frac{\gamma_0 + \gamma_1 x + \gamma_2 y}{\delta_0 + \delta_1 x + \delta_2 y}\right).$$
 (1)

We consider the imbedding $(x, y) \mapsto (1, x_1, x_2) \in \mathbf{P}^2$ into projective space and consider the induced map $F : \mathbf{P}^2 \to \mathbf{P}^2$ given by

$$F[x_0, x_1, x_2] = [x_0(\delta \cdot x), (\alpha \cdot x)(\delta \cdot x), x_0(\gamma \cdot x)]$$

where $\alpha \cdot x = \alpha_0 x_0 + \alpha_1 x_1 + \alpha_2 x_2$. To determine the behavior of iterates, $F^n = F \circ \cdots \circ F$, we will study their degree growth rate particularly we are interested in the quantity

$$D(\alpha, \gamma, \delta) = \lim_{n \to \infty} (\deg(F^n))^{\frac{1}{n}},$$

which is known as the *dynamical degree* in [1] and the logarithm of this quantity has been called the *algebraic entropy* in [6] and [2].

In order to classify our family (1) we first make an identification of two existing cases in (1). For all the values of parameters for which the determinants $(\gamma \delta)_{12}$ and $(\alpha \delta)_{12}$ are zero we call it a *degenerate case* and the values of parameters for which these determinants are non zero we say that the family (1) lies in the *non degenerate case*. In general the family (1) has dynamical degree D = 2. The main interest is to identify the possible subcases of (1) for all the


parameter values. By the help of the associated characteristic polynomial of each subcase/subfamily we are able to know their growth rate. Therefore we find the dynamical degree D for all the subcases in order to locate the subfamilies with entropy *zero* and the ones where 1 < D < 2. The subfamilies with zero entropy have rather simpler dynamics than the other subfamilies which have non zero entropy. This talk will focus on providing information of all the existing subcases/subfamilies of (1) in both above mentioned cases. Some families with zero entropy will also be shown.

- [1] Bedford, E. and Kim, K. On the degree growth of birational mappings in higher dimension J. Geom. Anal. 14 (2004), 567–596.
- [2] Bedford, E. and Kim, K. *Periodicities in Linear Fractional Recurrences: Degree Growth of Birational Surface Maps* Michigan Math. J. **54** (2006), 647–670.
- [3] J. Diller. Dynamics of Birational Maps of P², Indiana Univ. Math. J. 45, no. 3, 721– 772 (1996).
- [4] Diller, J. and Favre, C. *Dynamics of bimeromorphic maps of surfaces* Amer. J. Math. **123** (2001), 1135–1169.
- [5] Fornaes, J-E and Sibony, N. Complex dynamics in higher dimension. II Modern methods in complex analysis (Princeton, NJ, 1992), 135–182, Ann. of Math. Stud., 137, Princeton Univ. Press, Princeton, NJ, 1995.
- [6] Viallet, C.M. Algebraic entropy Comm.Math.Phys. 204 (1999), pp. 425-437.
- [7] Viallet, C.M. On the complexity of some birational transformations J.Phys. A 39 (2006) pp 3641-3654.
- [8] Yomdin, Y. Volume growth and entropy Israel J. Math. 57 (1987), 285–300.

Special Session Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Difference Equations

I. Győri and M. Pituk



New stability conditions for linear delay difference equations

LEONID BEREZANSKY

(in collaboration with Elena Braverman)

Department of Mathematics, Ben-Gurion University of the Negev, Beer-Sheva, Israel E-mail address: brznsky@math.bgu.ac.il

URL: http://www.math.bgu.ac.il/~brznsky/

The Bohl-Perron result on exponential dichotomy for a linear difference equation

$$x(n+1) - x(n) = -\sum_{l=1}^{m} a_l(n) x(h_l(n)), \ h_l(n) \le n,$$

states (under some natural conditions) that if all solutions of the nonhomogeneous equations with a bounded right hand side are bounded, then the relevant homogeneous equation is exponentially stable. According to its corollary, if a given equation is *close* to an exponentially stable comparison equation (the norm of some operator is less than one), then the considered equation is exponentially stable.

For a difference equation with several variable delays and coefficients we obtain new exponential stability tests using the above results, representation of solutions and comparison equations with a positive fundamental function.

Main results of the talk where published in [1].

References

[1] Leonid Berezansky, and Elena Braverman, Elena, '*New stability conditions for linear difference equations using Bohl-Perron type theorems*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications **17: 5** (2011), 657–675.

On Poincaré–Perron theorems for systems of linear difference equations

<u>SIGRUN BODINE</u>¹, D.A. LUTZ²

¹ Department of Mathematics and Computer Science, University of Puget Sound, Tacoma, WA 98416, USA.

E-mail address: sbodine@pugetsound.edu

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescência

ICDEA2012

² Department of Mathematics and Statistics, San Diego State University, San Diego, CA
 92182, USA.
 E-mail address: lutz@saturn.sdsu.edu

The classical theorems of Poincaré and Perron are concerned with the asymptotic behavior of solutions of scalar *k*th order linear difference equations

$$y(n+k) + [c_1 + p_1(n)]y(n+k-1) + \dots + [c_k + p_k(n)]y(n) = 0,$$

with $p_i(n) \to 0$ as $n \to \infty$, $1 \le i \le k$.

More recently, generalizations to the asymptotic behavior of solutions of systems of first order difference equations

$$\vec{y}(n+1) = [A + P(n)]\vec{y}(n), \qquad P(n) \to 0 \quad \text{as } n \to \infty,$$

have attracted significant interest. Contributions include works by Máté and Nevai, Trench, Pituk, and M. Pinto.

In our talk, we will briefly review some of the established results in this field before presenting further generalizations derived in our work.

Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Diff. Eqs. *



Stability of difference equations with an infinite delay

<u>Elena Braverman</u>¹, Illya M. Karabash²

¹ Department of Matematics and Statistics, University of Calgary, 2500 University Drive N.W., Calgary, AB T2N 1N4, CANADA. E-mail address: maelena@math.ucalgary.ca

URL: http://math.ucalgary.ca/profiles/elena-braverman

² Institute of Applied Mathematics and Mechanics, R. Luxemburg str. 74, Donetsk, 83114, UKRAINE.

The relation between the exponential stability of linear difference equations with infinite delay and the ℓ^p -input ℓ^q -state stability (Perron's property) is investigated. The Perron's property means that solutions of the non-homogeneous equation with zero initial data belong to ℓ^q when non-homogeneous terms are in ℓ^p . The two properties are equivalent in a wide range of spaces, under some conditions, which include uniform boundedness of operators and exponential memory fading. We demonstrate [1] that these conditions are to some extent necessary.

References

[1] E. Braverman and I. Karabash, *Bohl-Perron-type stability theorems for linear difference equations with infinite delay*, to appear in Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, DOI: 10.1080/10236198.2010.531276

Admissibility of linear stochastic discrete Volterra operators applied to an affine stochastic convolution equation

John Appleby¹, John $Daniels^2$

¹ School of Mathematical Sciences, Dublin City University, IRELAND.
 ² School of Mathematical Sciences, Dublin City University, IRELAND.

The long run behaviour of a finite dimensional finite delay summation equation with an additive Gaussian noise is analysed. This equation may be considered as a generalisation of an autoregressive process of arbitrary, but finite, order. It is known from existing theory that the asymptotic behaviour of the resolvent function of such an equation may be expressed in terms of the roots of its characteristic equation, c.f. e.g. [1]. It is shown that the solution of the stochastic equation is also reliant upon the leading order roots of the characteristic equation.

Admissibility theory of deterministic equations has been studied in connection with the asymptotic theory of such equations, in e.g. [2]. The authors develop a stochastic admissibility theory of linear Volterra operators to obtain their results. While the asymptotic results described in this presentation hold almost surely it is shown that this mode of convergence implies convergence in mean square.

In addition to the finite delay stochastic equation, a Volterra summation equation is also discussed. Some examples of the results are sketched which illustrate the differing types of long run behaviour which may occur depending upon the order of the leading roots and whether the leading roots are purely real or complex.

References

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescièncie

ICDEA2012

- S. Elaydi, "An Introduction to Difference Equations", 3rd edition, Springer-Verlag, New York, 2005.
- [2] J. A. D. Appleby, I. Győri, and D. W. Reynolds, On exact rates of decay of solutions of linear systems of Volterra equations with delay, J. Math. Anal. Appl, 320 (2006), no. 1, 56–77



Positive and oscillating solutions of discrete linear equations with delay

J. DIBLÍK¹, H. HALFAROVÁ², I. HLAVIČKOVÁ³

¹ Department of Mathematics and Descriptive Geometry, Faculty of Civil Engineering, Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Communication, Brno University of Technology, Brno, Czech Republic. E-mail address: diblik.j@fce.vutbr.cz, diblik@feec.vutbr.cz

² Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Communication, Brno University of Technology, Brno, Czech Republic. E-mail address: xhalfa06@stud.feec.vutbr.cz

³ Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Communication, Brno University of Technology, Brno, Czech Republic. E-mail address: hlavicka@feec.vutbr.cz

A linear (k + 1)th-order discrete delayed equation $\Delta x(n) = -p(n)x(n - k)$ where p(n) is a positive sequence is considered for $n \to \infty$. This equation is known to have a positive solution if the sequence p(n) satisfies an inequality. Recently it was proved that if

$$p(n) \le \left(\frac{k}{k+1}\right)^k \times \left[\frac{1}{k+1} + \frac{k}{8n^2} + \frac{k}{8(n\ln n)^2} + \dots + \frac{k}{8(n\ln n \dots \ln_q n)^2}\right], \quad (1)$$

where $q \in \mathbb{N}_0$, then there exists a positive vanishing solution of the considered equation and the upper bound was found. We improve this result by finding even the lower bound for the positive solution, supposing the function p(n) is bounded above and below by certain functions. As well we show that, in the case of an opposite inequality to (1) for p(n), all solutions of the equation considered are oscillating for $n \to \infty$.

References

J. Baštinec, J. Diblík, Z. Šmarda: *Existence of positive solutions of discrete linear equations with a single delay*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, 16, Issue 9 (2010), 1047–1056.

Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Diff. Eqs.

[2] J. Baštinec, L. Berezansky, J. Diblík, Z. Šmarda: A final result on the oscillation of solutions of the linear discrete delayed equation $\Delta x(n) = -p(n)x(n-k)$ with a positive coefficient, Abstract and Applied Analysis, vol. 2011, Article ID 586328, 28 pages, 2011. doi:10.1155/2011/586328.

22"-27" July 2012 Casa de Convalescência

ICDEA2012

18" International C Difference Equations and

[3] J. Diblík, I. Hlavičková: Asymptotic upper and lower estimates of a class of positive solutions of a discrete linear equation with a single delay, Abstract and Applied Analysis, vol. 2012, Article ID 764351, 12 pages, 2012. doi:10.1155/2012/764351

Asymptotic behavior and oscillation of fourth-order difference equations

Zuzana Došlá

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Masaryk University, Brno, Czech Republic

E-mail address: dosla@math.muni.cz

We present some our recent results on asymptotic and oscillatory properties of solutions for the nonlinear difference equations of the fourth order

$$\Delta \left(a_n \left(\Delta b_n \left(\Delta c_n \left(\Delta x_n \right)^{\gamma} \right)^{\beta} \right)^{\alpha} \right) + d_n f(x_{n+\tau}) = 0, \quad (n \in \mathbb{N})$$

where α , β , γ are the ratios of odd positive integers, $\{a_n\}, \{b_n\}, \{c_n\}, \{d_n\}$ are positive real sequences defined for $n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $\tau \in \mathbb{Z}$ is a deviating argument. The role of the deviating argument to oscillation will be given, too. This is a joint work with Jana Krejčová.



Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Diff. Eqs.

Periodic symplectic difference systems

Ondřej Došlý

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Masaryk University, Brno, Czech Republic E-mail address: dosly@math.muni.cz URL: http://www.math.muni.cz/~dosly

We consider symplectic difference systems

$$z_{k+1} = S_k(\lambda) z_k, \quad S_k \in \mathbb{R}^{2n \times 2n}, \ z \in \mathbb{R}^{2n},$$
(1)

depending on a (generally complex valued) parameter λ . We suppose that the matrices S_k are *J*-unitary, i.e.

$$S^*(\lambda)\mathcal{J}S(\lambda) = \mathcal{J}, \quad \mathcal{J} = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & I \\ -I & 0 \end{pmatrix},$$

and *N*-periodic, i.e., $S_{k+N}(\lambda) = S_k(\lambda)$, $k \in \mathbb{N}$. We show that some previous results on periodic Hamiltonian difference systems [2, 3] (which are a special case of (1)) can be extended to (1). In particular, we demonstrate that the classical Krein's traffic rules for multipliers of the monodromy matrix of periodic Hamiltonian *differential* systems, cf. [1], remain to hold also for periodic symplecitc difference systems.

- M. G. Krein, Foundations of theory of λ-zones of stability of a canonical system of linear differential equations with periodic coefficients, AMS Transactions 120 (1983), 1–70.
- [2] A. Halanay, V. Rasvan, *Stability and BVP's for discrete-time linear Hamiltonian systems*, Dynam. Systems Appl. **9** (1999), 439–459.
- [3] V. Rasvan, *Stability zones for discrete time Hamiltonian systems*, Arch. Math. (Brno) **36** (2000), 563–573.



Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Diff. Eqs.

Moving average network examples for asymptotically stable periodic orbits of strongly monotone maps

ICDEA2012 18" International Conferen

BARNABAS M. GARAY

Faculty of Information Technology, Pázmány Péter Catholic University, Práter utca 50/A – H-1083 Budapest, Hungary

E-mail address: garay@digitus.itk.ppke.hu *URL*: http://www.itk.ppke.hu/oktatas/oktatoink/garay_barnabas/

Given a graph Γ , the discrete–time dynamical system

$$(x_{1,t},\ldots,x_{I,t}) = \mathbf{x}_t \to \mathbf{x}_{t+1} = \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}_t), \quad t = 0, 1, \ldots$$

on the *I*-dimensional unit cube $[0, 1]^I$ is considered where

$$(\mathbf{F}(\mathbf{x}_t))_i = F(\bar{x}_{i,t}), \quad i = 1, \dots, I,$$

 $F: [0,1] \rightarrow [0,1]$ is a strictly increasing continuous function,

$$\bar{x}_{i,t} = \frac{1}{n_i} \sum_{j \in N_i} x_{i,t}$$

i is a vertex of Γ , and N_i is the set of its neighbouring vertices with $n_i = \operatorname{card}(N_i) \neq 0$.

Conditions for the existence of a globally asymptotically stable fixed point as well as a variety of examples for asymptotically stable nontrivial periodic orbits is presented. The motivation comes from modelling local interactions in tax evasion [1].

The talk is based on joint work with Judit Várdai.

References

[1] Barnabas M. Garay, András Simonovits, János Tóth, *Local interaction in tax evasion*, Economics Letters **115** (2012), 412–415.

Utilization of the circulant matrix theory in periodic higher order autonomous difference equations

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescièncie

ICDEA2012

ISTVÁN GYŐRI

Department of Matematics, University of Pannonia, Veszprém, Hungary E-mail address: gyori@almos.uni-pannon.hu

In this talk we develop easily verifiable tests that we can apply to determine whether or not a higher order autonomous difference equation has a *p*-periodic solution. One of the main tools in our investigations is a transformation, recently introduced by the authors, which formulates a given higher order difference equation as a first order recursion. The second important tool is the theory of circulant matrices. The periodicity conditions are formulated in terms of the coefficients of the higher order equation, along with examples showing that they have nontrivial applications.



Asymptotic behavior of nonlinear difference equations

FERENC HARTUNG

Department of Matematics, University of Pannonia, Veszprém, Hungary E-mail address: hartung.ferenc@uni-pannon.hu

In this talk we investigate the growth/decay rate of solutions of a class of nonlinear Volterra difference equations. Our results can be applied for the case when the characteristic equation of an associated linear difference equation has complex dominant eigenvalue with higher than one multiplicity. Illustrative examples are given for describing the asymptotic behavior of solutions in a class of linear difference equations and in several discrete nonlinear population models.

Sharp algebraic periodicity conditions for linear higher order difference equations

LÁSZLÓ HORVÁTH

Department of Mathematics, University of Pannonia, 8200 Veszprém, Egyetem u. 10., Hungary

E-mail address: lhorvath@almos.uni-pannon.hu

It will be derived new necessary and sufficient, and sufficient algebraic conditions on the periodicity of the solutions of the *d*-dimensional system of the *s*th order difference equations

$$x(n) = \sum_{i=1}^{s} A_i(n) x(n-i), \quad n \ge 0,$$

where

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescância

ICDEA2012

(C₁) $s \ge 1$ is a given integer, and $A_i(n) \in \mathbb{R}^{d \times d}$ for every $1 \le i \le s$ and $n \ge 0$.

The main tool in our investigation is a transformation, recently introduced by Győri and Horváth in [1], which formulates a given higher order recursion as a first order difference equation in the phase space. The periodicity conditions are formulated in terms of the so called companion matrices and the coefficients of the given higher order equation, as well (see [2]).

- I. Győri, L. Horváth, A new view of the *l^p*-theory for system of higher order difference equations, Comput. Math. Appl. 59 (2010) 4205-4216.
- [2] I. Győri, L. Horváth, Sharp algebraic periodicity conditions for linear higher order difference equations, Comput. Math. Appl., http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.camwa.2012.02.018



Asymptotic formula for solutions of Volterra difference equations with infinite delay

HIDEAKI MATSUNAGA

Department of Mathematical Sciences, Osaka Prefecture University, Sakai 599-8531, Japan

E-mail address: hideaki@ms.osakafu-u.ac.jp

For linear Volterra difference equations with infinite delay, we obtain an explicit asymptotic representation formula of solutions by utilizing a part of some bases belonging to the phase space, together with a part of the dual bases for the formal adjoint equation associated with a certain bilinear form. Our technique employed here is similar to the standard one in the theory of linear functional differential equations.

- [1] H. Matsunaga, S. Murakami, Y. Nagabuchi and Y. Nakano, *Formal adjoint* equations and asymptotic formula for solutions of Volterra difference equations with infinite delay, J. Difference Equations Appl., **18** (2012), 57–88.
- [2] S. Murakami, Some spectral properties of the solution operator for linear Volterra difference systems, New Developments in Difference Equations and Applications (Taipei, 1997) pp. 301–311, Gordon and Breach, Amsterdam, 1999.
- [3] M. Pituk, Asymptotic behavior of a nonhomogeneous linear recurrent system, J. Math. Anal. Appl. **267** (2002), 626–642.

A continuous separation of tipe II. Applications to nonautonomous delay differential equations.

Sylvia Novo¹, <u>Rafael Obaya²</u>, Ana M. Sanz³

¹ Departamento de Matemática Aplicada, Escuela de Ingenierías Industriales, Universidad de Valladolid, Valladolid, Spain. *E-mail address:* sylnov@wmatem.eis.uva.es

² Departamento de Matemática Aplicada, Escuela de Ingenierías Industriales, Universidad de Valladolid, Valladolid, Spain. E-mail address: rafoba@wmatem.eis.uva.es

³ Departamento de Matemática Aplicada, Escuela de Ingenierías Agrarias, Universidad de Valladolid, Soria, Spain. E-mail address: anasan@wmatem.eis.uva.es

Poláčik and Tereščák proved the existence of a continuous separation for a general abstract mapping Φ satisfying the usual strong monotonicity, smoothness and compactness condition. In many important applications the origin of this map is a homeomorphism F of a compact metric subset K in a Banach space X and Φ is defined by $\Phi : K \times X \to K \times X, (\omega, x) \to (F(\omega), dF(\omega)(x)).$

For nonautonomus cooperative ordinary and parabolic equations we prove that if the constant matrix defined by the superior of the partial derivatives of the vector field on a minimal set K is irreducible then the flow map of the linearized equation at certain time t_1 admits a continuous separation on $K \times X$. However this kind of results are no longer valid for nonautonomous cooperative delay differential equations. In this case the linear flow map is not eventually strongly positive but satisfies a dichotomy behavior which provides a dynamical scenario that we define as a continuous separation of type II. This scenario preserves many of the previous dynamical properties which are relevant in the applications of the theory.

References

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalesciencia

ICDEA2012

[1] S. Novo, R. Obaya, A. M. Sanz, *Topological dynamics for monotone skew-product semiflows with applications*, Preprint University of Valladolid. 2012.



- [2] P. Poláčik and I. Tereščák Exponential separation and invariant bundles for maps in ordered banach spaces with applications to parabolic equations, Journal of Dynamics and Differential Equations, Vol 5, No 2, 279-303, 1993.
- [3] W. Shen, Y. Yi, *Almost automorphic and almost periodic dynamics in skew-product semiflows*, Mem. Amer. Math. Soc. 647, 1998.

A variant of the Krein-Rutman theorem for Poincaré difference equations

RAFAEL OBAYA¹, MIHÁLY PITUK²

¹ Departamento de Matemática Aplicada, E.T.S. de Ingenieros Industriales, Universidad de Valladolid, 47011 Valladolid, Spain. E-mail address: rafoba@wmatem.eis.uva.es

² Department of Mathematics, University of Pannonia, P.O. Box 158, H-8201 Veszprém, Hungary.

E-mail address: pitukm@almos.uni-pannon.hu

Let \mathbf{x}_n , $n \in \mathbb{N}$, be a nonvanishing solution of the Poincaré difference equation

$$\mathbf{x}_{n+1} = A_n \mathbf{x}_n, \qquad n \in \mathbb{N},$$

where A_n , $n \in \mathbb{N}$, are $k \times k$ real matrices such that the limit $A = \lim_{n \to \infty} A_n$ exists (entrywise). According to a Perron type theorem, the limit $\rho = \lim_{n \to \infty} \sqrt[n]{\|\mathbf{x}_n\|}$ exists and is equal to the modulus of one of the eigenvalues of A. In this talk, we show that if the solution belongs to a given order cone *K* in \mathbb{R}^k , then ρ is an eigenvalue of A with an eigenvector in K. In the case of constant coefficients, this result implies the finite-dimensional version of the Krein-Rutman theorem.

References

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescièncie

ICDEA2012

- [1] S. Elaydi, An Introduction to Difference Equations, Springer, New York, 2005.
- [2] M.G. Krein and M.A. Rutman, *Linear operators leaving invariant a cone in a Ba*nach space, Uspekhi Mat. Nauk 3 (1948), 3–95. (in Russian); English transl.: Am. Math. Soc. Trans. 26 (1950).
- [3] R. Obaya and M. Pituk, A variant of the Krein-Rutman theorem for Poincaré difference equations, J. Differ. Equ. Appl. (to appear) DOI: 10.1080/10236198.2011.594439.



Difference Equations

MICHAEL A. RADIN

(in collaboration with Nicholas Batista, Mark Bellavia & Frank Palladino)

Rochester Institute of Technology, School of Mathematical Sciences, Rochester, New York 14623 USA

E-mail address: michael.radin@rit.edu

Our aim is to investigate the *boundedness character*, the *periodic character* and the *monotonic character* of the non-negative solutions of the following non-autonomous rational difference equation:

$$x_{n+1} = \frac{A_n x_{n-l}}{1 + \sum_{i=0}^k B_i x_i}, \ n = 0, 1, \dots,$$

where $\{A_n\}_{n=0}^{\infty}$ is a periodic sequence of positive real numbers, $\sum_{i=0}^{k} B_i > 0$, l = 0, 1, 2, ..., and k = 1, 2, 3, ... We will examine how the different periods of the sequence and the relationship of the terms of the sequence affect the longer term behavior of the solutions.

References

[1] A.M. Amleh, D.A. Georgiou, E.A. Grove, and G. Ladas, On the recursive sequence $x_{n+1} = \alpha + \frac{x_{n-1}}{x_n}$, J. Math. Anal. Appl. **233**(1999), 790-798.

[2] E. Camouzis and G. Ladas, Dynamics of Third-Order Rational Difference Equations with Open Problems and Conjectures, Chapman & Hall/CRC Press, Boca Raton, 2007.

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescència

ICDEA2012

- [3] E. Chatterjee, E.A. Grove, Y. Kostrov, and G. Ladas, On the Trichotomy character of $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha + \gamma x_{n-1}}{A + B x_n + x_{n-2}}$, J. Difference Equa. Appl. 9(2003), 1113-1128.
- [4] H.A. El-Metwally, E.A. Grove, and G. Ladas, A global convergence result with applications to periodic solutions, *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* **245**(2000), 161-170.
- [5] H.A. El-Metwally, E.A. Grove, G. Ladas, and H.D. Voulov, On the global attractivity and the periodic character of some difference equations, *J. Difference Equa. Appl.* 7(2001), 837-850.
- [6] C.H. Gibbons, M.R.S. Kulenović, and G. Ladas, On the recursive sequence $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha + \beta x_{n-1}}{\gamma + x_n}$, *Math. Sci. Res. Hot-Line* **4**(2000), 1-11.
- [7] E.A. Grove and G. Ladas, *Periodicities in Nonlinear Difference Equations*, Chapman & Hall/CRC Press, Boca Raton, 2005.
- [8] E.A. Grove, G. Ladas, M. Predescu, and M. Radin, On the global character of the difference equation $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha + \gamma x_{n-(2k+1)} + \delta x_{n-2l}}{A + x_{n-2l}}$, J. Difference Equa. *Appl.* **9**(2003), 171-200.
- [9] G.L. Karakostas and S. Stevic, On the recursive sequence $x_{n+1} = B + \frac{x_{n-k}}{a_0x_n + \dots + a_{k-1}x_{n-k+1} + \gamma}$, J. Difference Equa. Appl. **10**(2004), 809-815.
- [10] V.L. Kocic and G. Ladas, *Global Behavior of Nonlinear Difference Equations of Higher Order with Applications*, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, 1993.
- [11] F.J. Palladino, Difference inequalities, comparison tests, and some consequences, *Involve J. Math.* **1**(2008), 101-110.
- [12] F.J. Palladino, On the Characterization of Rational Difference Equations, J. Difference Equa. Appl. 15(2009), 253-260.
- [13] F.J. Palladino, On periodic trichotomies, J. Difference Equa. Appl. 15(2009), 605-620.
- [14] S. Stević, On the recursive sequence $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha + \sum_{i=1}^{k} \alpha_i x_{n-p_i}}{1 + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \beta_j x_{n-q_j}}$, J. Difference Equa. *Appl.* **13**(2007), 41-46.



[15] Q. Wang, F. Zeng, G. Zang, and X. Liu, Dynamics of the difference equation $x_{n+1} = \frac{\alpha + B_1 x_{n-1} + B_3 x_{n-3} + \dots + B_{2k+1} x_{n-2k-1}}{A + B_0 x_n + B_2 x_{n-2} + \dots + B_{2k} x_{n-2k}}$, J. Difference Equa. Appl. 12(2006), 399-417.

A QRT-system of two order one homographic difference equations: conjugation to rotations, periods of periodic solutions, sensitiveness to initial conditions

GUY BASTIEN¹, <u>MARC ROGALSKI²</u>

¹ Institut Mathématique de Jussieu (Université Pierre et Marie Curie). E-mail address: bastien@math.jussieu.fr

22**-27** July 201

ICDEA2012

² Laboratoire Paul Painlevé (CNRS and Université des Sciences et Technologies de Lille), and Institut Mathématique de Jussieu (Université Pierre et Marie Curie). E-mail address: marc.rogalski@upmc.fr

We study the QRT-system of order one homographic difference equations in \mathbb{R}^{+2}_*

(1)
$$u_{n+1}u_n = 1 + \frac{d}{v_n}$$
 $v_{n+1}v_n = 1 + \frac{d}{u_{n+1}}$, for $d > 0$, $u_0 > 0$ $v_0 > 0$.

Using some tools presented in the references we prove the following results.

(1) The invariant $G(x,y) = x + y + \frac{1}{x} + \frac{1}{y} + \frac{d}{xy}$ has a strict minimum K_m at the equilibrium $L = (\ell, \ell)$ (where $\ell^3 - \ell - d = 0$), and so the solutions of (1) are permanent and L is locally stable. The orbit of a point $M_0 = (u_0, v_0) \in \mathbb{R}^{+2}_*$ is included in the positive component \mathcal{C}_K^+ of the cubic curve \mathcal{C}_K with equation (xy+1)(x+y) + d - Kxy = 0 passing through M_0 (for a unique $K > K_m$).

(2) With the use of the group law on the cubic C_K and with the use of Weierstrass' function \wp one can see that the restriction to C_K^+ of the map *F* defined on \mathbb{R}^{+2}_* by

$$F(x,y) = (X,Y)$$
, where $Xx = 1 + \frac{d}{y}$, $Yy = 1 + \frac{d}{X}$ with $F(u_n, v_n) = (u_{n+1}, v_{n+1})$

is conjugated to a rotation on the circle \mathbb{T} of an angle $2\pi\theta_d(K)$, where $\theta_d(K) \in]0, 1/2[$ is given explicitly by the ratio of two integrals. There is a non-empty open interval $I \subset]0, +\infty[$ such that for each $d \in I$ the map $K \mapsto \theta_d(K)$ is not one-to-one.

(3) The set of starting points with periodic orbits is dense in \mathbb{R}^{+2}_{*} , and the only integers which are not periods of some solution of (1) for some d > 0 are 2, 3, 4, 6 and 10.

22th-27th July 201 Casa de Convalescència Barre¹

ICDEA2012 18" International Conferen Difference Equations

(4) For every compact $\mathcal{K} \subset \mathbb{R}^{+2}_*$ not containing the equilibrium, it exists a number $\delta_{\mathcal{K}} > 0$ such that $F_{|_{\mathcal{K}}}$ has $\delta_{\mathcal{K}}$ -sensitiveness to initial conditions: in every neighborhood of $M \in \mathcal{K}$ it exists a point M' such that $||F^n(M) - F^n(M')|| \ge \delta_{\mathcal{K}}$ for infinitely many integers n.

- [1] Bastien G. and Rogalski M. *A biquadratic system of two order one difference equations: invariant, periods, sensibility to initial condition of the associated dynamical system,* to appear in Int. J. of Bifurcation and Chaos.
- [2] Bastien G. and Rogalski M. *Global behaviour of the solutions of Lyness' difference equation*, J. Difference Equations and Appl. **10**, (2004), 977-1003.

Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Diff. Eqs.

Averaging theorems for dynamic equations on time scales

ANTONÍN SLAVÍK

Charles University, Faculty of Mathematics and Physics, Sokolovská 83, 186 75 Praha 8, Czech Republic

E-mail address: slavik@karlin.mff.cuni.cz *URL*: http://www.karlin.mff.cuni.cz/~slavik

Classical averaging theorems for ordinary differential equations are concerned with the initial-value problem

$$x'(t) = \varepsilon f(t, x(t)) + \varepsilon^2 g(t, x(t), \varepsilon), \quad x(t_0) = x_0$$

where $\varepsilon > 0$ is a small parameter. According to these averaging theorems, a good approximation of the solution can be obtained by considering the autonomous differential equation

$$y'(t) = \varepsilon f^0(y(t)), \ y(t_0) = x_0$$

where $f^0(y) = \lim_{T \to \infty} \frac{1}{T} \int_{t_0}^{t_0+T} f(t,y) dt.$

The aim of the talk is to present time scale analogues of both periodic and nonperiodic averaging theorems, as well as a related theorem on the existence of periodic solutions of dynamic equations (see [1, 2]). We make use of the correspondence between dynamic equations and generalized ordinary differential equations (see [3]).

References

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescièncie

ICDEA2012

- [1] J. G. Mesquita, A. Slavík, *Periodic averaging theorems for various types of equations*, J. Math. Anal. Appl. **387** (2012), 862–877.
- [2] A. Slavík, Averaging dynamic equations on time scales, J. Math. Anal. Appl. 388 (2012), 996–1012.
- [3] A. Slavík, Dynamic equations on time scales and generalized ordinary differential equations, J. Math. Anal. Appl. **385** (2012), 534–550.



Oscillation theorems for second-order nonlinear difference equations of Euler type

ΝΑΟΤΟ ΥΑΜΑΟΚΑ

Department of Mathematical Sciences, Osaka Prefecture University, Sakai 599-8531, Japan

E-mail address: yamaoka@ms.osakafu-u.ac.jp

This talk deals with the oscillatory behavior of the difference equation which corresponds to the nonlinear differential equation of Euler type $x'' + f(x)/t^2 = 0$, where f(x) is continuous on \mathbb{R} and satisfies the signum condition xf(x) > 0 if $x \neq 0$. To give the oscillation theorem for the nonlinear difference equation, we consider the linear difference equation corresponding to the Riemann-Weber version of the Euler differential equation.

- [1] S. Elaydi, An Introduction to Difference Equations, Third edition, Springer, New York, 2005.
- [2] J. Sugie and K. Kita, Oscillation criteria for second order nonlinear differential equations of Euler type, J. Math. Anal. Appl., **253**, (2001), 414–439.
- [3] G. Zhang and S.S. Cheng, A necessary and sufficient oscillation condition for the discrete Euler equation, Panamer. Math. J., 9, (1999), 29–34.

Turan-type inequalities and Taylor domination for solutions of linear ODE's

22º-27º July 201

ICDEA2012

DMITRY BATENKOV¹, <u>YOSEF YOMDIN²</u>

¹ Department of Matematics, Weizmann Institute of Science, Rehovot 76100, Israel. E-mail address: dima.batenkov@weizmann.ac.il URL: http://www.wisdom.weizmann.ac.il/~dmitryb

² Department of Matematics, Weizmann Institute of Science, Rehovot 76100, Israel. E-mail address: yosef.yomdin@weizmann.ac.il URL: http://www.wisdom.weizmann.ac.il/~yomdin

Let a family of analytic functions $f_{\lambda}(z) = \sum_{k=0}^{\infty} a_k(\lambda) z^k$ be given, and let $R(\lambda)$ be the radius of convergence of f_{λ} . The family f_{λ} possesses a property of an (N, C)-uniform Taylor domination if

$$|a_k(\lambda)|R^k(\lambda) \le C \max_{i=0,\dots,N} |a_i(\lambda)|R^i(\lambda), k = N, N+1,\dots,$$
(1)

with *N* and *C* not depending on λ . Taylor domination provides, in particular, a uniform bound on the number of zeroes of f_{λ} in each disk strictly contained in the disk of convergence.

An important example is the family R^d_{λ} of all rational functions of degree *d*. Here uniform Taylor domination follows from the classical Turan lemma ([3]). Equivalently, Taylor domination holds for solutions of a linear recurrence relation with constant coefficients.

In this talk we discuss uniform Taylor domination for solutions of linear differential equations with polynomial coefficients, or for linear recurrence relations with the coefficients polynomially depending on the index. This is the situation of the classical Poincaré-Perron theorem ([2]), however, we are not aware of any generalization of the Turan lemma to this case. We prove a weaker version, where Cin (1) is replaced by C^k , and discuss a "dynamical" approach (as in some proofs of the Poincaré-Perron theorem - see [2, 1]) to the original case. We also consider Taylor domination for the sequences of the moments of a given algebraic function. Session: Asymptotic Behavior and Periodicity of Diff. Eqs.



- [1] J. Borcea, S. Friedland, B. Shapiro, Parametric Poincaré-Perron theorem with applications. J. Anal. Math. 113 (2011), 197-225.
- [2] H. Poincare, Sur les Equations Lineaires aux Differentielles Ordinaires et aux Differences Finies. (French) Amer. J. Math. 7(3) (1885), 203–258.
- [3] P. Turan, Eine neue Methode in der Analysis und deren Anwendungen. Akademiai Kiado, Budapest, 1953. 196 pp.

Special Session Applications of Difference Equations to Biology

J. Cushing, S. Elaydi and J. Li



The dynamics of some contest-competition population models with the effect of harvesting and stocking

ZIYAD ALSHARAWI

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, Sultan Qaboos University, Muscat, PC 123 Oman E-mail address: alshalzm@alsharawi.info URL: http://www.alsharawi.info

In this talk, we consider contest-competition population models of the form $x_{n+1} = x_n f(x_{n-k})$, where k = 0, 1 and the map f(x) is decreasing on $[0, \infty)$. We investigate the dynamics under different harvesting or stocking strategies. In particular, we give some results concerning periodicity, stability, invariants and persistent sets.



Geometric methods for global stability in the Ricker competition model

E. CABRAL BALREIRA¹, SABER ELAYDI², RAFAEL LUÍS³

¹ Department of Matematics, Trinity University, San Antonio, Texas, USA. E-mail address: ebalreir@trinity.edu URL: http://ramanujan.math.trinity.edu/balreira/index.shtml

² Department of Matematics, Trinity University, San Antonio, Texas, USA, and Fellow of the Center of Mathematical Analysis, Geometry, and Dynamical Systems, Instituto Superior Tecnico, Technical University of Lisbon, Lisbon, Portugal.

E-mail address: selaydi@trinity.edu *URL:* http://ramanujan.math.trinity.edu/selaydi/index.shtml

³ Center of Mathematical Analysis, Geometry, and Dynamical Systems, Instituto Superior Tecnico, Technical University of Lisbon, Lisboa, Portugal.

E-mail address: rafael.luis.madeira@gmail.com *URL*: http://members.netmadeira.com/rafaelluis/

It is an important problem to determine when local conditions can be globally verified. In [2] and [3], the authors investigated the local stability of the equilibrium points of the logistic competition model and the Ricker competition model, respectively. It was shown that the coexistence equilibrium point of the Ricker competition model is locally asymptotically stable if the parameters lie in a certain stability region in the parameter space.

Later in [1] it was conjectured that the coexistence (positive) equilibrium is indeed globally asymptotically stable in the hypotheses above. In this talk, we will discuss the geometric and topological tools that allow us to completely describe the geometry of the image of the Ricker map. We will use singularity theory to describe the relative position of the images of the critical curves and, using methods from covering space theory, we will describe the regions where the cardinality of the pre-images of points are constant. Finally we will describe how these methods are used to show global stability.



- [1] S. Elaydi and R. Luís, *Open problems in some competition models*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, **17(12)** (2011), 1873–1877.
- [2] M. Guzowska, R. Luís, and S. Elaydi, *Bifurcation and invariant manifolds of the logistic competition model*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, 17(12) (2011), 1851–1872.
- [3] R. Luís, S. Elaydi and H. Oliveira, *Stability of a Ricker-type competition model and the competitive exclusion principle*, Journal of Biological Dynamics, **5(6)** (2011), 636–660.



Difference equations arising in evolutionary population dynamics

JIM M. CUSHING¹, SIMON MACCRACKEN STUMP²

¹ Department of Mathematics, Interdisciplinary Program in Applied Mathematics, The University of Arizona, 617 N. Santa Rita Ave., Tucson, AZ 85721 USA. E-mail address: cushing@math.arizona.edu URL: http://math.arizona.edu/~cushing/

² Department of Ecology & Evolutionary Biology, The University of Arizona, 1041 E. Lowell St., Tucson, AZ 85721 USA. E-mail address: sstump@email.arizona.edu

Difference (matrix) equation models in population dynamics that arise in the modeling of certain life history strategies, namely semelparity, give rise to an interesting dynamic dichotomy. This dichotomy consists of two invariant sets, each of which is a potential attractor (but never both) [1]. One is an equilibrium interior to the positive cone and the other lies on the boundary of the positive cone (and yields synchronized periodic orbits). Which is the attractor depends on the nature of the nonlinearities (specifically the strengths of the nonlinear interactions between and within age classes) [2, 3]. I will describe the difference equations that arise when such a population is subject Darwinian evolution [4] and give theorems that describe the nature of the dynamic dichotomy in an evolutionary context.

- [1] Cushing, J. M., *Nonlinear semelparous Leslie models*, Mathematical Biosciences and Engineering **3**, No.1 (2006), 17-36
- [2] Cushing, J. M., *Three stage semelparous Leslie models*, Journal of Mathematical Biology **59** (2009), 75-104
- [3] Cushing, J. M., *A dynamic dichotomy for a system of hierarchical difference equations*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, **18** No.1 (2012), 1-26
Session: Applications of Diff. Eq. to Biology



[4] Cushing, J. M., *A bifurcation theorem for Darwinian matrix models*, Nonlinear Studies, **17**, No.1 (2010), 1-13



Allee effect in two interacting species

SABER ELAYDI¹, Y. KANG², G. LIVADIOTIS³, E. KWESSI⁴

¹ Department of Mathematics, Trinity University, USA. E-mail address: selaydi@trinity.edu URL: http://ramanujan.math.trinity.edu/selaydi/

- ² University of Arizona, USA.
- ³ Southwest Research Institute, San Antonio, Texas, USA.
- ⁴ Department of Mathematics, Trinity University, USA.

This work extends the notion of Allee effect to two-dimensional setting. In this setting, Allee (threshold) point will be replaced by Allee (threshold) curve. The case we examine here is when one or both species possess the Allee effect. The notion of critical curves and singularity theory will be used to understanding the global dynamics of certain competition models with Allee effect.

- [1] G. Livadiotis and S. Elaydi, General Allee Effect in two-Species Population Biology, to appear in JBD.
- [2] S. Elaydi, R. Sacker, Population Models with Allee effect: A new model, J. Biological Dynamics, vol. 4 (2010), 397-408.
- [3] C. Mira, Chaotic Dynamics, World Scientific, Singapore, 1987.
- [4] H. Whitney, On singularities of mappings of Euclidean spaces, mapping of the plane into itself, Annals of Math. 62(3), 1955, 374-410.



Global asymptotically stable of a generalized discrete Lotka-Volterra competition system

Yoshihiro Hamaya

Department of Information Science Okayama University of Science 1-1 Ridai-chyo Kitaku Okayama 700-0005, Japan

E-mail address: hamaya@mis.ous.ac.jp

Sufficient conditions for the global asymptotic stability of one equilibrium point of a generalized Lotka-Volterra competition system, which appears as a model for dynamics with one extinct species, is obtained by applying the technique of average functions and limiting equations.

- S. Ahmad and F. Montes de Oca. Average growth and extinction in a two dimensional Lotka-Volterra system, Dyn. Conti. Discrete Implus. Syst. Ser A 9, (2002), 177-186.
- [2] S. N. Elaydi, An Introduction to Difference Equations, Third Edition, Springer, 2005.
- [3] T. Itokazu and Y. Hamaya, *Almost periodic solutions of prey-predator discrete models with delay*, Advances in Diff. Equs. Article ID 976865 (online), 2009
- [4] T. Taniguchi, *Permanence and global asymptotic stability for a generalized nonautonomous Lotka-Volterra competition system,* to appear



Local stability implies global stability in the Ricker competition model

Eduardo Balreira¹, Saber Elaydi², <u>Rafael Luís</u>³

¹ Department of Matematics, Trinity University, San Antonio, Texas, USA. E-mail address: ebalreir@trinity.edu URL: http://ramanujan.math.trinity.edu/balreira/index.shtml

² Department of Matematics, Trinity University, San Antonio, Texas, USA, and Fellow of the Center of Mathematical Analysis, Geometry, and Dynamical Systems, Instituto Superior Tecnico, Technical University of Lisbon, Lisbon, Portugal. E-mail address: selaydi@trinity.edu URL: http://ramanujan.math.trinity.edu/selaydi/index.shtml

³ Center of Mathematical Analysis, Geometry, and Dynamical Systems, Instituto Superior Tecnico, Technical University of Lisbon, Lisboa, Portugal. E-mail address: rafael.luis.madeira@gmail.com URL: http://members.netmadeira.com/rafaelluis/

In [2] and [3] the authors investigated the local stability of the equilibrium points of the logistic competition model and the Ricker competition model, respectively. It was shown that in each model, the coexistence equilibrium point is locally asymptotically stable if the parameters lie in a certain stability region in the parameter space.

We conjectured in [1] that in this stability region, the coexistence (positive) equilibrium is indeed globally asymptotically stable with respect to the interior of the first quadrant. The proof of this conjecture follow a complex set of tools. It includes singularity theory of planar maps, the notion of critical curves, one-point compactification of the positive quadrant, the dynamics of the local slow manifold of the coexistence fixed point and the global unstable manifold of the exclusion fixed point.

In this talk we will focus our attention in the dynamics of the manifolds. We will present the principal tolls that we use to show global stability of the coexistence fixed point.



- [1] S. Elaydi and R. Luís, *Open problems in some competition models*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, **17(12)** (2011), 1873–1877.
- [2] M. Guzowska, R. Luís, and S. Elaydi, *Bifurcation and invariant manifolds of the logistic competition model*, Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, 17(12) (2011), 1851–1872.
- [3] R. Luís, S. Elaydi and H. Oliveira, *Stability of a Ricker-type competition model and the competitive exclusion principle*, Journal of Biological Dynamics, **5(6)** (2011), 636–660.



Phase as determined by Correlation is irrelevant for Resonance versus Attenuation in the Beverton-Holt model

YI YANG¹, ROBERT J. SACKER²

¹ Department of Mathematics and Physics, Chongqing University of Science and Technology, Chongqing, 401331, China. E-mail address: yangyi-2001@163.com

² Department of Mathematics, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, CA 90089-2532, USA.

E-mail address: rsacker@usc.edu URL: http://www-bcf.usc.edu/~rsacker

An exact expression is derived relating the state average of the periodic solution x_j to the average of the environmental carrying capacities K_j for the periodic Beverton-Holt equation for arbitrary period. By studying numerically the period 3 case we show that the correlation coefficient of the intrinsic growth rates u_j and K_j is not relevant in determining attenuation or resonance. Instead a new criterion is presented.

Special Session Complex Dynamics

B. Devaney, N. Fagella and X. Jarque



Rigidity for non-recurrent exponential maps

ANNA M. BENINI

Scuola Normale Superiore, Piazza Cavalieri 7, Pisa, Italy E-mail address: ambenini@gmail.com

An exponential map $f(z) = e^z + c$ is called non-recurrent if the asymptotic value c is not in the accumulation set of its own forward orbit. We will present the result that whenever two non-recurrent exponential maps satisfy some combinatorial equivalence, then they are conjugate by a quasiconformal map. If moreover c has a bounded orbit, the conjugation can be made conformal.



On the Tongues of a Degree 4 Blashcke Product

JORDI CANELA

Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada i Anàlisi Universitat de Barcelona, Barcelona, Spain

E-mail address: canela@maia.ub.es

The family of Blashcke products $B_a(z) = z^3(z-a)/(1-\bar{a}z)$ is the rational analogous of the double standard family given by $h(z) = e^{i\alpha}z^2e^{\beta/2(z-1/z)}$. Both families restrict, for certain parameters, to degree 2 coverings of the unit circle. This fact leads to some interesting phenomena like the existence of tongues in the parameter plane. This tongues were studied for the first time by M. Misiurewicz and A. Rodrigues [1] and are a degree 2 analogous of the Arnold Tongues.

During the talk we will introduce the concept of tongue for the Blashcke family and we will study what occurs around the tongues. We will also study some phenomena which take place because of not having an holomorphic dependence with respect to parameters, like the existence of small copies of the Mandelbar set (see [2]).

- [1] M. Misiurewicz and A. Rodrigues *Double standard maps*, Comm. Math. Phys. **273** (2007), no. 1, 37–65.
- [2] W. Crowe, R. Hasson, P. Rippon and P. E. D. Strain-Clark *On the structure of the Mandelbar set* Nonlinearity **2** (1989), 541–553.



Conformal dimension and combinatorial modulus: applications to rational maps

MATÍAS CARRASCO

Centre de Mathématiques et Informatique, Université Aix-Marseille, Marseille, France E-mail address: matias@cmi.univ-mrs.fr URL: http://www.latp.univ-mrs.fr/~matias

A fundamental quasisymmetry numerical invariant of a compact metric space X is its conformal dimension $\dim_{AR} X$. It was introduced by P. Pansu in order to classify, up to quasi-isometry, homogeneous spaces of negative curvature [3, 2]. Motivated by Sullivan's dictionary [4, 1], which establishes a fundamental correspondence between the properties of hyperbolic groups and of a particular class of finite branched coverings, I will define this invariant in the context of rational maps. I will show how to compute $\dim_{AR} X$ using the critical exponent Q_M associated to the combinatorial modulus, which is a discrete version of the conformal modulus from complex analysis. Finally, I will apply this result to compute the conformal dimension of the Julia sets of some hyperbolic rational maps.

- [1] P. Haïssinsky, K. Pilgrim, *Coarse Expanding Conformal Dynamics*, Astérisque 325 2009.
- [2] J. Mackay, J. Tyson, *Conformal dimension: theory and application*, University Lecture Series, AMS 2010.
- [3] P. Pansu, Dimension conforme et sphère à l'infini des variétés à courbure négative, Ann. Acad. Sci. Fenn. Ser. A I Math. 14 (1989), 177–212.
- [4] D. Sullivan, *Conformal dynamical systems*, Geometric dynamics (Rio de Janeiro, 1981), Lecture Notes in Math., 1007, Springer, Berlin (1983), 725–752.



Perturbed Polynomial Maps with Small Perturbation

DANIEL CUZZOCREO

Boston University

E-mail address: dcuzz@bu.edu

We consider the family of rational maps $F_{\lambda}(z) = z^n + \frac{\lambda}{z^n}$ with $\lambda \in \mathbb{C}$. For n > 2, Julia sets for maps corresponding to parameters near the origin are Cantor sets of simple closed curves. For n = 2, however, as λ approaches zero, it is known that the Julia sets for these maps converge to the closed unit disc in the Hausdorff metric. In this talk, we give a description of a "ring structure" in the parameter plane for n = 2 near $\lambda = 0$, identifying a pattern of rings of alternating Sierpiński holes and Mandelbrot sets surrounding the origin.



Convergence of Rational Rays in Hyperbolic Components

ASLI DENIZ

Department of Science, Systems and Models, Roskilde University, Universitetvej 1, 4000 Roskilde DENMARK

E-mail address: adeniz@ruc.dk

We are interested in entire transcendental maps with two singular values, one of which is a fixed critical value, and the other is a free asymptotic value, with only one finite preimage. The family of such maps can be parametrized as:

$$f_a(z) = a(e^z(z-1)+1)$$

where the critical value is fixed at z = 0, and the asymptotic value is at z = a, with finite preimage at z = 1.

In this talk, we illustrate in this family, proof of a landing theorem of rational rays in hyperbolic components by means of Carathéodory Convergence Theory, and discuss further results in parameter spaces.



Dynamics of different classes of meromorphic functions with a finite set of singular values

PATRICIA DOMÍNGUEZ-SOTO

Facultad de Ciencias Físico-Matemáticas, Universidad Autónoma de Puebla, Ciudad Universitaria, CP 72570, Puebla, México

E-mail address: pdsoto@fcfm.buap.mx

We will define some classes of meromorphic functions which have a finite set of singular values. We will state some results in complex dynamics which can be applied to all of these classes of functions. We will also give some new results.



Quadratic Mating Discontinuity

ADAM EPSTEIN

Mathematics Institute, University of Warwick, Coventry, CV47AL, United Kingdom

According to Milnor, the mating operation is interesting because it has none of the usual good properties. It is not injective, surjective, everywher defined, or continuous. We give a survey of discontinuity mechanisms, with special attention to the quadratic case.



On the existence of absorbing domains in Baker domains

K. BARANSKI¹, <u>N. FAGELLA²</u>, X. JARQUE³, B. KARPINSKA⁴

¹ Institute of Mathematics, University of Warsaw.

² Universitat de Barcelona.

³ Universitat de Barcelona.

⁴ Warsaw University of Technology.

Let *U* be a hyperbolic domain in \mathbb{C} and let $f : U \to U$ be a holomorphic map. An invariant domain $W \subset U$ is called *absorbing in U* for *f* if for every compact set $K \subset U$ there exists n = n(K) > 0, such that $f^n(K) \subset W$. The problem of existence of absorbing domains for a given *f* and *U* has a long history, since such sets are useful in many problems in dynamics.

Based in the Denjoy-Wolf Theorem (on dynamics of holomorphic maps on the unit disc), Cowen proved the existence of a simply connected absorbing domain $V \subset \mathbb{H}$ for holomorphic maps $G : \mathbb{H} \to \mathbb{H}$ (where \mathbb{H} denotes the right half plane) such that $G^n \to \infty$ as $n \to \infty$. He also showed the existence of a semiconjugacy (actually a conjugacy on V) of the map G to a Möbius transformation T acting on Ω where $\Omega \in {\mathbb{H}, \mathbb{C}}$.

Later, König used Cowen's Theorem to prove the existence of simply connected absorbing domains in Baker domains of meromorphic maps with finitely many poles. Moreover König also showed, by means of an example, that simply connected absorbing domains do not always exist.

The main result we present here is the existence of (possibly multiply connected) absorbing domains in the general case (putting especial attention on the case of Baker domains for transcendental meromorphic functions). In another talk, Xavier Jarque will show how to use this result to prove the connectedness of the Julia set for transcendental meromorphic maps having no weakly repelling fixed points.



Homeomorphisms Between Julia Sets for Rational Maps

ELIZABETH L. FITZGIBBON

Boston University

E-mail address: lizfitz@bu.edu

We consider the family of rational maps $F_{\lambda}(z) = z^2 + \frac{\lambda}{z^2}$ with $\lambda \in \mathbb{C}$. In particular, we choose λ from the main cardioid of an accessible period-k baby Mandelbrot set with $k \geq 2$. When k = 2, there exists a dynamical invariant (identical to that used in the discussion of checkerboard Julia sets) to determine when the dynamics of two such maps are conjugate. When k > 2, we discuss the existence of a topological invariant for homeomorphisms between Julia sets of the same prime period.



Sierpiński curve Julia sets for quadratic rational maps

ANTONIO GARIJO

Departament d'Enginyeria Informàtica i Matemàtiques, Universitat Rovira i Virgili, Campus Sescelades–Tarragona, 43007

E-mail address: antonio.garijo@urv.cat

The Sierpiński carpet fractal is one best known planar, compact, connected sets. It is a universal plane continuum and there is a topological characterization of this set. Any planar set homeomorphic to a Sierpiński carpet is called a Sierpiński curve. In recent years several authors have shown that Sierpiński curve can arise as the Julia set of certain holomorphic functions. We make an attempt towards a more systematic approach to the problem of existence of Sierpiński curves as Julia sets of rational maps. Our goal is to find dynamical conditions under which we can assure that the Julia set of a certain quadratic rational map is a Sierpiński curve.



A family of rational maps with buried Julia components

SÉBASTIEN GODILLON

Laboratoire AGM / Dept. de Mathématiques Université de Cergy-Pontoise 2, avenue Adolphe Chauvin 95 302 CERGY-PONTOISE CEDEX FRANCE E-mail address: sebastien.godillon@u-cergy.fr URL: http://godillon.u-cergy.fr/

A Julia component is said buried if it has no intersection with the boundary of any Fatou domain. It is well known that may not arise for polynomial maps. The first example of such Julia components is due to Curtis McMullen [1] who provided a family of rational maps for which the disconnected Julia set is a Cantor of Jordan curves. However all known examples of buried Julia components, up to now, are wandering Jordan curves and comes from rational maps of degree at least 5.

I will introduce a family of degree 3 rational maps whose disconnected Julia set contains buried Julia components of all types which may occur a priori according to a result of Kevin Pilgrim and Tan Lei [2]: wandering points, wandering Jordan curves but also preperiodic infinitely connected Julia components. That totally answers a question McMullen raised since 3 is the minimal degree expected for rational map with buried Julia components [3].

- [1] Curtis McMullen, *Automorphisms of rational maps*, Holomorphic Functions and Moduli, 1:31-60, 1988.
- [2] Kevin Pilgrim and Tan Lei, *Rational maps with disconnected Julia set*, Astérisque, 261:349-384, 2000.
- [3] John Milnor, *Remarks on quadratic rational maps*, Experimental Mathematics, 1:5-24, 1992.



Dynamic Rays for Transcendental Holomorphic Self-maps of \mathbb{C}^*

David Martí Pete

Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada i Anàlisi, Universitat de Barcelona, Gran Via de les Corts Catalanes 585, 08007–Barcelona, Spain

E-mail address: david@maia.ub.es *URL:* http://www.maia.ub.es/~david

I am interested in the iteration of holomorphic self-maps of the punctured plane $\mathbb{C}^* = \mathbb{C} \setminus \{0\}$ for which both zero and infinity are essential singularities. These maps are of the form $f(z) = z^n \exp(g(z) + h(1/z))$ with $n \in \mathbb{Z}$ and g(z), h(z) non-constant entire functions. In particular, I would like to understand what is the structure of the escaping set I(f), the set of points whose orbit accumulates to zero and/or infinity.

In the setting of transcendental entire functions, A. Eremenko conjectured that every $z \in I(f)$ could be joined with ∞ by a curve in I(f). In analogy to what G. Rottenfußer, J. Rückert, L. Rempe and D. Schleicher proved in [1] for functions in class \mathcal{B} , we show that this property holds for a class of functions whose singular set is bounded away from zero and from infinity and satisfy some technical conditions which are related to the notion of finite order.

References

 Günter Rottenfußer, Johannes Rückert, Lasse Rempe and Dierk Schleicher Dynamic rays of bounded-type entire functions, Ann. of Math. (2) 173 (2011), no. 1, 77–125.



A combinatorial invariant for escape time Sierpinski rational maps

MÓNICA MORENO ROCHA

Centro de Investigación en Matemáticas, 36240–Guanajuato, México

E-mail address: mmoreno@cimat.mx

An escape time Sierpinski map is a rational map drawn from the McMullen family $z \mapsto z^n + \lambda/z^n$ with escaping critical orbits and Julia set homeomorphic to the Sierpinski curve continuum. We address the problem of characterizing (postcritically finite) escape time Sierpinski maps in a combinatorial way. To accomplish this, we define a combinatorial model given by a planar tree whose vertices come with a pair of combinatorial data that codifies the dynamics of critical orbits. We show that each escape time Sierpinski map realizes a subgraph of the combinatorial tree and the combinatorial information is a complete conjugacy invariant.



Some results on the size of escaping sets

Jörn Peter

Mathematisches Seminar, Christian-Albrechts-Universität zu Kiel, 24098 Kiel, Germany

Let f be a transcendental entire function in the class B, that is, the set of singular values of f is bounded. We present some new results about the Hausdorff dimension and Hausdorff measure of the escaping set I(f) and various subsets of it.

We show that for any given sequence (p_n) tending to ∞ , the set of escaping points with $|f^n(z)| \le p_n$ always has Hausdorff dimension at least 1, and that there are functions f for which this set can be 'larger' than the fast escaping set of f (in a certain sense). This result contrasts with the situation for exponential maps, since in this case it is known that the fast escaping set has a larger Hausdorff dimension than the set points that escape slowly.

Further, we set $B_{\rho} := \{f \in B : f \text{ has order } \rho\}$. We show that the set I(f) has infinite Hausdorff measure with respect to a certain gauge function h_{ρ} for every $\rho \ge 1/2$ and $f \in B_{\rho}$. On the other hand, for $\tilde{\rho}$ large enough, we prove the existence of a function $f \in B_{\tilde{\rho}}$ such that I(f) has zero measure with respect to h_{ρ} . This means that the escaping sets of functions in class B of finite order can become smaller as the order increases.



Regularity and fast escaping points of entire functions

Phil Rippon

(in collaboration with Gwyneth Stallard)

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, The Open University, Milton Keynes MK7 6AA UK

E-mail address: p.j.rippon@open.ac.uk

We give a new sufficient condition for a point to be in the fast escaping set A(f) of a transcendental entire function f; see [2] for details and results about A(f). More precisely, we show that the 'quite fast escaping set' Q(f), introduced in [3], is equal to A(f) if and only if the maximum modulus of f satisfies a certain regularity condition called 'weak regularity'. We show that weak regularity holds, as does an even stronger regularity condition called 'log-regularity', whenever the minimum modulus of f is not too large, in particular whenever f belongs to the Eremenko-Lyubich class \mathcal{B} ; see [1].

- [1] A.E. Eremenko and M.Yu. Lyubich, Dynamical properties of some classes of entire functions, *Ann. Inst. Fourier, Grenoble*, 42 (1992), 989–1020.
- [2] P.J. Rippon and G.M. Stallard, Fast escaping points of entire functions, *Proc. London Math. Soc.*, doi:10.1112/plms/pds001.
- [3] P.J. Rippon and G.M. Stallard, Prescribed rates of escape for entire functions. In preparation.



About rigidity

PASCALE RŒSCH

Institut of Matematics of Toulouse, France E-mail address: pascale.roesch@math.univ-toulouse.fr URL: http://www.math.univ-toulouse.fr/~roesch/

We will present how rigidity results can be used to study the boundary of hyperbolic components.



Singular perturbations in the quadratic family

ELIZABETH D. RUSSELL

(in collaboration with Antonio Garijo and Sebastian Marotta)

Department of Mathematics, Western New England University, 01119–Massachusetts, USA

E-mail address: elizabeth.d.russell@gmail.com

In recent years, families of complex rational maps that result from perturbing well known quadratic maps such as $Q_0(z) = z^2$ and $Q_c(z) = z^n + c$, where c is the center of the corresponding Multibrot set, have been of interest. In this presentation, we consider maps of the form $P_c(z) = z^2 + c$, where c is the center of a hyperbolic component of the Mandelbrot set, that have been perturbed by the addition of a pole or multiple poles which affect the superattracting cycle of the unperturbed map. We will focus on the topological and dynamical characteristics of the resulting Julia sets. In particular, we will give conditions which guarantee that the corresponding Julia set contains homeomorphic copies of the unperturbed Julia set, Cantor sets of quasicircles, and Cantor sets of point components that accumulate on these curves.



Spiders web escaping sets

GWYNETH STALLARD (in collaboration with Phil Rippon)

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, The Open University, Milton Keynes MK7 6AA UK

E-mail address: g.m.stallard@open.ac.uk

We discuss examples of functions for which the escaping set I(f) has the structure of a 'spider's web'. In particular, we consider the case that a subset $A_R(f)$ of the fast escaping set A(f) has this structure. In this case the function has many strong dynamical properties, and both Eremenko's conjecture and Baker's conjecture hold as discussed in [2]. Further, the escaping set has a very intricate structure as described in [2] and [1]. We conclude by giving examples for which the 'quite fast escaping set' Q(f) is a spider's web (by results in [3]) but A(f) is not, as shown in [4].

- [1] J.W. Osborne, The structure of spider's web fast escaping sets, *Bull. London Math. Soc.*, doi:10.1112/blms/bdr112.
- [2] P.J. Rippon and G.M. Stallard, Fast escaping points of entire functions, *Proc. London Math. Soc.*, doi:10.1112/plms/pds001.
- [3] P.J. Rippon and G.M. Stallard, Baker's and Eremenko's conjecture for functions with negative zeros. To appear in *Journal d'Analyse*, arXiv: 1112.5103.
- [4] P.J. Rippon and G.M. Stallard, A sharp growth condition for a fast escaping spider's web. In preparation.



Regluing and topological models for quadratic rational functions

VLADLEN TIMORIN

(in collaboration with Inna Mashanova)

Department of Matematics, National Research University Higher School of Economics, 7 Vavilova St., 117312 Moscow, Russian Federation E-mail address: vtimorin@hse.ru URL: http://www.mccme.ru/~timorin/

We consider rational functions of one complex variable as topological dynamical systems on the sphere. These maps can be given by explicit formulas. However, explicit algebraic descriptions do not provide a good understanding of topological dynamics. Thus one needs descriptions, which we call *topological models*, that would be explicit in a different sense, i.e. from the viewpoint of topological dynamics.

Topological models for polynomials with locally connected Julia sets can be described in terms of *Thurston's laminations* in the disk. There are several remarkable constructions that build topological models for rational functions out of topological models for polynomials, for example, *matings* and *captures*.

We discuss another surgery tool called *regluing* [1]. It can be used to build new topological models for rational functions out of the already known topological models. E.g. captures can be understood as regluings. Moreover, regluing produces many matings out of every capture. In this way, we can prove that the boundaries of many hyperbolic components in parameter slices of degree two rational functions consist of matings [2].

References

 V. Timorin, "Topological regluing of rational functions", Inventiones Math., 179 (2009), Issue 3, 461–506



[2] I. Mashanova, V. Timorin, "Captures, matings and regluings", to applear in the special issue of the Annales de Toulouse following the International Conference on Polynomial Matings.



Connectivity of Julia sets of meromorphic maps with Baker domains

Krzysztof Barański¹, Núria Fagella², <u>Xavier Jarque³</u>, Boguslawa Karpińska⁴

¹ Institute of Mathematics, University of Warsaw, 02–097 Warsawa, Poland.

² Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada i Anàlisi, Universitat de Barcelona, 08007 Barcelona, Catalunya, Spain.

³ Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada i Anàlisi, Universitat de Barcelona, 08007 Barcelona, Catalunya, Spain.

⁴ Faculty of Mathematics, Warsaw University of Technology, 00–661 Warsawa, Poland.

In this talk we show that if a meromorphic transcendental map has a multiply connected Baker domain, then it must also have at least one weakly repelling fixed point (i.e. repelling or with derivative equal to one). This was the last remaining case in the proof of the following result (which was proven by Shishikura for rational maps): If f is a meromorphic transcendental map with a disconnected Julia set, then f has a weakly repelling fixed point. The historical motivation of this theorem was its corollary, namely that the Julia set of Newton's method of every entire map is connected or, equivalently, all its Fatou components are simply connected. To prove this theorem we use a result explained in Núria Fagella's talk, which shows the existence of absorbing regions in Baker domains, a question which has been open for some time.



Some applications of approximation theory to complex dynamics

ANAND P. SINGH

Department of Matematics, Central University of Rajasthan Bander Sindri Kishangarh-305801, Rajasthan INDIA

E-mail address: singhanandp@rediffmail.com

Let f be a transcendental entire function. For $n \in \mathbb{N}$, let f^n denote the n^{th} iterate of f. The set $F(f) = \{z \in \mathbb{C} : (f^n)_{n \in \mathbb{N}} \text{ is normal in some neighbourhood of } z\}$ is called the Fatou set of f, and the set $\mathbb{C} \setminus F(f)$ denoted by J(f) is called the Julia set of f.

Let U be a component of F(f), then by complete invariance of the Fatou set, f(U) lies in some component V of F(f). If $U_n \cap U_m = \phi$ for $n \neq m$, where U_n denotes the component of F(f) which contains $f^n(U)$, then U is called a wandering domain, else U is called a pre-periodic domain, and if $U_n = U$ for some $n \in \mathbb{N}$, then U is called periodic domain.

Here we present some of the results that we have obtained on the wandering and periodic domains using approximation theory.

Special Session Chaotic Linear Dynamics

J. P. Bès, P. Oprocha and A. Peris



Graph theoretic structure of maps of the Cantor space

NILSON C. BERNARDES JR.¹, UDAYAN B. DARJI²

¹ Instituto de Matemática, Universidade Federal do Rio de Janeiro, Caixa Postal 68530, Rio de Janeiro, RJ 21945-970, Brazil. Current address: Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada, Universitat Politècnica de València, Edifici 7A, 46022, València, Spain. E-mail address: bernardes@im.ufrj.br

² Department of Mathematics, University of Louisville, Louisville, KY 40292, USA. E-mail address: ubdarj01@louisville.edu

We develop unifying graph theoretic techniques to study the dynamics and the structure of the spaces H(X) and C(X), the space of homeomorphisms and the space of continuous self-maps of the Cantor space X, respectively. Using our methods, we give characterizations which determine when two homeomorphisms of the Cantor space are conjugate to each other. We also give a new characterization of the comeager conjugacy class of the space H(X). The existence of this class was established by Kechris and Rosendal in [9] and a specific element of this class was described concretely by Akin, Glasner and Weiss in [1]. Our characterization readily implies many old and new dynamical properties of elements of this class. For example, we show that no element of this class has a Li-Yorke pair, implying the well known Glasner-Weiss result [8] that there is a comeager subset of H(X) each element of which has topological entropy zero. Our analogous investigation in C(X) yields a surprising result: there is a comeager subset of C(X) such that any two elements of this set are conjugate to each other by an element of H(X). Our description of this class also yields many old and new results concerning dynamics of a comeager subset of C(X).

- [1] E. Akin, E. Glasner and B. Weiss, *Generically there is but one self homeomorphism of the Cantor set*, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. **360** (2008), no. 7, 3613–3630.
- [2] E. Akin, M. Hurley and J. Kennedy, *Dynamics of topologically generic homeomorphisms*, Mem. Amer. Math. Soc. **164** (2003), no. 783.



- [3] F. Blanchard, E. Glasner, S. Kolyada and A. Maass, *On Li-Yorke pairs*, J. Reine Angew. Math. **547** (2002), 51–68.
- [4] L. Block and J. Keesling, *A characterization of adding machine maps*, Topology Appl. **140** (2004), no. 2-3, 151–161.
- [5] J. Buescu and I. Stewart, *Lyapunov stability and adding machines*, Ergodic Theory Dynam. Systems **15** (1995), 271–290.
- [6] E. D'Aniello and U. B. Darji, *Chaos among self-maps of the Cantor space*, J. Math. Anal. Appl. **381** (2011), no. 2, 781–788.
- [7] E. D'Aniello, U. B. Darji and T. H. Steele, *Ubiquity of odometers in topological dynamical systems*, Topology Appl. **156** (2008), no. 2, 240–245.
- [8] E. Glasner and B. Weiss, *The topological Rohlin property and topological entropy*, Amer. J. Math. **123** (2001), no. 6, 1055–1070.
- [9] A. S. Kechris and C. Rosendal, *Turbulence, amalgamation, and generic automorphisms of homogeneous structures*, Proc. London Math. Soc. (3) 94 (2007), no. 2, 302–350.
- [10] M. Mazur, Weak shadowing for discrete dynamical systems on nonsmooth manifolds, J. Math. Anal. Appl. 281 (2003), no. 2, 657–662.
- [11] J. K. Truss, Generic automorphisms of homogeneous structures, Proc. London Math. Soc. (3) 65 (1992), no. 1, 121–141.



Li-Yorke and distributional chaos for linear operators

A. BONILLA

Departamento de Análisis Matemático Universidad de La Laguna 38271 La Laguna (Tenerife), Spain

E-mail address: abonilla@ull.es

We show the equivalence between Li-Yorke chaos and the existence of an irregular vector and the equivalence between distributional chaos and the existence of a distributionally irregular vector for a linear continuous operator in a Banach spaces.

Moreover we give sufficient conditions in order to obtain dense distributional chaos in Frechet spaces. As consecuence we obtain:

A)Let *T* be a linear and continuous operator on *X*. If there exists a dense set X_0 such that $\lim_{n\to\infty} T^n x = 0$, for all $x \in X_0$ and one of the following conditions is true:

a) *X* is a Fréchet space and there exists a eigenvalue λ with $|\lambda| > 1$.

b) *X* is a Banach space and $\sum \frac{1}{\|T^n\|} < \infty$ (in particular if r(T) > 1).

c) *X* is a Hilbert space and $\sum \frac{1}{\|T^n\|^2} < \infty$ (in particular if $\sigma_p(T) \cap \mathbb{T}$ has positive Lebesgue measure).

then T is densely distributionally chaotic.

B) All operator that satisfies the Frequent Hypercyclic criterion is dense distributionally chaotic.

- T. Bermúdez, A. Bonilla, F. Martínez-Giménez and A. Peris, *Li-Yorke and dis*tributionally chaotic operators, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 373 (2011), 83-93.
- [2] A. Bonilla, V. Müller and A. Peris, *Distributional chaos for linear operators*, Preprint.



Distributional chaos for the solutions of certain partial differential equations

XAVIER BARRACHINA¹, J.ALBERTO CONEJERO²

¹ Institut Universitari de Matemàtica Pura i Aplicada, 46022 València, Spain.
E-mail address: xabarci@doctor.upv.es
² Institut Universitari de Matemàtica Pura i Aplicada, 46022 València, Spain.
E-mail address: aconejero@upv.es

URL: http://albertoconejero.webs.upv.es

In the study of the dynamics of linear operators defined on Banach spaces, interesting phenomena appear when we consider an underlying infinite-dimensional setting. Several notions of chaos, such as the ones of Devaney and Auslander & Yorke (hypercyclicity), have been already considered for linear operators and C_0 semigroups of operators that give the solution of certain abstract Cauchy problems. We refer to the monograph by Grosse-Erdmann and Peris [2] for further information on these topics.

The notion of distributional chaos has been recently added to the study of the chaoticity of linear operators [3]. We will report some results concerning how does it works on C_0 -semigroups of operators. In particular several examples of partial differential equations that present this behaviour will be provided. More-over, we will provide an example of a C_0 -semigroup with a full scrambled set.

- [1] Xavier Barrachina and J. Alberto Conejero. Devaney chaos and distributional chaos in the solutions of certain partial differential equations. *Preprint*, 2012.
- [2] Karl-Goswin Grosse-Erdmann and Alfredo Peris. *Linear chaos*. Universitext. Springer-Verlag, 2011.
- [3] Félix Martínez-Giménez, Piotr Oprocha, and Alfredo Peris. Distributional chaos for backward shifts. *J. Math. Anal. Appl.*, 351(2):607–615, 2009.


Chaotic solution for the Black-Scholes equation

HASSAN EMAMIRAD¹, GISÈLE RUIZ GOLDSTEIN², JEROME A. GOLDSTEIN³

¹ School of Mathematics, Institute for Research in Fundamental Sciences (IPM), P.O. Box 19395-5746, Tehran, Iran Laboratoire de Mathématiques, Université de Poitiers. teleport 2, BP 179, 86960 Chassneuil du Poitou, Cedex, France.

E-mail address: emamirad@ipm.ir, emamirad@math.univ-poitiers.fr

² Department of Mathematical Sciences, The University of Memphis, Memphis, TN 38152, USA.

E-mail address: ggoldste@memphis.edu

³ Department of Mathematical Sciences, The University of Memphis, Memphis, TN 38152, USA. *E-mail address:* jgoldste@memphis.edu

The Black-Scholes semigroup is studied on spaces of continuous functions on $[0, \infty)$ which may grow at both 0 and at ∞ , which is important since the standard initial value is an unbounded function. We prove that in the Banach spaces

$$Y^{s,\tau} := \{ u \in C((0,\infty)) : \lim_{x \to \infty} \frac{u(x)}{1+x^s} = \lim_{x \to 0} \frac{u(x)}{1+x^{-\tau}} = 0 \}$$

with norm $||u||_{Y^{s,\tau}} = \sup_{x>0} \left| \frac{u(x)}{(1+x^s)(1+x^{-\tau})} \right| < \infty$, the Black-Scholes semigroup is strongly continuous and chaotic for $s > 1, \tau \ge 0$ with $s\nu > 1$, where $\sqrt{2\nu}$ is the volatility. The proof relies on the Godefroy-Shapiro hypercyclicity criterion.



Hypercyclic and topologically mixing properties of certain classes of abstract time-fractional equations

MARKO KOSTIĆ

Faculty of Technical Sciences, Trg Dositeja Obradovića 6, 21125 Novi Sad, Serbia

E-mail address: marco.s@verat.net

In recent years, considerable effort has been directed toward the topological dynamics of abstract PDEs whose solutions are governed by various types of operator semigroups, fractional resolvent operator families and evolution systems. In this talk, we shall present the most important results about hypercyclic and topologically mixing properties of some special subclasses of the abstract timefractional equations of the following form:

$$\mathbf{D}_t^{\alpha_n} u(t) + c_{n-1} \mathbf{D}_t^{\alpha_{n-1}} u(t) + \dots + c_1 \mathbf{D}_t^{\alpha_1} u(t) = A \mathbf{D}_t^{\alpha} u(t), \quad t > 0,$$

$$u^{(k)}(0) = u_k, \quad k = 0, \dots, \lceil \alpha_n \rceil - 1,$$

where $n \in \mathbb{N} \setminus \{1\}$, A is a closed linear operator acting on a separable infinitedimensional complex Banach space E, c_1, \dots, c_{n-1} are certain complex constants, $0 \le \alpha_1 < \dots < \alpha_n, 0 \le \alpha < \alpha_n$, and \mathbf{D}_t^{α} denotes the Caputo fractional derivative of order α . We slightly generalize results from [1] and provide several applications, including those to abstract higher order differential equations.

References

[1] Marko Kostić, *Hypercyclicity and Topologically Mixing Property for Abstract Time-Fractional Equations*, Dynamical Systems: An International Journal, in press.



Distributional chaos for operators with full scrambled sets

<u>FÉLIX MARTÍNEZ-GIMÉNEZ¹</u>, PIOTR OPROCHA², ALFRED PERIS³

¹ IUMPA & Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada, Universitat Politècnica de València, E-46022 València, SPAIN.

E-mail address: fmartinez@mat.upv.es

² AGH University of Science and Technology, Faculty of Applied Mathematics al. A. Mickiewicza, 30-059 Kraków, POLAND. E-mail address: oprocha@agh.edu.pl

³ IUMPA & Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada, Universitat Politècnica de València, E-46022 València, SPAIN.

E-mail address: aperis@mat.upv.es

In recent years many researchers were looking for conditions that yield complex, nontrivial dynamics of linear operators (note that, to admit such behaviour, the space must be infinite dimensional). Probably the most studied is the notion of hypercyclicity, that is, the existence of vectors $x \in X$ such that the orbit of this vector $x, T(x), T^2(x), \ldots$ under the action of a continuous and linear operator $T: X \to X$ on a topological vector space (most often Banach or Fréchet space) X forms a dense subset of X. Distributional chaos was introduced by Schweizer and Smital as a natural extension of Li-Yorke chaos and we consider its strongest notion of *uniform distributional chaos*, which requires the existence of an uncountable set $D \subset X$ and $\varepsilon > 0$ such that for every t > 0 and every distinct $x, y \in D$ the upper densities of the sets $\{i \in \mathbb{N}; ||T^ix - T^iy|| \ge \varepsilon\}$ and $\{i \in \mathbb{N}; ||T^ix - T^iy|| < t\}$ are equal to 1. The set D is called a *distributionally* ε -scrambled set.

We answer in the negative the question of whether hypercyclicity is sufficient for distributional chaos for a continuous linear operator (we even prove that the mixing property does not suffice). Moreover, we show that a extremal situation is possible: There are (hypercyclic and non-hypercyclic) operators such that the whole space consists, except zero, of distributionally irregular vectors.



Extension problem and fractional powers of generators

José E. Galé¹, Pedro J. Miana², Pablo R. Stinga³

¹ I.U.M.A & Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad de Zaragoza, 50009–Zaragoza, Spain.

E-mail address: gale@unizar.es

² I.U.M.A & Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad de Zaragoza, 50009–Zaragoza, Spain.

E-mail address: pjmiana@unizar.es

³ Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad Autónoma de Madrid, 28049–Madrid, Spain.

E-mail address: pablo.stinga@uam.es

We extend results of Caffarelli-Silvestre and Stinga-Torrea regarding a characterization of fractional powers of differential operators via an extension problem. Conversely, a solution to the extension problem is given in terms of the fractional power. Our main result applies to generators A of integrated semigroups, in particular to operators with purely imaginary symbol. We also give a result on the growth of perturbated tempered α -times integrated semigroups, that could be of independent interest.



Chaoticity and invariant measures for two population models

Ryszard Rudnicki

Institute of Mathematics, Polish Academy of Sciences, Bankowa 14 40-007 Katowice, Poland

E-mail address: ryszard.rudnicki@us.edu.pl *URL*: http://www.impan.pl/User/rudnicki

First, we present a short introduction to an ergodic approach to chaotic systems based on [1]. The main idea is to show that a semiflow possesses an invariant mixing measure positive on open sets. From this it follows that the system is topological mixing and its trajectories are turbulent in the sense of Bass. Then we present two cell population models which lead to chaotic systems. The first one [2] describes the evolution of maturity of blood cells in the bone marrow and is given by a partial differential equation. The equation generates a semiflow acting on densities (i.e. integrable functions with the integral one). Next, we consider a classical structured model of cells reproduction system [3] given by a partial differential equations with a non-local division term. This equation generates semiflows acting on some subspaces of locally integrable functions. We show that our semiflows are isomorphic to the shift semiflow f(x) = f(x+t) on properly chosen spaces of functions Y. The second step is to construct a mixing and invariant measure m supported on the space Y. We can do it, if we find a Gaussian process with trajectories from the space Y. Then the measure m of a Borel subset A of Y is the probability that trajectories of the process are from the set A. It should be noted that most of the recent papers concerning chaos for semigroups of operators are based on studying spectral properties of their infinitesimal generators. This approach seems to be easier than ours. But, in our opinion, the approach based on the isomorphism with shift semigroups and using invariant measures reveals why our semiflows are chaotic. The second advantage of the ergodic theory approach is that we can prove much stronger results concerning chaos.



- [1] Ryszard Rudnicki, *Chaos for some infinite-dimensional dynamical systems*, Math. Meth. Appl. Sci. **27** (2004), 723–738.
- [2] Ryszard Rudnicki, *Chaoticity of the blood cell production system*, Chaos: An Interdisciplinary Journal of Nonlinear Science, **19** (2009), 043112, 1–6.
- [3] Ryszard Rudnicki, *Chaoticity and invariant measures for a cell population model*, J. Math. Anal. Appl. **393** (2012), 151–165.

Special Session Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics

S. Kolyada and L'. Snoha



Zeta functions and periodic entropy of nonautonomous dynamical systems

JOÃO FERREIRA ALVES¹, MICHAL MÁLEK²

¹ Centro de Análise Matemática, Geometria e Sistemas Dinâmicos Instituto Superior Técnico, TUL, Lisboa, Portugal.

E-mail address: jalves@math.ist.utl.pt

² Mathematical Institute, Silesian University in Opava, Na Rybníčku 1, 746 01 OPAVA, Czech Republic. E-mail address: Michal.Malek@math.slu.cz

Periodic sequences of continuous self mappings on a compact topological space, $F = (f_i)_{i \in \mathbb{N}}$, are commonly regarded as periodic nonautonomous difference equations or deterministic periodic nonautonomous dynamical systems (periodic dynamical systems for simplicity).

The study of the periodic entropy, $\mathbf{h}_{per}(F)$, of a *p*-periodic dynamical system is the main topic of this talk.

Special attention will be paid to the formula

$$\mathbf{h}_{\mathrm{per}}(F) = \frac{\mathbf{h}_{\mathrm{per}}(f_{p-1} \circ \dots \circ f_1 \circ f_0)}{p},\tag{1}$$

which, in contrast with topological entropy, fails in general.

Our main goal is to provide sufficient conditions in order to get the equality in (1). Naturally the study of the analytic properties of the zeta function of F will play a central role in this discussion.



Perturbations of autonomous systems and Lyapunov exponents in non-autonomous systems

FRANCISCO BALIBREA

Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad de Murcia, 30100–Murcia, SPAIN

E-mail address: balibrea@um.es

We will consider relations between small perturbations of non-chaotic autonomous dynamical systems and the chaotic behavior of the non-autonomous systems in which they are transformed.

This is made using a extended notion of Lyapunov exponents in non-autonomous systems and that of chaoticity as equivalent to have sensible dependence on initial conditions. As a first example we use the easy difference equation of first order $x_{n+1} = ax_n$ when we perturb the real parameter a and other examples obtained perturbing the same parameter in the logistic equations of first and second order $x_{n+1} = ax_n(1 - x_n)$ and $x_{n+1} = ax_n(1 - x_{n-1})$.

Additionally we will study some relations between the stability and instability of solutions of difference equations with the value of Lyapunov exponents (when they exist), particularly with periodic perturbations or doubling periodic using Jacobi functions. As a consequence, we will construct some pathological examples.

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics 🤝



Iterated function systems on the circle

PABLO G. BARRIENTOS

(in collaboration with Artem Raibekas)

Departamento de Matemáticas, Universidad de Oviedo, Avda. Calvo Sotelo s/n, 33007 Oviedo, Spain

E-mail address: barrientos@uniovi.es

Some dynamical properties such as transitivity, minimality, density of periodic orbits, can be also studied for iterated function systems (IFS). Blending regions are introduced as open sets which are minimal sets for an IFS under small C^{1} -perturbations. Duminy's Lemma shows examples of blending regions for an IFS generated by two maps on the real line close enough to the identity. An extension of this lemma allows us to study the dynamics of IFS of generic diffeomorphisms on the circle close enough to the identity. As in the Denjoy's Theorem, no invariant minimal Cantor sets appear under conditions of regularity in the IFS. In this setting, it is characterized when S^1 is a minimal set of an IFS and it is obtained an spectral decomposition result about of the dynamic of the limit set of an IFS.

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics

On the dynamics of Cournot-Puu oligopoly

J. S. CÁNOVAS

Department of Applied Mathematics and Statistics, Technical University of Cartagena, C/Dr. Fleming sn, 30202 Cartagena, Murcia, SPAIN

E-mail address: jose.canovas@upct.es

Cournot–Puu oligopoly is a market consisting on n firms producing the same, or perfect substitutes, goods with demand function p = 1/Q, where p is the price, $Q = q_1 + ... + q_n$ is the total output and q_i is the output of firm i. We consider constant marginal costs c_i for each firm i, which implies that cost functions are $C_i = c_i q_i$ for i = 1, ..., n. Under naive expectations, each firm will plan its production at time t + 1 as

$$q_i(t+1) = f_i(Q_i(t)) = \max\left\{0, \sqrt{Q_i(t)/c_i} - Q_i(t)\right\},\$$

where $Q_i = Q - q_i$ is the residual supply and f_i is the reaction function of each firm. In this talk we summarize the dynamics in duopoly case, that is, when n = 2 (see e.g. [2, 1]) and analyze some phenomena of interest from the point of view of economic dynamics like conditions which guarantees the disappearing of firms in the market.

References

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalescièncie

ICDEA2012

- [1] J. S. Cánovas, *On Cournot Puu duopoly*, in Advances in Discrete Dynamics, Ed. J. S. Cánovas. New York: Nova Publishers, 2012. 227–262.
- [2] T. Puu, Chaos on duopoly pricing, Chaos, Solitons and Fractals 1 (1991), 573–581.

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics 🤝

Snap-back repellers in rational difference equations

16" International Conferen

<u>ANTONIO CASCALES¹</u>, FRANCISCO BALIBREA²

¹ Departamento de Matemáticas, Campus de Espinardo – , 30100 Murcia, SPAIN. E-mail address: antoniocascales@yahoo.es

² Departamento de Mathemáticas, Universidad de Murcia, 30100–Murcia, SPAIN. E-mail address: balibrea@um.es

We are dealing with the existence of chaos, in the Li-Yorke sense, in rational difference equations. This problem arise, for example, when we apply the Newton's method to polynomials obtaining rational difference equations of order one.

In the paper we review ideas and results from Marotto in [1] based on a subtle study of the dynamics near a special kind of equilibrium (snap-back repeller). We find that some of them remain true in the non-continuous setting, for example in rational difference equations , and how some others can be proved via the introduction of an additional condition, what we call the *compact pre-image property*.

As applications, we estimate numerically the snap-back repellers of the families $x_{n+1} = \frac{1}{x_n^2 - c}$ (*inverse parabolas*) and $x_{n+1} = \frac{1}{rx_n(1-x_n)}$ (*inverse logistic equations*). Such estimations are obtained using the basins of attraction, in \mathbb{C} , of the reciprocal difference equations. Additionally we use them to estimate also *their forbidden sets*.

References

[1] Marotto, Frederick R. *Snap-back repellers imply chaos in* \mathbb{R}^n , Mathematical Analysis and Applications, **63** (1978), 199–223.

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics



On cascades of elliptic periodic points in area-preserving maps with homoclinic tangencies

MARINA GONCHENKO

(in collaboration with A. Delshams and S. Gonchenko)

Departament de Matemàtica Aplicada I, Universitat Politècnica de Catalunya, 08028– Barcelona, Spain

E-mail address: marina.gonchenko@upc.edu

We use qualitative and topological methods to study the orbit behaviour near nontransversal homoclinic orbits in area-preserving maps which are not necessarily orientable. Let f_0 be such C^r -smooth map $(r \ge 3)$ having a saddle fixed point O whose stable and unstable invariant manifolds have a quadratic tangency at the points of some homoclinic orbit Γ_0 . Let f_{ε} be a family (unfolding) of area-preserving maps containing the map f_0 at $\varepsilon = 0$.

Our aim is to study bifurcations of the so-called single-round periodic points in the family f_{ε} . Every point of such an orbit can be considered as a fixed point of the corresponding *first return map*. We study bifurcations of the fixed points and prove the existence of cascades of generic elliptic periodic points for one and two parameter unfoldings f_{ε} . Thus, we generalize the results obtained in [1] where only the symplectic (area-preserving and orientable) case was analyzed.

References

[1] M. Gonchenko, S. Gonchenko, On cascades of elliptic periodic points in twodimensional symplectic maps with homoclinic tangencies, Regular and Chaotic Dynamics **14(1)**, 2009. 116-136.



Dense orbits of flows and maps — misunderstandings and new results

ROMAN HRIC

(in collaboration with L'ubomír Snoha)

Institute of Mathematics and Computer Science, Matej Bel University, Banská Bystrica, Slovakia

E-mail address: hric@savbb.sk

Existence of dense orbit (topological transitivity) or a stronger property of every orbit being dense (topological minimality) belong to the core questions of topological dynamics. In this talk I discuss these notions for continuous as well as discrete time systems in a general setting without assuming compactness of the underlying space.

Besides well known results, there are common and frequent misunderstandings related to the mentioned two properties. In the talk I briefly mention a few of them and then proceed to the main part of the talk - new results from the joint paper with L'ubomír Snoha, see [1]. Among others, I present results relating density of orbits of flows and corresponding t-maps, and density of full orbits versus density of forward or backward semi-orbits.

References

[1] Roman Hric and L'ubomír Snoha, *Dense orbits and misunderstandings around them*, preprint 2012.



On some properties of discrete dynamical systems on dendrites

Zdeněk Kočan

(in collaboration with V. Kurková and M. Málek)

Mathematical Institute in Opava, Silesian University in Opava, 746 01 Opava, Czech Republic

E-mail address: zdenek.kocan@math.slu.cz

We consider some properties of discrete dynamical systems on compact metric spaces, such as positive topological entropy, the existence of a horseshoe, Lyapunov stability on the set of periodic points or the existence of a homoclinic trajectory. Here we survey the relations between the properties in case of systems on dendrites.

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics 🤝



Modified Lotka-Volterra maps and their interior periodic points

Peter Maličký

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Matej Bel University, Tajovského 40, 974 01 Banská Bystrica, Slovakia

E-mail address: peter.malicky@umb.sk

Consider the plane triangle

$$\Delta = \{ [x, y] : 0 \le x, 0 \le y, x + y \le 4 \}$$

and the map

$$F: \Delta \to \Delta, [x, y] \mapsto [x(4 - x - y), xy]$$
.

(We denote by [x, y] a point in the plane, while (α, β) and $\langle \alpha, \beta \rangle$ are open and closed intervals on the real line.) In [4] A. N. Sharkovskiĭ formulated some problems about properties of a map which is conjugated with the map F. This map was studied in [1, 2, 3, 5] and is called a Lotka-Volterra map (in [1, 2, 3]). It is easy to show that a point $P = [x, 0] \in \Delta$ is a periodic point of the map F if and only if $x = 4 \sin^2 \frac{k\pi}{2^n \pm 1}$, where $n \ge 1$ and k are integers with $0 \le 2k < 2^n \pm 1$. We are interested in *interior* periodic points of the map F. Our main result of [3] is a relation between lower and interior periodic points. Namely, if a point $[4 \sin^2 \frac{k\pi}{2^n \pm 1}, 0]$ is a saddle point of the map F^n then there is a interior periodic point with the same itinerary with respect to the sets

$$\Delta_L = \{ [x, y] : 0 \le x < 2, 0 \le y \le 4 - x \}$$

and

$$\Delta_R = \{ [x, y] : 2 < x \le 4, 0 \le y \le 4 - x \}.$$

We extend this result for modifications of the map F which are defined as follows. Assume that for any $x \in (0, 4)$ we have an increasing homeomorphism φ_x of the interval $\langle 0, 4 - x \rangle$ onto itself. Moreover let the function $\varphi(x, y) = \varphi_x(y)$ be continuous in the domain

$$\Delta = \{ [x, y] : 0 < x < 4, 0 \le y \le 4 - x \}.$$

Let $G : \Delta \to \Delta$ be defined by

22"-27" July 2012 Casa de Convalescência

ICDEA2012

$$G[x,y] = \begin{cases} [0,0] & \text{if } x = 0 \text{ or } x = 4 ,\\ [x(4-x-\varphi(x,y)), x\varphi(x,y)] & \text{otherwise.} \end{cases}$$

Then the map G is called a modified Lotka-Volterra map. Note that F[x, 0] = G[x, 0] for all $x \in \langle 0, 4 \rangle$. We construct two modifications G for which all lower fixed points of the map G^n are repulsive and saddle points respectively. We give an example of a modification G such that for any $n \ge 1$ all repulsive lower fixed points of the map F^n are saddle points of G^n and vice versa.

- [1] F. Balibrea, J. L. G. Guirao, M. Lampart and J. Llibre, *Dynamics of a Lotka-Volterra map*, Fund. Math., **191** (2006), 265–279.
- [2] J. L. G. Guirao and M. Lampart, *Transitivity of a Lotka-Volterra map*, Discrete Contin. Dyn. Syst. Ser. B **9** (2008), no. 1, 75–82 (electronic).
- [3] P. Maličký, *Interior periodic points of a Lotka-Volterra map*, J. Difference Equ. Appl. **18** (2012), no. 4, 553–567.
- [4] A. N. Sharkovskii, Low dimensional dynamics, Tagunsbericht 20/1993, Proceedings of Mathematisches Forschunginstitut Oberwolfach, 1993, 17.
- [5] G. Swirszcz, On a certain map of the triangle, Fund. Math., 155 (1998), 45–57.



22th-27th July 2013

16 DEFA2012 18" International Conferen Difference Equations

M. Kulczycki¹, D. Kwietniak², <u>P. Oprocha³</u>

¹ Faculty of Mathematics & Computer Science, Jagiellonian University, ul. Łojasiewicza 6, 30-348 Kraków, Poland.

E-mail address: marcin.kulczycki@im.uj.edu.pl

² Faculty of Mathematics & Computer Science, Jagiellonian University, ul. Łojasiewicza 6, 30-348 Kraków, Poland.

E-mail address: dominik.kwietniak@uj.edu.pl

³ Institute of Mathematics, Polish Academy of Sciences, ul. Śniadeckich 8, 00-956 Warszawa, Poland.

E-mail address: oprocha@agh.edu.pl

Average shadowing properties generalize standard shadowing properties (e.g. shadowing, limit shadowing) by considering averages of errors in consecutive steps of pseudo-orbit rather than ordinary error in each step. This modification enables application of average shadowing in dynamical systems where we cannot control error in each step, but we can ensure that average error is sufficiently small. In particular, there are maps with average shadowing property but without shadowing property.

In this talk we will survey recent results on average shadowing properties. We will present a few sufficient conditions that ensure average shadowing and comment on relations between average shadowing and notions from topological dynamics, like shadowing property, mixing, specification, proximality and the like.

Combination of scaling exponents and geometry of the action of renormalization operators

RAFAEL DE LA LLAVE¹, <u>NIKOLA P. PETROV</u>², ARTURO OLVERA³

¹ School of Matematics, Georgia Institute of Technology, 686 Cherry Street, Atlanta, GA 30332, USA.

E-mail address: rll6@math.gatech.edu

22th-27th July 2012 Casa de Convalesciencia

ICDEA2012

² Department of Mathematics, University of Oklahoma, 601 Elm Avenue, Norman, OK 73034, USA.

E-mail address: npetrov@ou.edu URL: http://www.math.ou.edu/~npetrov/

³ IIMAS-UNAM, FENOMEC, Apdo. Postal 20-726, México D.F., Mexico. E-mail address: aoc@mym.iimas.unam.mx

Renormalization group ideas are important for describing universal properties of different routes to chaos: period-doubling in unimodal maps, quasiperiodic transitions in circle maps, dynamics on the boundaries of Siegel disks, destruction of invariant circles of area-preserving twist maps, etc. The universal scaling exponents for each route are related to the properties of the corresponding renormalization operators.

In [1, 2], we proposed the *Principle of Approximate Combination of Scaling Exponents* (PACSE) that organizes the scaling exponents for different transitions to chaos. Roughly speaking, if the combinatorics of a transition is a composition of two simpler combinatorics, then the scaling exponent of this transition is approximately equal to the product of the scaling exponents corresponding to the two simpler transitions. In [1, 2], we stated PACSE quantitatively as precise asymptotics of the scaling exponents for the combinatorics, and gave convincing numerical evidence for it for the four dynamical systems mentioned above.

We propose an explanation of PACSE in terms of the dynamical properties of the renormalization operators—in particular, as a consequence of certain transversal intersections of the stable and unstable manifolds of the operators corresponding to different transition to chaos. As an essential ingredient in this picture, we prove [3] a general shadowing theorem that works for infinite dimensional discrete dynamical systems that are not necessarily invertible (which is the case of the renormalization operators acting in appropriate function spaces).

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics



- [1] R. de la Llave, N. P. Petrov, A. Olvera, Universal scalings of universal scaling exponents, J. Phys. A: Math. Theor. 40 (2007), F427–F434.
- [2] R. de la Llave, N. P. Petrov, A. Olvera, Combination laws for scaling exponents and relation to the geometry of renormalization operators, J. Stat. Phys. 143 (2011), 889-920.
- [3] R. de la Llave, N. P. Petrov, A. Olvera, A shadowing theorem with localization and application to heteroclinic cycles and to properties of scaling exponents, preprint (2012).

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics



22º-27º July 201

ICDEA2012

Asymptotic recurrence quantification analysis

Vladimír Špitalský

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Matej Bel University, Tajovského 40, 974 01 Banská Bystrica, Slovakia

E-mail address: vladimir.spitalsky@umb.sk

The notion of recurrence plays a fundamental role in the theory of dynamical systems. A powerful way for visualization of recurrence, called recurrence plot, was introduced by Eckman, Kamphorst and Ruelle in 1987. A few years later, Zbilut and Webber established the recurrence quantification analysis (RQA) by introducing measures of complexity, such as recurrence rate or determinism. Since then, RQA proved to be useful in a wide area of disciplines, ranging from life and earth sciences, engineering, material sciences, finance and economics, to chemistry and physics.

In the talk we introduce asymptotic RQA characteristics and we show their basic properties. Then we focus on the determinism and its relationships to various properties of dynamical systems. We also present some examples with nontrivial determinism.

Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics 🤝



Minimal sets and free intervals

Zuzana Uličná¹, Vladimír Špitalský²

¹ Faculty of Natural Sciences, Matej Bel University, Tajovského 40, 974 01 Banská Bystrica, Slovakia. E-mail address: Zuzana.Ulicna@umb.sk

² Faculty of Natural Sciences, Matej Bel University, Tajovského 40, 974 01 Banská Bystrica, Slovakia. E-mail address: Vladimir.Spitalsky@umb.sk

We will talk about minimal sets of dynamical systems defined on a continuum with a free interval, i.e. with an open subset homeomorphic to the open interval (0, 1). Dirbák et al. showed in [1] that every minimal set M intersecting a free interval J is either a finite set or a finite union of disjoint circles or a nowhere dense cantoroid. We prove that such a minimal set must satisfy a property, which we call J-clipping (i.e. there is an arc in \overline{J} containing $M \cap J$). As an application of this result we obtain a topological characterization of minimal sets on the Warsaw circle.

References

[1] M. Dirbák, Ľ. Snoha, V. Špitalský, *Minimality, transitivity, mixing and topological entropy on spaces with a free interval,* to appear in Ergodic Theory Dynam. Systems. Special Session: Combinatorial and Topological Dynamics



On sensitivity and some classes of induced maps

Sergiľ Kolyada

Institute of Mathematics, NAS of Ukraine, 01601–Kyiv, Ukraine E-mail address: skolyada@imath.kiev.ua URL: http://www.imath.kiev.ua/~skolyada

The talk will consists of two independent parts. Firstly we will speak on some qualitative properties of sensitive topological dynamical systems. Some results from a joint paper with Oleksandr Rybak will be presented. In the second part we will consider some induced dynamical systems, in particular we will speak on ω -limit sets of induced triangular maps (based on a joint work with Damoon Robatian) and on the topological entropy of functional envelope of some dynamical systems (based on a joint work with Iuliia Semikina).

Special Session Economic Dynamics and Control

A. A. Pinto and A. Yannacopoulos



Anosov diffeomorphisms on surfaces

Alberto A. Pinto¹, João P. Almeida²

¹ LIAAD-INESC TEC and Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto. Rua do Campo Alegre, 4169-007 Porto, Portugal.. E-mail address: aapinto@fc.up.pt

URL: http://www.liaad.up.pt/index.php/alberto-adrego-pinto

² LIAAD-INESC TEC and Department of Mathematics, School of Technology and Management, Polytechnic Institute of Bragança. Campus de Santa Apolónia, Ap. 1134, 5301-857 Bragança, Portugal..

E-mail address: jpa@ipb.pt

We consider a hyperbolic matrix

$$\tilde{A} = \left(\begin{array}{cc} a & b \\ c & d \end{array}\right) \in GL(2,\mathbb{Z})$$

and the hyperbolic toral automorphism $A : \mathbb{T} \to \mathbb{T}$ induced by \hat{A} , where $\mathbb{T} = \mathbb{R}^2/\mathbb{Z}$. Then \tilde{A} has two eigenvalues λ and μ such $|\lambda| > 1$ and $|\mu| < 1$. Furthemore, $\gamma = |\mu|$ is a quadratic surd and the continued fraction expansion of $\gamma = 1/(a_1 + 1/(a_2 + 1/\ldots))$ is *M*-periodic, for some $M = M(\gamma) \in \mathbb{N}$.

We prove the existence of a one-to-one correspondence between C^{1+} conjugacy classes of C^{1+} Anosov diffeomorphisms G that are topologically conjugate to A and pairs of C^{1+} stable and unstable self-renormalizable sequences.

- [1] Pinto, A. A., Almeida, J. P. and Portela, A.: Golden tilings. Transactions of the American Mathematical Society, 364 (2012), 2261-2280.
- [2] Pinto, A. A., Almeida, J. P. and Rand, D. A.: Anosov and renormalized circle diffeomorphisms. pp. 1–33 (2012) (*Submitted*).
- [3] Pinto, A. A. and Rand, D. A.: Train-tracks with *C*¹⁺ self-renormalisable structures. Journal of Difference Equations and Applications, 16(8), 945-962 (2010).



- [4] Pinto, A. A. and Rand, D. A.: Smoothness of holonomies for codimension 1 hyperbolic dynamics. Bull. London Math. Soc., 34 341-352 (2002).
- [5] Pinto, A. A. and Rand, D. A.: Teichmüller spaces and HR structures for hyperbolic surface dynamics. Ergod. Th. Dynam. Sys, 22 1905-1931 (2002).
- [6] Pinto, A. A., Rand, D. A. and Ferreira, F.: Arc exchange systems and renormalization. Journal of Difference Equations and Applications 16 (2010), no. 4, 347-371.
- [7] Pinto, A. A., Rand, D. A. and Ferreira, F.: Cantor exchange systems and renormalization. Journal of Differential Equations, 243 593-616 (2007).
- [8] Pinto, A. A. Rand, D. A., Ferreira, F.: *Fine structures of hyperbolic diffeomorphisms*. Springer Monographs in Mathematics, Springer (2010).



On the convergence to Walrasian prices in random matching Edgeworthian economies

M. FERREIRA

ESEIG-IPP & LIAAD-INESC TEC Porto Lab E-mail address: miguelferreira@eu.ipp.pt

We show that for a specific class of random matching Edgeworthian economies, the expectation of the limiting equilibrium price coincides with the equilibrium price of the related Walrasian economies. This result extends to the study of economies in the presence of uncertainty within the multi-period Arrow-Debreu model, allowing to understand the dynamics of how beliefs survive and propagate through the market.

- [1] Edgeworth FY (1881) *Mathematical psychics*: An essay on the application of mathematics to the moral sciences. Kegan Paul, London
- [2] Gale D (2000) Strategic foundations of perfect competition. *Cambridge University Press*, Cambridge, MA
- [3] A.A. Pinto, M. Ferreira and B.M.P.M. Oliveira, B.F. Finkenstat and A. N. Yannacopoulos (2011) On the convergence to Walrasian prices in random matching Edgeworthian economies. *Central European Journal of Operations Research*



Stability of the Cournot equilibrium for a Cournot oligopoly model with *n* competitors

MAREK LAMPART

Department of Applied Mathematics & IT4Innovations VŠB - Technical University of Ostrava 17. listopadu 15/2172, 708 33 Ostrava Czech Republic.

E-mail address: marek.lampart@vsb.cz

It was stated by [7] (see also [3] page 237) that the oligopoly model produced under constant marginal costs with a linear demand function is neutrally stable for three competitors and unstable for more than three competitors. As discussed in [6], linear demand functions are very easy to use, but they do not avoid negative supplies and prices, so it is possible to use them only for the study of local behavior. This problem can be solved by using nonlinear demand functions such as piecewise linear functions or other more complex functions, one of which was suggested by [4] for a duopoly and later by [5] for a triopoly using iso-elastic demand functions. These types of demand function were later studied by [1] and [2] for a nonlinear (iso-elastic) demand function and constant marginal costs and it was concluded that this Cournot model for *n* competitors is neutrally stable if n = 4 and is unstable if the number of competitors is greater than five (see also [6]).

The main aim is to consider Cournot points and discuss their stability while the number of players is increasing for the model with an iso-elastic demand function and under the assumption that the firms' costs are identical. The terminology of dynamical systems is used, that is the Cournot point is identified as a fixed one. Finally, it is proved that for identical unit costs the Cournot point is a sink for two or three competitors and a saddle for more than four players.

References

[1] H.N. Agiza, *Explicit stability zones for Cournot games with 3 and 4 competitors*, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals **9** (1998) 1955–1966.



- [2] E. Ahmed, H.N. Agiza, *Dynamics of a Cournot game with n competitors*, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals **9** (1998) 1513–1517.
- [3] T.F. Palander, *Konkurrens och marknadsjämvikt vid duopol och oligopol*, Ekonomisk Tidskrift **41** (1939) 222–250.
- [4] T. Puu, Chaos in Duopoly Pricing, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals 6 (1991) 573–581.
- [5] T. Puu, Complex dynamics with three oligopolists, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals 12 (1996) 2075–2081.
- [6] T. Puu, On the stability of Cournot equilibrium when the number of competitors *increases*, Journal of Economic Behavior and Organization **66** (2007) 445–456.
- [7] R.D. Theocharis, On the stability of the Cournot solution on the oligopoly problem, Review of Economic Studies **27** (1960) 133–134.



An economical model for dumping in a duopoly market

JOSÉ MARTINS¹, ALBERTO A. PINTO²

¹ Department of Mathematics, School of Technology and Management, Polytechnic Institute of Leiria, and LIAAD-INESC TEC, Portugal. E-mail address: jmmartins@ipleiria.pt

² Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences of the University of Porto and LIAAD-INESC TEC, Portugal. E-mail address: aapintol@gmail.com

We consider an international trade economical model where two firms of different countries compete in quantities and can use three different strategies: (i) repeated collusion, (ii) deviation from the foreigner firm followed by punishment by the home country and then followed by repeated Cournot, or (iii) repeated deviation followed by punishment. In some cases (ii) and (iii) can be interpreted as dumping. We compute the profits of both firms for each strategy and we characterize the economical parameters where each strategy is adopted by the firms (see also [1]).

References

[1] N. Banik, F. A. Ferreira ,J. Martins, A. A. Pinto, An Economical Model For Dumping by Dumping in a Cournot Model, Dynamics, Games and Science II, eds: M. Peixoto, A. A. Pinto and D. Rand. Proceedings in Mathematics series, Springer-Verlag (2011), 141-153.



Cournot duopoly games with heterogeneous players

DIANA A. MENDES¹, VIVALDO M. MENDES²

¹ Department of Quantitative Methods, ISCTE-IUL, Instituto Universitário de Lisboa and BRU-IUL, Avenidas das Forças Armadas, 1649-026–Lisbon, Portugal. *E-mail address:* diana.mendes@iscte.pt

² Department of Economics, ISCTE-IUL, Instituto Universitário de Lisboa and BRU-IUL, Avenida das Forças Armadas, 1649-026–Lisbon, Portugal. E-mail address: vivaldo.mendes@iscte.pt

The main aim of this paper is to analyze the dynamics of nonlinear discrete-time maps generated by duopoly games in which players are heterogeneous and the reaction functions are non-monotonic and asymmetric. We discusses here two cases: in the first one we introduce games with boundedly rational players and in the second one games with adaptive expectations. The dynamics and the topological entropy are mainly analyzed by numerical simulations. There are always multiple equilibria, and the significance of the Nash equilibria is pointed out.



Rational Bubbles and Economic Policy

<u>VIVALDO M. MENDES¹</u>, DIANA A. MENDES²

¹ Department of Economics, ISCTE-IUL, Instituto Universitário de Lisboa and BRU-IUL, Avenidas das Forças Armadas, 1649-026–Lisbon, Portugal. E-mail address: vivaldo.mendes@iscte.pt

² Department of Quantitative Methods, ISCTE-IUL, Instituto Universitário de Lisboa and BRU-IUL, Avenidas das Forças Armadas, 1649-026–Lisbon, Portugal. E-mail address: diana.mendes@iscte.pt

We are living in dangerous times, hardly conceivable just fifteen years ago. Bubbles in the housing market in various countries, bubbles in the financial markets, bank runs that put to the ground some of biggest international banks in no more than a couple of days, panic in many sovereign bond markets (negative bubbles), central banks running out of policy tools to manage monetary policy efficiently, are just some of the features of the tormented world we are currently facing. Is this world governed by irrational behavior? Or is it the case that such fantastic behavior may arise from fully rational agents? In an influential review article, Stephen Le Roy (2004) stated very clearly that "under rational asset pricing, including rational expectations, such biased expectations [bubbles, panic, bank runs] cannot occur: absence of arbitrage implies that the expected (risk-adjusted and discounted) gain on any security or portfolio is zero. Thus in this usage bubbles are synonymous with irrationality." In this paper, we analyze the dynamics of an asset pricing model subject to complete markets and rational expectations, firstly developed by Aiyagari (1988). The model displays endogenous cycles and high volatility even in the case of no exogenous shocks hitting the economy. Contrary to the dominant view in economics and finance — "the preliminary conclusion seems to be that when endogenous fluctuations exist in optimizing models, the associated policy advice is laissez-faire", Bullard and Butler (1993) — we argue that economic policy may lead to an increase in social welfare in such a context by ruling out rational bubbles.



Strategic optimization in R&D Investment

B. OLIVEIRA

FNAUP - UP & LIAAD-INESC TEC Porto Lab

E-mail address: bmpmo@fcna.up.pt

We use d'Aspremont and Jacquemin's strategic optimal R&D investment in a duopoly Cournot competition model to construct myopic optimal discrete and continuous R&D dynamics. We show that for some high initial production costs, the success or failure of a firm is very sensitive to small variations in its initial R&D investment strategies.

- C. d'Aspremont and A. Jacquemin, *Cooperative and noncooperative R&D in duopoly with spillovers*, American Economic Review **78** (1988), 1133–1137 (Erratum: American Economic Review **80**, 641–642).
- [2] J. A. Brander and B. J. Spencer, *Strategic commitment with R&D: the symmetric case*, The Bell Journal of Economics **14** (1983), 225–235.
- [3] M. Ferreira, I.F. Figueiredo, B.M.P.M. Oliveira and A.A. Pinto, *Strategic optimization in R&D Investment*, Optimization 5 (Accepted, 2011).



Special Session: Economic Dynamics and Control

Resort Pricing and Bankruptcy

Alberto A. Pinto

FCUP - UP & LIAAD-INESC TEC Porto Lab E-mail address: aapintol@gmail.com

We introduce a resort pricing model, where different types of tourists choose between different resorts. We study the influence of the resort prices on the choices of the different types of tourists. We characterize the coherent strategies of the tourists that are Nash equilibria.We find the prices that lead to the bankruptcy of the resorts and, in particular, their dependence on the characteristics of the tourists.

- [1] Brida, J., Defesa, M., Faias, M. and Pinto, A. A., *Strategic Choice in Tourism with Differentiated Crowding Types*, Economics Bulletin **30(2)** (2010), 1509–1515.
- [2] Brida, J., Defesa, M., Faias, M. and Pinto, A., A Tourists Choice Model.Dynamics, Games and Science I (eds.: M. Peixoto, A. A. Pinto and D. Rand). Proceedings in Mathematics series, Springer-Verlag, Chapter 10 (2011), 159–167.
- [3] Pinto A. A, Mousa A. S., Mousa M. S. and Samarah M. S., *Tilings and Bussola for Making Decisions*, Dynamics, Games and Science I (eds.: M. Peixoto, A. A. Pinto and D. Rand). Proceedings in Mathematics series, Springer-Verlag, Chapter 44, 689–710 (2011).


Dynamics of Human decisions

<u>**R**. Soeiro¹</u>, T.R. Oliveira², A. Mousa³, Alberto A. Pinto⁴

¹ LIAAD-INESC Porto LA and Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto, Portugal.

² LIAAD-INESC Porto LA and Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto, Portugal.

E-mail address: tania.r.r.oliveira@gmail.com

³ LIAAD-INESC Porto LA and Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto, Portugal.

E-mail address: abed11@ritaj.ps

⁴ LIAAD-INESC Porto LA and Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences, University of Porto, Portugal. E-mail address: aapintol@gmail.com

We study a dichotomous decision model, where individuals can make the decision yes or no and can influence the decisions of others. We characterize all decisions that form Nash equilibria. Taking into account the way individuals influence the decisions of others, we construct the decision tilings where the axes reflect the personal preferences of the individuals for making the decision yes or no. These tilings characterize geometrically all the pure and mixed Nash equilibria. We show, in these tilings, that Nash equilibria form degenerated hystereses with respect to the replicator dynamics, with the property that the pure Nash equilibria are asymptotically stable and the strict mixed equilibria are unstable. These hystereses can help to explain the sudden appearance of social, political and economic crises. We observe the existence of limit cycles for the replicator dynamics associated to situations where the individuals keep changing their decisions along time, but exhibiting a periodic repetition in their decisions.



Special Session: Economic Dynamics and Control

Timing structures in economics and games

PETR STEHLÍK (in collaboration with Jan Libich)

> Department of Matematics, University of West Bohemia, 31200 Pilsen, Czech Republic

E-mail address: pstehlik@kma.zcu.cz *URL:* http://www.kma.zcu.cz/pstehlik

In this talk, we study the role of different timing structures in economic modelling. We focus on the models in which the various underlying timing structures have some real-world interpretation and could be changed so that the desired outcomes (like low inflation, balanced budgets etc.) prevail. A major example of this phenomenon are rigidities in monetary-fiscal interactions.

References

- [1] Jan Libich, Petr Stehlík, *Incorporating rigidity and commitment in the timing structure of macroeconomic games*, Economic Modelling 27 (2010) 767–781.
- [2] Jan Libich, Petr Stehlík, *Monetary Policy Facing Fiscal Indiscipline under Generalized Timing of Actions*, Journal of Theoretical and Institutional Economics. In print.



Neimark-Sacker bifurcation in a discrete-time Goodwin model

MALGORZATA GUZOWSKA

Department of Econometrics and Statistics, University of Szczecin, ul. Mickiewicza 64, 71-101, Szczecin, Poland

E-mail address: mguzowska@wneiz.pl

This paper presents Goodwin's growth cycle model [1] in its discreet version [2] that has been obtained by means of a non-standard Micken's discretization method. Based on explicit Neimark-Sacker bifurcation, normal form method and center manifold theory [3], the system's existence, stability and direction of Neimark-Sacker bifurcation are studied. Numerical simulations are employed to validate the main results of this work. Some comparison of bifurcation between the discrete-time Goodwin model and its continuous-time system is given.

References

- [1] Goodwin, R.M., *in: Feldstein, C.H. (ed.): Socialism, Capitalism, and Economic Growth*, Essays Presented to Maurice Dobb, Camridge, 1967.
- [2] Guzowska M, Dynamiczne wlasnosci dyskretnej wersjii modelu wzrostu Goodwina, Matematyka i informatyka na usługach ekonomii. Modelowanie zjawisk gospodarczych – elementy teorii, Zeszyty Naukowe UE w Poznaniu No. 211, 2011.
- [3] Kuznetsov Y.A., *Elements of Applied Bifurcation Theory*, vol. 112 of Applied Mathematical Sciences, Springer, New York, NY, USA, 2nd edition, 1998.



Index of Speakers

Alarcón, Begoña, 23 Almeida, João P., <mark>161</mark> AlSharawi, Ziyad, 95 Anisimova, Aija, 24 Avotina, Maruta, 25 Awwad, Essam, 26 Balibrea, Francisco, 144 Balreira, E. Cabral, 96 Baptista, Diogo, 27 Barrientos, Pablo G., 145 Batenkov, Dmitry, 28 Beeler, Katy E., 30 Benini, Anna M., 107 Berezansky, Leonid, 67 Bernardes Jr., Nilson C., 131 Bodine, Sigrun, 68 Bonilla, A., 133 Braverman, Elena, 69 Bula, Inese, 31

Canela, Jordi, 108 Cánovas, J. S., 146 Carrasco, Matías, 109 Cascales, Antonio, 147 Conejero, J.Alberto, 134 Cushing, Jim M., 98 Cuzzocreo, Daniel, 110

Daniels, John, 70 Deniz, Asli, 111 Devaney, Robert L., 3 Diblík, J., 71 Domínguez-Soto, Patricia, 112 Došlá, Zuzana, 73 Došlý, Ondřej, 74

Elaydi, Saber, 4, 100

Emamirad, Hassan, 135 Epstein, Adam, 113

Fagella, N., 114 Ferreira Alves, João, 143 Ferreira, M., 163 Fitzgibbon, Elizabeth L., 115

Gaiko, Valery A., 32 Gajda, Karol, 33 Garay, Barnabas M., 75 Garijo, Antonio, 116 Gasull, Armengol, 6 Godillon, Sébastien, 117 Gonchenko, Marina, 148 Gonzalez Živanovic, Sanja, 34 Góra, Paweł, 35 Guzowska, Malgorzata, 173 Győri, István, 76

Hamaya, Yoshihiro, 101 Hartung, Ferenc, 77 Högnäs, Göran, 36 Horváth, László, 78 Hric, Roman, 149 Hüls, Thorsten, 9

Jarque, Xavier, 127 Jiménez López, V., 10

Kalabušić, S., 38 Kita, E., 39 Kloeden, Peter E., 41 Kočan, Zdeněk, 150 Kolyada, Sergiĭ, 158 Kostić, Marko, 136 Krejčová, Jana, 42 Kudlak, Zachary, 43



Lampart, Marek, 164 Laureano, Rosário, 44 Llibre, Jaume, 11 Lopes Dias, João, 12 Luís, Rafael, 102 Lyapin, Alexander, 46

Maličký, Peter, 151 Manjunath, G., 48 Mañosa, Víctor, 49 Martí Pete, David, 118 Martínez-Giménez, Félix, 137 Martins, José, 166 Matsunaga, Hideaki, 79 Mendes, Diana A., 167 Mendes, Vivaldo M., 168 Miana, Pedro J., 138 Misiurewicz, Michał, 13 Moreno Rocha, Mónica, 119

Nascimento Baptista, A., 50

Obaya, Rafael, 80 Oliveira, B., 169 Oprocha, P., 153 Ortega, Rafael, 14

Papaschinopoulos, G., 52 Peter, Jörn, 120 Petrov, Nikola P., 154 Pinto, Alberto A., 170 Pituk, Mihály, 82 Pötzsche, Christian, 15 Pujals, Enrique, 16

Radin, Michael A., 83 Řehák, Pavel, 53 Reinfelds, Andrejs, 54 Rippon, Phil, 121 Rodkina, Alexandra, 55 Rodrigues, Ana, 17 Rœsch, Pascale, 122 Rogalski, Marc, 86 Rudnicki, Ryszard, 139 Ruiz-Herrera, A., 56 Russell, Elizabeth D., 123

Sacker, Robert J., 104 Schinas, C. J., 57 Schmeidel, Ewa, 58 Singh, Anand P., 128 Šimon Hilscher, Roman, 59 Slavík, Antonín, 88 Snoha, Ľubomír, 18 Soeiro, R., 171 Šotola, Jakub, 60 Špitalský, Vladimír, 156 Stallard, Gwyneth, 124 Stehlík, Petr, 61, 172

Timorin, Vladlen, 125 Trofimchuk, Sergei, 19

Uličná, Zuzana, 157

Yamaoka, Naoto, 89 Yomdin, Yosef, 90

Zafar, Sundus, 62



Index of Authors

Alsedà, Lluís, 13 Appleby, John, 70

Balibrea, Francisco, 147 Balreira, Eduardo, 4, 102 Barański, Krzysztof, 127, 114 Barr, Peter S., 30 Barrachina, Xavier, 134 Bastien, Guy, 49, 86 Batenkov, Dmitry, 90 Berenhaut, Kenneth S., 30 Binyamini, Gal, 28 Braverman, Leonid, 55

Cima, Anna, 62 Correia Ramos, C., 50

Darji, Udayan B., 131 Drymonis, Emmanouil, 43

Elaydi, Saber, 96, 102

Fagella, Núria, 127 Fotiades, N., 52

Galé, José E., 138 Goldstein, Gisèle Ruiz, 135 Goldstein, Jerome A., 135 Gronek, Tomasz, 33, 58

Halfarová, H., 71 Hlavičková, I., 71

Jaeger, H., 48 Jarque, X., 114

Kang, Y., 100 Kapitanski, Lev, 34 Karabash, Illya M., 69 Karpińska, Boguslawa, 127, 114 Kostrov, Yevgeniy, 43 Kulczycki, M., 153 Kulenović, M.R.S, 38 Kwessi, E., 100 Kwietniak, D., 153

Livadiotis, G., 100 Liz, E., 56 de la Llave, Rafael, 154 Luís, Rafael, 4, 96 Lutz, D.A., 68

Málek, Michal, 143 Martins Ferreira, Manuel A., 44 Martins, N., 50 Mendes, Diana A., 44, 168 Mendes, Vivaldo M., 167 Mousa, A., 171

Novo, Sylvia, 80

Obaya, Rafael, 82 Oliveira, T.R., 171 Olvera, Arturo, 154 Oprocha, Piotr, 137

Papaschinopoulos, G., 57 Parreño Sánchez, E., 10 Peris, Alfred, 137 Pilav, E., 38 Pinto, Alberto A., 161, 166, 171

Rogalski, Marc, 49

Sanz, Ana M., 80 Schmeidel, Ewa, 33 Severino, Ricardo, 27 Špitalský , Vladimír, 157 Stinga, Pablo R., 138



Stump, Simon Maccracken, 98 Sugimoto, Y., 39

Tamaki, T., <mark>39</mark>

Wakita, Y., <mark>39</mark>

Yang, Yi, <mark>104</mark> Yomdin, Yosef, <mark>28</mark>